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CORPORATE PROFILE
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China Lesso Group Holdings Limited is a leading large-scale
industrial group that manufactures building materials and interior
decoration products in mainland China. It is listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock name: China
Lesso, stock code: 2128). China Lesso is one of the constituent
stocks of the Hang Seng Composite Index — MidCap and has been
covered by Hong Kong Stock Exchange's Stock Connect. The
Group provides over 10,000 types of quality products, including
plastic piping system, sanitary ware products, integrated kitchens,
systems of doors and windows, decorative plates, fire-fighting
equipment, and sanitary materials, etc. They are widely applied to
such fields as interior decoration, water supply, drainage, power
supply and telecommunications, gas transmission, agriculture,
aquaculture, floor heating and fire services. The Group is positioned
as one of the manufacturers who offer the most comprehensive
range of building materials and interior decoration products in
China.

The Group has 22 advanced production bases in 16 provinces,
namely Guangdong, Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei, Jiangsu, Anhui,
Zhejiang, Henan, Hebei, Jilin, Shaanxi, Xinjiang, Hainan, Yunnan,
Shandong and Hunan. The Group has established a nationwide
sales network and has also developed long-term strategic
partnerships with 2,155 independent and exclusive first-tier
distributors to provide quality and comprehensive products as well
as professional services for customers.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MG RE

Change
2017 2016 %5
For the year ended 31 December #HZE12831HLLEE
(RMB’000) (ARYF )
Revenue WA 20,360,000 17,221,052 18.2%
Gross profit EF 5,316,783 4,581,778 16.0%
Finance costs BB 229,309 107,061 114.2%
EBITDA BB E R 25 3,830,717 3,125,219 22.6%
Profit before tax i % A i A 2,954,586 2,424,792 21.8%
Profit for the year F N Fl 2,265,807 1,913,704 18.4%
Profit attributable to owners ViN/NEIEZEWN
of the Company FE(R 5 A 2,293,055 1,922,027 19.3%
At 31 December (RMB’000) R12A31MB(AR¥F )
Total assets BEBT 27,973,625 22,195,286 26.0%
Cash and bank deposits Be RRITERX 4,452,370 3,885,683 14.6%
Total debts® B4R 8,319,375 4,694,561 77.2%
Net debt®! B FHEe 3,867,005 808,878 378.1%
Total equity U Eaick 13,783,491 11,637,672 19.5%
Share information (RMB) BHER(ARE)
Basic earnings per share' AR E AR B F) 0.74 0.62 19.4%
Diluted earnings per share®® AR E 2 R 0.74 0.62 19.4%
Proposed final dividend per share #/x &R AN S
(HK cents) (B 18 15 20.0%
Equity attributable to owners BRARBHEE A
of the Company per share FE(GfER 4.35 3.62 20.1%
Financial ratios B =
Gearing Ratio (%) BEABE%) 37.6 28.9
Net debt to equity” (%) B FRRE L T 9(%) 28.1 7.0
Interest cover® (times) RSB F LR e (fF) 16.71 29.19
Note: FfsE -
a. Represented total borrowings. a. EfERHEEE -
b. Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. b. IEEBBERIRE S MIRITFER °

c. Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the  c. RARBREARBERF 25T EFNRE M BHRE

Company are set out in note 11 to consolidated financial statements. BIEETT ©
d. Represented net debt divided by total equity. d. HREBIF MR AR 48R -
e. Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs. e. R BBITEAT RN R AR BB
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFBEHE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ128318LEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RESULTS ES AR®TT AREFTT AREFT ARETT ARETT
REVENUE /9N 20,360,000 17,221,052 15,264,401 14,822,772 13,070,547
GROSS PROFIT EY ] 5,316,783 4,581,778 3,937,571 3,800,734 3,265,568
EXPENSES* B¢ (2,700,377)  (2,188,759) (1,906,605) (1,837,384) (1,502,919)
FINANCE COSTS BERA (229,309) (107,061) (87,323) (233,071) (151,003)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAIRR 2,954,586 2,424,792 2,064,671 1,846,793 1,767,511
Income tax expense FIEREY (688,779) (511,088) (446,221) (306,435) (329,895)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERHEF 2,265,807 1,913,704 1,618,450 1,540,358 1,437,616
Profit attributable to: AT A&7 -
Owners of the Company AREEBA 2,293,055 1,922,027 1,621,117 1,654,024 1,449,261
Non-controlling interests IR (27,248) (8,323) (2,667) (13,666) (11,645)
2,265,807 1,913,704 1,618,450 1,540,358 1,437,616
At 31 December
M2A318
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FINANCIAL POSITION BIHMIR AR®T ARETTL AREFIL AREBTL ARETL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ETEEE 15,825,153 12,136,602 8,416,831 7,204,696 5,899,084
Current assets TEEE 12,148,472 10,058,684 8,232,292 7,314,832 6,398,623
Total assets BELES 27,973,625 22,195,286 16,649,123 14,519,528 12,297,707
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities EER=R 6,116,343 935,722 2,406,123 2,159,959 1,743,944
Current liabilities mEaE 8,073,791 9,721,892 4,377,548 3,809,846 3,297,820
Total liabilities BEAE 14,190,134 10,657,614 6,783,671 5,969,805 5,041,764
NET CURRENT ASSETS TBEEFE 4,074,681 336,792 3,854,744 3,504,986 3,100,803
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners ARAEBA
of the Company B 13,489,915 11,231,509 9,770,885 8,545,459 7,239,738
Non-controlling interests JEIR RS 293,576 306,163 94,567 4,264 16,205
Total equity BRER 13,783,491 11,537,672 9,865,452 8,549,723 7,255,943

#

Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative #
expenses and other expenses.

EHERAHRX - TRAS A MR WEMN -
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

In 2017, China’'s gross domestic product growth rate accelerated
to 6.9%, reversing a slowdown that persisted for the previous
seven consecutive years. Signs of stabilising economic growth
generated opportunities for development of all types of industries
and markets. China started its 13th Five-year Plan in 2016. In
2017, Chinese government continued to introduce various policies
in relation to energy and environmental protection in an active
manner, and carried out multiple large-scale municipal projects
and urban infrastructure construction projects, including the plan
of “Sponge City”, the “Action Plan for Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution” and the “Underground Pipeline Utility Tunnel”,
in a bid to ensure a secure supply of water and to reduce water
pollution. These projects stimulated economic growth and could
sustain demand for plastic piping systems. Meanwhile, the Chinese
government pressed on with the new mode of urbanisation and
regional economic development, which also created a favorable
operating environment for the pipe industry.

As a sizeable industrial group producing building materials and
interior decoration products, China Lesso actively tapped the
stable demand for pipes which resulted from the state’s policies
on infrastructure during the year. It continued to leverage its
leading position in the industry, and to take advantage of its brand
strength and economies of scale. During the year, the Group
achieved steady and satisfactory increases in sales revenue, market
expansion and key performance indicators. The Group’s revenue
increased by 18.2% to RMB20,360 million in 2017 from RMB17,221
million in 2016. Gross profit rose by 16.0% to RMB5,317 million,
and profit attributable to owners of the Company grew by 19.3%
to RMB2,293 million. The Board proposed a final dividend of HK18
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year, the Group continued to reinforce its leading
market position in southern China, and proactively strengthened
its footholds in other regions, in a bid to drive overall sales. As the
newly established production base in Hunan officially commenced
operation in the second half of 2017, the Group's business
development and penetration of the local markets were enhanced.
Overall designed capacity and production efficiency of the Group
were also improved as a result. In addition, the Group continued to
strive to enhance the facilities at its existing production bases, raise
the level of automation and upgrade production technologies and
facilities, thereby improving the overall operational efficiency and
competitiveness.

04 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited /1 B8 %8 & B2 IS B R A 7]
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China’s property market continued to fare well. The urbanisation
and stable development of the property market spurred demand
for building materials and interior decoration products. The Group
grasped the opportunities on the market by providing customers
with diverse products. It also continuously improved its product
lines. The business of new product lines achieved synergy with the
businesses of existing product lines, thus effectively boosting sales
revenue.

The Chinese government has introduced and enhanced
environmental policies in recent years and has encouraged
the development of eco-friendly industries. To capitalise on
such government initiatives, the Group actively expanded its
environmental protection business during the year under review,
and made a breakthrough in the business through acquisitions
and cooperation with environmental protection service providers.
The Group won contracts to supply to many diverse large-scale
environmental protection projects. Such projects will enable the
environmental business to achieve synergy with the Group's
business of plastic piping systems in the long run. The Group
aspires to become a one-stop environmental protection service
provider and to enable people to live eco-friendly lives.

In response to China's “Belt and Road Initiative"”, the Group
actively expanded “Lesso Home" business during the year. The
Group is committed to assisting China’s manufacturers of interior
decoration products in product display, sales, storage, logistics and
distribution, so that they can deliver building materials and interior
decoration products directly to target customers and consumers
across the world. This move has laid the groundwork for the
Chinese manufactures’ business development, brand building and
overseas expansion. Presently, the Group has properties reserve
in major cities in the US, Canada, Australia, Thailand and United
Arab Emirates, thus laying a solid foundation for the expansion of
Lesso Home business. In the future, we will strive to develop Lesso
Home into the world's leading sales platform for interior decoration
products. We also expect Lesso Home to become a new growth
driver for the Group in the long term.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRMES

Although China’s business environment was complicated
and overshadowed by numerous uncertainties in 2017, the
Group achieved revenue growth that met the capital market's
expectations. The achievement was attributable to the Group's
success in giving full play to its brand strength and wide distribution
network, enriching product portfolio, expanding production capacity
and initiating the new Lesso Home business. The Group adopted
different strategic plans for its existing and new businesses, and
successfully expanded the scope of its business in both domestic
and overseas markets. It has also consolidated its brand image and
enhanced its reputation, and set targets for growth in revenue and
profitability for the long term.

We expect China’s economy to maintain momentum of steady
growth in 2018 despite the numerous uncertainties in the global
market. In order to adapt to frequent changes in the market,
the Group will fully grasp the opportunities arising from the
Chinese government's initiatives that can benefit the industry,
develop its business of building materials and interior decoration
products as well as the business of environmental protection,
seek to achieve synergies between such businesses and aim for
sustainable growth. The Group will actively capitalise on Industry
4.0, and upgrade its existing production bases so as to make
them automated and intelligent, thereby enhancing the Group's
production capacity and efficiency. In addition, the Group will adopt
blue ocean strategy by expanding the scope of applications of
piping systems, so as to solidify its leading position.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our management and all the staff members for their
commitment and dedication to the Group. The Group will continue
to fulfill its mission of “improving urban quality of life” by providing
the market with innovative and high quality building materials
and interior decoration products. We will capitalise on China’s
economic reform and rising consumption demand to drive the
Group's business development for the long term. This will enable
us to achieve better results and create greater value for customers,
investors and Shareholders. China Lesso is determined to scale
new heights in the future!

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 19 March 2018
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRESREEAEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 55, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Company and was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director
of various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the Group’s overall strategic planning and business management.
Mr. Wong has approximately 21 years of experience in plastic pipe
operations and management. He served as the chairman in Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to April 1999 and was
awarded “Qutstanding Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde
People's Government of Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been
a vice president of Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber
of Commerce since 2006. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the
founder of a trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Xi Xi
Development and New Fortune, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 45, is the chief executive of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor
of various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr.
Zuo has approximately 18 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in operation management since joining the Group.
Mr. Zuo won several awards including “Qutstanding Worker of the
Plastic Industry in the PRC" by China Plastics Processing Industry
Association in 2009. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and the younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 51, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies in the
Group. She is primarily responsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 21
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EZLEREEABRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 51, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management
of the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 21 years of experience
in the plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999.
Mr. Lai joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 52, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible
for the China’s sales of the Group and has approximately 24
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined
the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan
City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January
1999 and served as a manager in the production department of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 50, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management of the quality control of
the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 28 years of experience in
the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in December
1999 and has held various positions in production management and
engineering since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology department
at Guangdong Province Zhaoqging Gaojiang Plastic Products Co.,
Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to September
1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in the
production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from September
1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy secretary
general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics
Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in polymer chemical from South China University
of Technology in July 1989.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 42, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group.
Dr. Lin is primarily responsible for the research and development
and overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 15
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the
Group in July 2002 and has held various positions in research and
development and overseas sales since joining the Group. Over the
years, Dr. Lin has won various awards including “National May First
Labor Medal” by All China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr.
Lin received a doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics
from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 42, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible
for the overall management of the factories and production facilities
of the Group and has approximately 21 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999
and has held various positions in production management since
joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as
a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials
Factory from 1996 until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of
the plastic production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from
June 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Huang completed a programme
of marketing from Hubei University of Technology from September
2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 46, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/general
manager/supervisor of various companies in the Group. Mr. Luo
has approximately 25 years of experience in accounting and
worked at Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March
1996, Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability
from April 1996 to December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng
Accounting Firm from January 2002 to December 2007. Mr. Luo
worked for Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co.,
Limited as a certified public accountant from January 2008 to April
2016. Mr. Luo is a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Luo had been an independent director
of Bestsun Energy Co., Ltd (formerly known as Winowner Group
Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 600681), which is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2009 to June 2015. Mr. Luo obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in June 1993.
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EZLEREEABRERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Lin has approximately
23 years of experience in the legal field and worked as a part-time
lawyer at various PRC law firms between 1995 and 2001. In 2001,
Mr. Lin practised as a lawyer at Guangdong Everwin Law Office and
became a partner at the firm in 2004. Since 2013, Mr. Lin has been
practising as a lawyer at Guangdong Yogo Law Firm.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao
is Professor of Economics and Strategy in the Faculty of Business
and Economics and the director of the Institute for China and Global
Development, the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the
University of Hong Kong in 1998, he taught at Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology from 1992 to 1998. Dr. Tao received
his B.Sc. in management science from Fudan University in 1986,
and PhD in economics from Princeton University in 1992. Dr. Tao is
currently an independent non-executive director of Huadian Fuxin
Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 816), which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. Dr. Tao is senior fellow at Tsinghua University's
National Centre of Economic Research, senior fellow at Tsinghua
University’s Center for China in the World Economy, and special-
term professor at Fudan University School of Management. He is
also co-director of the Asia Competitiveness Program of Hong Kong
Institute of Economics and Business Strategy.

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
Mr. Fung is currently practising as a sole proprietor in the name
of P C Fung & Company, a certified public accountants firm. Mr.
Fung is a Certified Public Accountant, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr.
Fung obtained a master degree in arts from Antioch University,
US in March 1987. Mr. Fung is currently an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 15), which is listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department’'s Users’ Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of
the High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal
litigation. Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor's degree in business
administration from Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and
a bachelor’'s degree in law from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. Mr. Wong received a postgraduate certificate in
laws from City University of Hong Kong in July 2002.

Mr. Cheung Man Yu, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 December 2012.
Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor's degree in arts with major in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Cheung has over 19 years of experience in financial management
and financial services. Mr. Cheung is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Feiyu Technology International
Company Ltd. (stock code: 1022), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cheung was employed at the audit department
of Ernst & Young, an international accounting firm, from 2000 to
2004. Mr. Cheung was a vice president or director at the respective
investment banking division of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific)
Limited, UBS AG and J.P. Morgan securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
from 2004 to 2011.

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan
has been the President of Guangdong Construction and Decoration
Materials Association since March 2008 and the President of
Guangdong Construction and Decoration Design Association since
August 2014. Ms. Lan graduated from Guangdong University of
Technology with a college diploma in June 1996 and then pursued
further studies in the EMBA CEO training programme of Sun Yat-sen
University and the business management CEQO training programme
of Tsinghua University. She worked as a chairman of the materials
committee of Guangzhou Architecture & Decoration Association
from February 1998 to October 2006. Ms. Lan has accumulated
over 20 years of experience with respect to the administration of
social organisation and in the industry of construction and decoration
materials.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 36, is a chief financial officer of the Group
and is responsible for the Group’s overall financial and accounting
affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this,
he worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-
branch manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Foshan Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu
completed a diploma in finance from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at
Guangdong University of Business Studies from March 2007 to
January 2010. As well as obtaining a master degree in engineering
from Chongging University upon the completion of courses for
the master degree in software engineering (specialised in financial
informatisation) in June 2014. He is an associate member of the
Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 40, is the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 10 years of experience
in accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group
in June 2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants
from March 2000 to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers
from November 2004 to October 2007 and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from November 2007 to September 2009. The latter
two firms are amongst the biggest international accounting firms.
Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in Commerce from
Deakin University of Australia in September 2000 and obtained a
master degree in business administration from University of South
Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of the CPA
Australia.

1 2 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 R AR A T

BREERE

BIERSTE  365% - AAEBEMKAE  AEAR
SEMNEBBYBRETEE - 2L £R2008F
MAMBARSE - 2 A1 B R2004F 2006 F F
P TR RITIEE T 5418 - WR20076F &
2008F EFH B TrmiR1TH ILIEEEE BT
ITHRIE - B £ R2005F 9 A KB R AES
BEESUR - R2007F3AE2010F 1 AERER
P REERE - WHR2014F6 ATREEKR
BNEETRAEG TE(ERMEES 4t7‘5ﬁ)ﬁ§i§%
ERNESIRELISMN - FABEKSMAE

8 o

BEELE  405% 0 BAEARRMARIWE - @i
EEEE B RME T ABEERI10TLER - 4
SEL2010F6 AMAREE - 2B HEWSE -
ENAREER] - B AR 20003 A E20045F
MAEBREERSFTAIERAT - 720044 11
AZE2007F 10 AERZE SR KBS RTANSEISAT
2007911 AE2009F0 AT « BIERR
FEETANIT - B EFTANTTB R AR E5TAD
1725 B EN2000F9 AERMNES KER
¥ DEmES2LBMRN2012F88EMEX
ENSTREEEBELTSEMN - HAESESHAAE
=

5 EE
FEBRMNEFMASEE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices and business ethics of the
Group. The Board believes in good corporate governance practices
and business ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable
development, establishing investors’ confidence in the Company
and safeguarding and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices
of the Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations
of the Shareholders for continual improvement, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment of pursuing excellent corporate governance. In
the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the Code during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to
other specific senior management of the Company. The directors’
and chief executive's interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on
page 57.

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 9 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 5 independent non-
executive directors.
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BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing directors shall hold office only until the next
AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting. In addition, at every AGM of the Company, not less
than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-executive
director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no director
will remain in office for a term of more than three years. For details
relating to any relationship among the members of the Board,
including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship, please refer to the sections headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” and “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’ Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong
Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important
duties of the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board
always acts in the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall
ensure the effective operation of the Board and fully perform his/
her duties and ensure all important issues are discussed at Board
meetings in a timely manner. All directors will be consulted for any
proposed items in the agenda. The chairman has delegated the
drafting of the agenda of each Board meeting to the chief executive
and the company secretary. With the assistance of the chief
executive and the company secretary, the chairman aims to ensure
all directors are adequately briefed on any issues being put forward
at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and reliable information in
a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide various expertise and
experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in
Board meetings and committee meetings and make independent
judgements on issues related to the Group's strategies,
performance, interest conflicts and management process so as to
ensure the interests of all Shareholders are properly considered.
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BOARD (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation made by each
of the independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules regarding their independence. The Company
regarded all independent non-executive directors are independent
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board
exercises its rights in management decision on the aspects of
the Company’s development strategy, management structure,
investment and financing, planning, financial control and personnel
in accordance with the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company'’s
independent auditor to review the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 and to audit the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The directors of the Company
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements included in the annual report and the interim
report. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017, the directors have selected and
applied appropriate accounting policies and have made prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditor of the Company on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages
72 to 81.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to review of the effectiveness of the Company’'s internal
control system;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(f)  to review the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

The Board has performed the above activities during 2017.
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board convened eight
meetings to review operating performance, funding requirement
and recent market conditions. The Board also considered and
approved the Group's overall strategy, audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and reviewed interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2017.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee, attended the AGM of the Company held on 19 May
2017.

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the
Board at the meetings held in 2017:

EEEEERREARE
HE2017F12A31MBEFE  EEEEHANR
g% UENEERE BB RkE&EMMR -
EZNCERMMERSE 2 ERBRE H2E
2016 F 12 A3 B LFENEEZEFEELE
F£2017F6 308 IENE AMEEMTPEIZES -

EXeIFELERZES  REZESNFINE
BgNERHEEEARRFTN2017F5 190 £
ITRRERAFRE o

TREJ2017FEEGEREBNLFESRBER

Meetings attended/eligible to attend
HERY, REREEHRH

Audit Nomination Remuneration

AGM® Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors BEx BREBFEAG® EEg ERZEE REZEE FHZEEE
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei = 171 8/8 = 1/1 1/1
Zuo Manlun Tiwfe 11 8/8 = 171 171
Zuo Xiaoping Vi3 11 7/8 = - -
Lai Zhigiang faoa 11 8/8 = = =
Kong Zhaocong FLIKEE 11 8/8 = - -
Chen Guonan FREIFE 11 8/8 = = =
Lin Shaoquan wz 11 7/8 - - -
Huang Guirong =HEE 11 8/8 = = =
Luo Jianfeng BEIE 11 8/8 - - -
Non-executive director EHITES
Lin Dewei wEeE 171 8/8 2/2 - -
Independent BYFHTES

non-executive directors
Fung Pui Cheung i 11 7/8 2/2 11 11
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan ~ FEI% 11 8/8 2/2 1N Al
Cheung Man Yu RXF 11 7/8 2/2 = 17
Lan Fang E3b; 171 7/8 = 1/1 =
Tao Zhigang ) 7 ) 11 8/8 = - -
Note: BIEE -
(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of  (a) REERMABE  EFHUHET BBREFEHEMR

video conference in accordance with the Articles.

(b) There was no other general meeting held in 2017.
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the
directors and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance
with the Articles and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda
and the relevant documents will be provided to all directors in
a timely manner. The chairman will give a proper briefing to all
directors on items to be put forward at a Board meeting. To ensure
compliance with the procedure of Board meetings and all applicable
rules and regulations, all directors may gain a full understanding
of all relevant data in a timely manner and may receive advice
and services from the company secretary. The minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for
inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive
induction package covering the summary of the responsibilities
and obligations of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the
Company’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies Registry to each newly
appointed director to ensure he/she to have sufficient awareness of
good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the directors
with written materials, as well as organises seminars on the
professional knowledge and latest development of regulatory
requirements related to director’s duties and responsibilities.

In 2017, the Company invited The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
to give a seminar on the topic of “Managing Enterprise Value
Through Corporate Actions” to Board members.
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BOARD (Continued) BEEg(HE)
TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued) EEEIIREZEE)

Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on [ 7 it AR AHIREAIFZIN » BiEEE RN
the training records provided to the Company by the directors, the  AGIRHEAIEYIEE - N2017F - B2 ELH

directors also participated in the following trainings during 2017: AT -
Type of trainings

Directors = EIER
Executive directors BITES
Wong Luen Hei =S A, C
Zuo Manlun i A C
Zuo Xiaoping EESE A, C
Lai Zhigiang FE R 5R A, C
Kong Zhaocong FLIKER A, C
Chen Guonan PR B R A C
Lin Shaoquan M A C
Huang Guirong =HHEE A C
Luo Jianfeng Frgedled A C
Non-executive director FHITES
Lin Dewei MEE A C
Independent non-executive directors BYEHTES
Fung Pui Cheung Pishe=pr A, C
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan FEx A C
Cheung Man Yu R X F A, C
Lan Fang M A, B, C
Tao Zhigang b =5 1 A, B, C

Note: B3 -

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEEWEER SEEk KmE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: RN R,/ KeEmh,/ HHRERS

(& reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the C: REAEZZIBSE @ &F 25 BE  BEREKAD

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and FIEBHEN  BE - FIWRER

business of the Company
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BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedures of the Board meeting and
ensure the Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations
and corporate governance development and has considered their
opinions when making a decision. The company secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with its continuing
obligations under the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and
other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the company secretary
has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to refresh his knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors
and officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of
trust proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Island
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time),
every director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
director, auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

RNEAME

REMENNEFTSER  URRCELESS
REF URREFSCHUZIWEN - REHIH
CEERERESE2AMG®R  AEFSFLRE
HEZREELER - RAWETERBEAS
BE EHRA - FBQFWE - A6 ERHE
BT Rl RRHED - FEH LB GRAIAREME
xR RAIRBPIT 2 RHEEE -

REZE2017F12A831HIEFE » RaWESE
AL/ NFRAEBE RS - AR E M
T

EERITRAEBNTEE
RE-BREZRTBRABREERR  EFERITK
ANEREREARRAEZRTRABBTRER
BHNEEREE - ARERE - WERESE
RITBRABBEMKE ERETHERIEEDN
1R REHTERE -

RIBERAR  ERSHERFDE(2013FEF]
Ko BIAFZETGRXERT - ARRBNLE
= REMKEMITRABRERRARREEE
BRE UEEETMEEEFRRTESAR
B ZREEIITRABMBEARIN A
RHBEE - TEBERFEEIMEEREF K
HARHI B S ESE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain
committees under its supervision, including the Company's
audit committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) (collectively known as “Board
Committees”). Board Committees can engage intermediaries to
provide professional opinions and the reasonable expenses incurred
as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung (chairman of the Audit Committee and independent
non-executive director), Mr. Lin Dewei (non-executive director),
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both are
independent non-executive directors). The major responsibility
of the Audit Committee is to conduct independent and objective
audit of the truth and accuracy of the Group’s economic operation
and financial activities, financial policies, financial procedures,
risk management, internal control, external audit, internal audit,
financial information reporting and financial data and assist the
Board in discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each
year. In 2017, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The
attendance record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on
page 16.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2017:

° review of the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2016, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval,

° review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence
and its report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2016, with a recommendation to the Board for the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the 2017 AGM;

° review of continuing connected transactions;

o review of the Group internal audit reports;

20 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 R AR A T
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review of the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2017, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval,

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2017;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the corporate governance
disclosures for the six months ended 30 June 2017, with
recommendations to the Board for approval,

review of the corporate social responsibility report for the
year ended 31 December 2016 with a recommendation to the
Board for approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk
management, internal control system and internal audit
function under the Code, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the
annual report and annual results announcement for the year ended
31 December 2017 with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the service fees paid or
payable by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

BEEZEE @)

EREEE(H)

EHHZE201796 A308 1E7NE A #yh Hi sk
ERHPHEENE  TEZEFLRIG

EM BB K ESMEEREZES
HZE2017F6 8308 IE/~EAR®RE

B BBEN KIEE IR -

EREHZE2016F12A3MBIEFENTEE
SAMRE MEE2017F6 308 IE/5E AMB
XEAWE  WEREFTSRB

EHHE2016F 12831 B ILFEMELME
SEIWE  TEEAZEFTRB: X

RigTRIENFERREE - WEZEH RS
KA ERELZIN B AR E - YEREF SR
?@ o

REEZERRE  BLZESENEE2017F12A

BITALFENFREFERERES  TEZES
FEE -
SN R BUAM

HZE2017F12A3MBIEFE - AEERINEZ
RN E e 2 RSB BES T

RMB million
AREEET
Annual audit services FEET RS 7.13
Non-audit services IEFEFTARTS
— Interim results review — R HREED 1.38
- Others* — H At 0.64
Total et 9.15

#

"Others"” were mainly for providing advice on matters in relation to taxation. The
provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and efficient

due to their professional knowledge.

#

[Hh | T ZHEMBBHOERRHER - BRIMNERE
B AV R AN - R E IR S RIS AR A s Rk o
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei
(executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong
Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both of them are
independent non-executive directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying
and formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee have the delegated responsibility
to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management. In order to determine the level
of remuneration and fees paid to members of the Board, market
rates and factors such as each director’'s workload, responsibility
and job complexity are taken into account. The following factors
are considered when determining the remuneration packages of
directors and senior management:

° business requirements;

° individual performance and contribution to results;

° company performance and profitability;

° retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

° changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2017, the Remuneration Committee convened one
meeting, assessed the performance of the Company's directors
and senior management, reviewed terms of their service contracts,
and made recommendation of the remuneration packages for
directors and senior management to the Board. The attendance
record of the meeting is set out on a named basis on page 16.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the remuneration of the two senior management fell
within the band of less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and
executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan and Ms. Lan Fang (all of
them are independent non-executive directors). The major duty of
the Nomination Committee is to study and make recommendations
on the candidates, selection criteria and procedure in respect of the
Company'’s directors and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2017, the Nomination Committee convened one
meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, recommended the Board on the list
of retiring directors for re-election at the AGM on 19 May 2017,
and reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive
directors. The attendance record of the meeting is set out on a
named basis on page 16.

BEEZEE @)

¥yMEEE(HE)
FHMZEeAEFELAMEHE K - R2017
F-HFHNEEREART —RER  FAHAXFE
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and other qualities. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors.
Two of them are females. One third of the Board members are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical
review and control of the management process. The composition
of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills, professional
experience and knowledge for effective leadership of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The Board is also
responsible for monitoring the design, implementation and review
on the risk management and internal control system as carried
out by management, while management has the responsibility
to provide confirmation on the effectiveness of such system. To
this end, management continues to allocate resources for an risk
management and internal control system compatible with the
COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system of
the Group and in achieving business objectives by the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously
monitored and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system, and the Board
is of the view that the existing risk management and internal
control system is sufficient and effective. The review covered all
material aspects with regard to control, including financial control,
operational control and compliance control. The internal audit
reports submitted to the Audit Committee by the Group also cover
aspects of risk management and internal control. The Board is not
aware of any significant areas of concern which may affect the
Shareholders, and believes that the Group has fully complied with
the code provisions on internal controls, including compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, as set forth in the Code. The
Board, through the appraisal performed by the Audit Committee,
reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs received by the staff and budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal auditing and financial reporting
function at the Board meeting. In light of the Group's nature
of business and the recommendations on the Board’s role in
risk management, the Group has developed risk management
system and policies, and established a risk management project
team, which is responsible for the Group's risk management, to
communicate and assess the Group's risk profile and material
risks, and track the progress of mitigation plans and activities of
material risks and report on detailed examinations of specific risks
as required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation
structure to manage the risks encountered by the Group. The
risk management structure of China Lesso comprised of two key
factors: risk management structure and risk management program.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A)

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
REGULATORY ORGANISATION

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the
overall risk management

° determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve
risk management strategies, major risk mitigation
solutions and risk management measures;

° comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the
enterprise and its existing management situations, and
make effective risks management decisions; approve
the decision-making standards and mechanisms
regarding major operating decisions, major risks, major
events and major business processes;

° approve risk management report related to major
decisions; and

o approve the annual comprehensive risk management
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION
The Audit Committee, the highest risk management
organisation in the Company which is accountable to the

Board

° review the establishment and planning of the
comprehensive risk management system;

o review the proposal on the structure of the risk
management organisations and their responsibilities;

° review the annual comprehensive risk management
report and submit to the Board;

o review risk management strategies, major risk
management solutions and risk management measures;

and

° review the annual risk management work plan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A)

28

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

LEADING RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION

Risk management project team, the leading risk
management organisation

° responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company'’s risk management policies and mechanisms;

° formulate and submit annual risk management work plan
to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

° regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss
major risks as faced by the Company; and

° assess the soundness, reasonability and the
effectiveness in implementing the risk management
system, and review the annual comprehensive risk
management report, risk management strategies and
day-to-day risk management solutions.

RISK IMPLEMENTATION ORGANISATION

Each functional department of the Company shall accept

the coordination and monitoring carried out by the risk

management project team

° implement the basic process in risk management;

° consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the

functional department;

° analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

o properly carry out risk management work of the
functional department; and

° establish a comprehensive risk management process of
the functional department.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A)

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)
RISK SUPPORTING ORGANISATION
Internal control team

o assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

° centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management
solutions;

o assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of
risk management in each functional departments and
operating units; and

o assist the timely rectification and improvements to
existing deficiencies of each functional department
based on the findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

o assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

° carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

o after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing
results to internal control team and risk management
project team timely.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

| B T T AR A R R ()

(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (B) EEEREN
The Group has established a comprehensive risk management AEBDEY EXSHEAREERN -
program which is led by the risk management project team BRAmEMEEBEEHAEE  NE B%W\Hﬁ
and implemented with the assistance of the internal audit HEBBENTT - ERERERAT
department and internal control team. The risk management
program is as follows:
(a)  to collect first-hand information for risk management; (a) EBEEF—FEANUWE
(b)  to analyse and assess risks; (b) R\t FEEA
(c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk (c) e ﬁﬁ fgﬂ,ﬁ’iﬁk A7 2 A% L [ B 18
management solutions; and BRI
(d) to supervise the implementation of risk management d) HEEBEBEURREEIEEHRER
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole
process of risk management, connecting the channels of
communication of risk management information along the
reporting lines and among various departments and business units
to ensure the timely, accurate and complete communication of
information and this has laid the foundation for the supervision and
enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating
to the first-hand information collection for risk management,
risk assessment, risk management strategies, critical control
activities and the implementation of risk management solutions.
The risk management project team carries out an annual review
and examination on the implementation of the works on risk
management by different departments and business units and its
effectiveness for the year, assesses risk management strategies
and evaluates inter-departmental risk management solutions and
business units’ risk management solutions, proposes suggestions
for adjustments and improvements and issues evaluation and
recommendation reports which will be sent to the relevant senior
management in a timely manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

In 2017, during the course of business planning, we identified
the material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition, risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects
of macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The
Group's corresponding measures on risk management include
reviewing the management strategies and mechanism for macro-
economic risks; reviewing the relevant mechanism on the
collection of intelligence about the changes in the external macro-
economic environment; clearly defining the macro-economic risk
analysis session; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the
strategies for managing macro-economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition arise from the risks involved in the formulation of
competition strategies and risks involved in the collection of
clients’ information. The Group’s risk management measures
include reviewing the management mechanism for market
competition strategies; analysing the Company’s position in market
competition, reviewing the corresponding market competition
strategies; and timely devising and reviewing the management
strategies in response to the changes in the market competition
environment and submitting report thereon to management;
collecting the market competition information of new products and
offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company
is easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes in
manufactures’ power and labor cost structure, changes in the price
of resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The Group’s risk
management measures include clearly stating the risk management
strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of raw materials price
in the relevant systems; collecting information in relation to the
fluctuation of raw materials price and releasing such information
internally through an established channel; regularly reporting and
analysing the fluctuation of raw materials price; clearly defining
the analysis session for the increased risks of fluctuation of raw
materials price; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the
management strategies for the risks of fluctuation of raw materials
price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the
risks of adjustments of environmental policies; risks of adjustments
of urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction
projects of significant water works including water saving and
water supplies; risks of adjustments of real estate policies.
The Group’s risk management measures include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for risks involved in the
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry; collecting information in relation to changes
in environmental protection, economy and industry policies and
releasing such information internally through an established
channel; reviewing the mechanism for monitoring and collecting the
information on laws and regulations that affect the industry.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing
obligations on information management and disclosure to formally
regulate the monitoring of inside information that arises during the
course of its current business development and has established
the practice of delivering such information to shareholders, the
media and analysts. When the Group handles the relevant matters,
it will comply with “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by Securities and Futures Commission and the related
provisions issued by regulatory organisations and the Group has
clearly stated that the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information is prohibited. The Group has a system of answering
enquiries about the Group's matters by external parties, and has
appointed and authorised the senior executives of the Group to
act as the Company's spokesperson in response to enquiries on a
particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby
employees can report any matters to the chairman or the
Audit Committee secretly by sending electronic mails to the
designated address or by phone. Such matters may include
misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding financial matters
and accounting practices without fear of being accused. Any
Shareholder or stakeholder can also report similar concerns in
writing or verbally in confidence to the Audit Committee.

THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time).
However, pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings following the
procedures below:

° Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office. The requisition
shall specify the object of the meeting and be signed by the
requisitionist(s), and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at the general meeting of the Company.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
(Continued)

° The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

° If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which the meeting may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

° An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of
a special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’
notice in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting
shall be called by not less than 14 days' notice in writing. The
notice of the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda
of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered
and in the case of special business, the general nature of that
business.

° Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong or by email or through the Company’s investor
relations whose contact details are provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this report. In addition, the Shareholders
can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
the Company's branch share registrar, if they have any enquiries
about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company and general meetings. The Company
encourages the Shareholders to attend the Company’s general
meetings. The Group's financial and other information is also
published on the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the website of the Company (www.lesso.com).

The Company's senior management endeavours to maintain an
open dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they
have a thorough understanding of the Company and its operations
and strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of
the function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent
third party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/
analyst meetings irregularly and led investors and analysts to visit
its plants.

As regards investor relations, the Group will actively conduct
activities related to investor relations in the future to strengthen
its corporate responsibility so that global investors can have
an adequate knowledge and understanding of the Company's
operating strategy, financial performance and development
prospects. The Company will actively develop and maintain close
relationship with investors, analysts and media to achieve sound
investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business
and performance, nor does the Company engage in discussion on
events or trends related to the reporting period. The Company will
not initiate any meeting or conference call with public in which
these matters are discussed. A quiet period starts at 60 days or
30 days prior to the disclosure of annual results or interim results
respectively, and lasts until the announcement of the annual results
or the interim results.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change to
the memorandum of association of the Company and Articles. The
latest memorandum of association of the Company and Articles is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

China Lesso is a leading large-scale industrial group which produces
building materials and interior decoration products in mainland
China. The Group established 22 advanced production bases in 16
regions within China and foreign countries to support a nationwide
sales network. The Group strives to refine its strategic planning and
sales network, offering a comprehensive range of diverse industrial
products and quality sales services.

The Group continued to reinforce its leading position in the Chinese
market, especially in southern China, on the strength of its quality
products, advanced technologies in research and development and
a wide sales network. In recent years, the Group has been actively
developing business in other local markets and overseas markets.
In addition to the core business of pipe manufacturing, the Group
kept pace with the trends in the market, and further expanded the
business of building materials and interior decoration products,
including systems of doors and windows, sanitary ware products
and integrated kitchens, thereby providing all-in-one solution that
includes cost-effective building materials, interior decoration
products and services for its customers.

The brand name LESSO of China Lesso represents the key
elements of the Group’s corporate culture: “Link, Easiness, Safety,
Sharing and Openness”, and demonstrates its commitment to
“Creating a Relaxing Life for Dwellers”. Since it was established
over 30 years ago, China Lesso has been consistently consolidating
its strong brand position and reputation, and has received quality
accreditations from many national and professional institutions,
including “Award for Craftsmanship in China's Interior Decoration
Industry for 2017", “China’s Top 100 Companies Award”, “Award
for Benchmark Company in Quality Manufacturing in Foshan”,
“Most Preferred Brand in China’s Green Building for 2016"”, and
“Top 10 Companies Award in China’s Light Industry and Plastics
Industry”. The Group’s leading brand position reflects its strong
capabilities in product research and development as well as
excellent product quality, which have laid a foundation for the
Group's solid presence in mainland China and overseas markets,
and gave the impetus to the further expansion of China Lesso's
sales network.
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MARKET REVIEW

China’s economic growth accelerated in 2017 on the back of the
continued progress in the restructuring of the supply side. During
the year under review, the Chinese government continued to press
on with its policies on energy conservation and environmental
protection, and carried out multiple large-scale municipal projects
and urban infrastructure construction, which drove up the demand
for pipes and pipe fittings consistently.

“The Program for Construction of the National Urban Municipal
Infrastructure under the 13th Five-Year Plan” set targets for the
development of the facilities for national water supply, heating
supply, drainage and waterlogging prevention. Under the Program,
China plans to add 93,000 km of new pipelines to the water supply
network, 95,000 km of new pipelines to the drainage network,
replace 23,000 km of old pipelines of the drainage network, add
41,000 km of new pipelines to the centralised heating network,
build 137,000 km of new gas pipelines, and construct 112,400 km
of urban rainwater pipelines during the period of “The 13th Five-
Year Plan”. These large-scale infrastructure projects will further
promote the new mode of urbanisation and regional economic
development, and will generate enormous demand for pipes, thus
benefiting the industry.

The Chinese government steadily pressed on with the construction
of “Underground Pipeline Utility Tunnel” and the plan for “Sponge
City", creating more opportunities for the application of plastic
pipes. As at April 2017, 738 km of pipelines have been constructed
under the Underground Pipeline Utility Tunnel pilot scheme, with
completed investments amounting to about RMB40 billion, and
443 cities in China have planned to construct Underground Pipeline
Utility Tunnel for a total length of about 13,000 kilometers. Under
the pilot scheme of Sponge City, underground pipeline utility
tunnels were already built in an area of 420 square kilometers, with
completed investments amounting to about RMB54.4 billion, and
370 cities in China have made special planning for construction of
Sponge City.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

2017 was a milestone for the implementation of “Action Plan
for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution” and was marked
by achievement of some targets in certain stages of the plan
as the progress was driven by the relevant policies and market
demand. The newly-amended Law of the People’'s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution clarified
the responsibilities of governments at each administrative level
regarding water environment and water quality, and also called
for the fulfillment of these responsibilities. According to data
from the Ministry of Environmental Protection, the “Action Plan
for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution” will require a total
investment of about RMB4.6 trillion, and the increased investment
in pollutant treatment is estimated to be able to add about RMB1.9
trillion to the output value of the environmental protection industry.

According to the “Program for Developing National Marine
Economy under the 13th Five-Year Plan”, China will adjust and
optimise the traditional marine industries, promote comprehensive
regional development of the marine industries primarily in the form
of marine ranch construction, vigorously develop the seawater
aquaculture in a healthy manner and support the deep-water, wind-
and wave-resistant cage aquaculture, thereby driving sustainable
development in the marine fishery industry. This will enlarge
the plastic pipe market and present new opportunities for the
applications of pipes.

The 5th Plenary Session of the 16th Central Committee announced
the “Beautiful Rural Villages Programme” which was aimed at
promoting the modernisation of agriculture and construction of
a new type of rural villages. Under the programme, rural villages
are to be built according to scientific planning so that they can
develop sustainably, foster the development of both industries and
a civilisation, enable an affluent lifestyle, and are thus good places
for living and businesses. The Program entails the improvement
of the ecology of the rural villages, environment protection
and pollutant treatment. In the backward rural areas where
environmental facilities and infrastructure are lacking, facilities for
water supply, power supply, gas supply, drainage ditches, sewage
collection network, sewage treatment facilities and other types of
infrastructure will be built so that urban and rural areas can become
more integrated with the urbanisation progressing in parallel with
the development of a new type of rural villages.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

In addition, to alleviate the air pollution in Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei
and other northern regions of China, the Chinese government is
actively implementing its energy policy on conversion from coal
to natural gas. The policy stimulated the demand for natural gas
pipes. According to the "Action Plan for Prevention and Control
of Air Pollution” published and distributed by the State Council,
construction of the natural gas pipeline network will be accelerated
to pave way for the elimination of conventional coal as a source of
energy. According to the “Crucial Action Plan for Comprehensive
Treatment of Air Pollution in Autumn and Winter for 2017-2018
in Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei and Nearby Areas”, in the “2+26" cities
along the passage for the air transmission between Beijing, Tianjin
and Hebei, over 3 million households converted from coal to
electricity or gas as at the end of October 2017, presenting a huge
opportunity for business on the pipe market.

China’s natural gas transmission industry has been developing
rapidly. The construction of West-East Gas Pipeline Project,
Sichuan-East Gas Pipeline Project and other projects of the same
type have been in full swing under the state’s energy policies. As at
11 December 2017, the annual one-time transmission of natural gas
through the pipelines in China reached 100.218 billion cubic meters,
of which 48% is domestically produced gas, and 40% is imported
natural gas. The massive amount of transmission and the extension
of the transmission distance gave rise to even higher requirements
for the safe operation of pipes. As a result, the market needs
pipeline management to be safer, more reliable, more efficient and
sustainable. This adds impetus to the construction of smart pipeline
networks and fueled the further development of the pipe industry.

The Chinese government continued with its regulation of the real
estate industry, with the aim of containing housing price in first-
tier and second-tier cities and reducing housing inventory in third-
tier and fourth-tier cities. On the back of the further progress in
the restructuring of the supply side and the advances in the new
mode of urbanisation, the second-hand homes which have been
completed for less than five years and the redecoration of other
types of homes in core cities will present a new opportunity for the
building materials and interior decoration industry.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

In the overseas market, China and the countries covered by its
Belt and Road Initiative have further explored possibilities of
cooperating in infrastructure construction, trade and other areas.
On the other hand, the Chinese government is encouraging the
mainland Chinese companies to step up investment in various
industries, gradually making overseas businesses their new growth
drivers. Many regions, including the countries covered by the Belt
and Road Initiative, are still at the initial stage of urbanisation.
This implies huge potential for infrastructure construction, hence
massive demand for piping systems, building materials, hard ware
and electrical equipment.

RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, China Lesso’s revenue
increased by 18.2% to RMB20,360 million (2016: RMB17,221
million), attributable to better macro-economic conditions, strong
demand from infrastructure construction, strong brand influence
and the Group's steadily rising market share. On the back of the
Group’'s economies of scale, expanded production capacity and
effective cost control, the gross profit rose by 16.0% to RMB5,317
million (2016: RMB4,582 million), with gross profit margin standing
at a healthy level of 26.1% (2016: 26.6%).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by business
unit for 2017 and 2016:

TiEHR (&)

BINTEE - PEE SR ERERER
*‘“ﬁmL CEBSETHEAEER T ERANK
e m—TH BNEANMEEZERAESR
®E - 1@%#9|\%i‘%kﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁqﬂl¢¥%ﬁﬁﬁi'
o[ —H—RBIAGEREANRZBRIDER
WE(CRRWERER  ERREEREHEAE
HEXR BREERFIAREM ﬁ%&?&ﬁux
BHERREFK -

EERR

REZE2017F12831BILFE  REREEL
EMERERTRIFERE - A2 REREMNT
SHBERSIRA - PEBBIR AR TIEN18.2%
= ARM203.60187T(20164F : AR®172.21
Bir) - ANBRGENZ MEERRANE
R AR S NEBEFIEIMN16.0% EARE
53.171870(2016%F : AR®45.82187L) » mEF|
TR IMERE KT 226.1% (20164 : 26.6%) °

TREHI2017F R 2016 F WAL KRS 5 0 FF

:l\i.
g5 -

Revenue % of total revenue
WA BB A%
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB million RMB million Change
AR¥EERT ARBHER £5
Plastic piping systems  ZREBZRH 18,110 14,745 22.8% 88.9% 85.6%
Building Materials and ~ ##f
Interior Decoration RE
Products Em 1,356 1,011 34.0% 6.7% 5.9%
Others* Hiw? 894 1,465 (39.0)% 4.4% 8.5%
Total 85t 20,360 17,221 18.2% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others"” include businesses of environmental engineering and other related ~ * [Hbh | BFRETRRREMARBRY - S BRE REA

services, financial services and others.
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RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

The number of the Group’'s independent and exclusive first-
tier distributors nationwide increased to 2,155 (2016: 2,146).
Southern China remained the Group’s major revenue contributor,
and revenue from southern China and those from other regions
accounted for 56.6% and 43.4% respectively (2016: 59.9% and
40.1%) of the Group's total revenue.

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by region for

ES £ 3¢ )

REFER2EEHBIIBR —ASHEEHA 1
Z2,155% (20164 : 2,146%) - EEMIGHEER
AEENFEMS  REFEEDR RER UMD
@R A AR E BB A DR A56.6% K%43.4%
(2016%F : 59.9% %40.1%) °

TR#N2017F R2016F WA [ & 5 8 &

2017 and 2016: 15 -
Revenue % of total revenue
WA HEK A%
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB million RMB million Change
Region* Hh [ # ARBEERT AREEHEETL L1
Southern China Esc 3] 11,521 10,308 11.8% 56.6% 59.9%
Southwestern China [iiflE3] 2,115 1,672 34.6% 10.4% 9.1%
Central China #rh 2,231 1,721 29.6% 10.9% 10.0%
Eastern China Esc o) 1,224 1,067 14.7% 6.0% 6.2%
Northern China B3l 1,341 1,074 24.8% 6.6% 6.2%
Northwestern China [iishd 746 571 30.7% 3.7% 3.3%
Northeastern China it 460 372 23.6% 2.3% 2.2%
Outside China A B3R A 722 536 34.9% 3.5% 3.1%
Total Bt 20,360 17,221 18.2% 100.0% 100.0%
‘* Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to  * BEENBEHEFBHNGE M BBRERMTSL -

consolidated financial statements.

Over the years, the Group reduced the pressure which stemmed
from rising raw materials and production costs by means of
economies of scale, production automation and by increasing
the utilisation rate of production facilities. Meanwhile, the Group
actively enhanced operational efficiency, optimised product
portfolio and expanded market coverage, which contributed to the
sustainable development and profitability of the Group.

The Group's EBITDA increased by 22.6% to RMB3,831 million
during the year under review (2016: RMB3,125 million), and the
EBITDA ratio was 18.8% (2016: 18.1%). Profit before tax increased
by 21.8% to RMB2,955 million (2016: RMB2,425 million). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company increased by 19.3% to
RMB2,293 million (2016: RMB1,922 million). Basic earnings per
share increased by 19.4% to RMBO0.74 (2016: RMB0.62). The
effective tax rate stayed at 23.3% (2016: 21.1%).

ZER  AEEBERELEN S HBLEES
B REFEEREERAREEE - RO RMF
FAEBEMAR LRFISROES - A - XEEA
FEREGREAEENRS  EmEANMMEEE - £
AEEFBEZERNMEFRENBNKFE -

CEER @ ANEB 2K EBIT S &R 741
1N22.6% = AR#38.311B L (20164F : AR
31.251870) © MR BRITEFEF KA E18.8%
(20164F : 18.1%) ° B Fi Al F L F1E IN21.8%
= ARM2955(E T (201649F : ARM2425(8
JC) o AN EHEAABMEEFIZEMIOI%NEAR
122 931870(2016%F : AR¥19.221870) - %
ERBNIZEELN19.4%E ARE0.7475(2016
F o ARB0.627T) - ERHEERANEFTN23.3%
ZIKF(2016%F : 21.1%)
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RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

To express gratitude to the Shareholders for their support and to
share with them the fruit of the Group’s endeavours, the Board
proposed payment of a final dividend of HK18 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK15 cents per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS

The plastic piping systems business is the mainstay operation of
the Group. The Chinese government continued to invest massively
in municipal projects and infrastructure construction, and carried
out many infrastructure projects to propel the economic growth,
which stimulated the demand for plastic pipes and pipe fittings.
The Group has actively capitalised on the various infrastructure
and public projects initiated by the government, and boosted
sales volume of plastic pipes and pipe fittings, which drove steady
growth in the business.

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic
piping systems business by product application for 2017 and 2016:

FERRW@)

BOERMERRNSBENDZEEKR 5
BETIREZE2017F12A31BILEE 2 RHARK
BAFR18EN (20164 « FIR15HE) -

£ a0

BHEERS
PRHEBERREBEAEENTIEER - PEK
FEBEATHRIEMEREZRFERAKRESR
T BENZAEERERNEELHER  FAmME
SHEHEMREENFERE - AR AEEER
EERFSEEERMREER  ERBHAEER
EMMERHEE  SREBRERRIEE -

TREFI2017FR2016FBHEERRFEBEK
AREmBRAEIDHFE

Revenue % of revenue
WA N

2017 2016 2017 2016

RMB million RMB million Change

AR¥EERT ARBHER L4
Water Supply 7k 6,887 5,898 16.8% 38.0% 40.0%
Drainage BEK 6,965 5,612 24.1% 38.5% 38.0%

Power supply and BEOEER
telecommunications B 3,257 2,534 28.5% 18.0% 17.2%
Gas Transmission PR E X 412 189 118.7% 2.3% 1.3%
Others* Hifh# 589 512 15.0% 3.2% 3.5%
Total 4Bt 18,110 14,745 22.8% 100.0% 100.0%
E “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. i [EfBERRA - g KEb -

During the year under review, the revenue from the plastic piping
systems business increased by 22.8% to RMB18,110 million from
last year's RMB14,745 million, and accounted for 88.9% of the
Group's total revenue (2016: 85.6%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)
The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic
pipping systems by region for 2017 and 2016:

EFE O EE ()

BHEERS(H)
TREFI2017F R2016F B HEEBRHWARE
W& & D FFIE

Revenue % of revenue
WA 1A%

2017 2016 2017 2016

RMB million RMB million Change

Region = ARBEERT AREEERL L1
Southern China Esc 3] 10,160 8,688 16.9% 56.1% 58.9%

Other than Southern AN
China 1@ 7,672 5,805 32.2% 42.4% 39.4%
Outside China Bl S 278 252 11.0% 1.5% 1.7%
Total 4BEr 18,110 14,745 22.8% 100.0% 100.0%
The Group continued to strive to enhance the facilities at its ANEBEBERHNELRELEEMNRE 25

existing production bases by raising the level of automation and by
upgrading production technologies and facilities. The Group put the
new production base in Hunan into operation in the second half of
2017, thereby improving the Group’s overall designed capacity and
production efficiency.

During the year under review, sales volume of the plastic piping
systems increased by 17.6%. In terms of product materials, sales
volume of PVC products increased by 14.7% to 1,582,697 tonnes
(2016: 1,379,844 tonnes), while that of non-PVC products increased
by 29.9% to 422,143 tonnes (2016: 325,068 tonnes). Revenue from
sales of PVC products increased by 23.4% to RMB11,840 million
(2016: RMB9,595 million) while that of non-PVC products increased
by 21.8% to RMB6,270 million (2016: RMB5,150 million).

As the average costs of sales increased by 7.0% in 2017, the Group
lifted the average selling price of its plastic piping systems by 4.5%
to RMB9,033 per tonne (2016: RMB8,648 per tonne). The gross
profit margin at this business reached 27.1% (2016: 28.9%). The
Group strived to maintain its gross profit margin at a reasonable and
stable level by effectively reducing the costs of raw materials and
production through economies of scale, massive procurement from
raw materials suppliers and other measures.

BELKFERFAFREERMEZE  EP AL
EEMPR2017FE T EFIENIRE » IEAKRER
BB RETERMAENER -

DEFAN BREERANHESIEFEM
17.6% ° E@PFIHE - PVCE @Y 8 1% F 1
IN14.7% %= 1,582,697 W (2016 € : 1,379,844
i) - JEPVCEMMEEAIZFILIN299% =
422,143 (20164F : 325,068 ) - $HEPVCE
M IEPVCE RATBHWA D B IN23.4% E A
R¥118.4018 7t (2016 : AR¥95.95(870)
F218%&E AR#62.70187L (20164 : AR
51.501&7T) °

BR2017F FHER IR FIEMT.0% + K&
EEHBEEBRGNTHEELFISNETHBAR
#9,03370 (20164 : FMEARH8,6487T) » %%
FEHEMEE27.1% (20164 : 28.9%) - KEE
BBERENRE - EEM ML ERETRER
BEREE  AXBEREMBMEERAN AL
ERREFNEBEMBRAKFE -

43

Annual Report 2017 &%k



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R T

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)
The table below sets out the breakdown of average selling price,
sales volume, and revenue from plastic piping systems business by

E O EE(®)

BREERR(E)
TREFI2017FR2016FBHEERREBIZ
ERPHESHNTFHEE  HERKADEF

product material for 2017 and 2016: 15 -
Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
THER #E N
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB RMB Change Tonne Tonne Change RMB million RMB million Change
ARE ARE £5 L} g #5 ARMEER A\RBBET £5
PVC products PVCER 7481 6,954 76% 1,582,697 1,379,844 14.7% 11,840 9,59 234%
Non-PVC products® FPVCER? 14,853 15,841 (6.2% 422,143 325,068 29.9% 6,270 5,150 21.8%
Total @i 9,033 8,648 45% 2,004,840 1,704,912 17.6% 18,110 14,745 22.8%
# “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or ~ * [JEPVC BRI E B R E 4= ERPEXPP-RH ©
PP-R.
BUILDING MATERIALS AND INTERIOR DECORATION EMREEM

PRODUCTS

China’s property market continued to fare well in 2017, and
developers saw significant growth in both floor area sold and sales
value. The Group has been actively developing the business of
building materials and interior decoration products, which mainly
provides property developers with various types of integrated
building materials and interior decoration products, as well as
the solution for their residential property projects, including
sanitary ware products, integrated kitchens, systems of doors
and windows, and decorative boards, etc. The building materials
and interior decoration business has achieved synergy with
the businesses of other product lines. Benefiting from China’s
urbanisation and the stable development of its property market, the
business recorded a 34.0% growth in revenue to RMB1,356 million
(2016: RMB1,011 million), which accounted for 6.7% of the Group's
total revenue.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

To capitalise on the Chinese government’'s environmental
protection initiatives, the Group is actively expanding its
environmental protection business. During the year under review,
the Group made a breakthrough in the environmental protection
business, and won contracts to supply its products to many large-
scale projects, including those of municipal sewerage system, river
treatment, soil restoration, underground pipeline utility tunnel,
sponge city, installation of integrated water purifiers and other
fields. The group strives to become a one-stop environmental
protection service provider, and aims to generate synergy between
the environmental protection business and the business of plastic
piping systems.

LESSO HOME

Following the Belt and Road Initiatives, the Group decided to launch
a new business line, “Lesso Home"”. Lesso Home is a pioneer in
promoting overseas the “"One-Stop Specialised Market for Home
Furnishing Products” concept, a new retail model. Lesso Home
aims to build a multinational platform for Chinese home furnishings
and building materials manufacturers to showcase their products
and facilitate the distribution and retailing. Lesso Home will also
provide ancillary services including marketing and branding.

The Group has 12 sites reserve in the United States, Canada,
Australia, Thailand and United Arab Emirates. All of the sites
are located within close proximity to major metropolitan areas.
The Group aims to develop these sites into the largest one-stop
showroom markets specialised for home furnishing products in its
respective local market. Tenants will independently operate their
own showrooms, and sell their products directly to local traders,
retailers and consumers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group's capital expenditure for 2017 was approximately
RMB2.5 billion, which was partly used for improvement of
automated facilities, expansion of the existing production bases,
construction of a production base in Hunan and acquisition of
properties in foreign countries.

The Group continued to further its progress in automatic production
and smart production, and strived for fully mechanised production
lines for pipe products, so as to improve overall production capacity,
quality and efficiency. The launch of the new production base in
Hunan increased the Group's annual designed capacity of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings to 2.4 million tonnes at the end of 2017
from 2.2 million tonnes in 2016, enhancing the Group's abilities to
respond to market demand.

During the year under review, the Group's capacity utilisation rate
reached about 83.8%, up by 3.8 percentage points from 80.0%
in 2016. This resulted from the Group’s success in tapping the
strong demand, robust sales, the automation of its factories and
improvement in production efficiency.

STRATEGIES FOR THE FUTURE

China maintained momentum of steady economic growth. In
2018, the Chinese economy is poised to grow steadily even
though it is overshadowed by uncertainties. The Group remains
prudently optimistic about the prospect of its business and will
actively capitalise on the government policies which can favor
the kind of businesses that it is engaged in, and develop its
business of building materials and interior decoration products
as well as business of environmental protection. The Group will
implement the following measures to achieve sustainable business
development in the future.

46

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 R AR A T

E O EE(®)

BEARMX

REB2017FMEARAL AHARK25EL - &
FEDARBGEBBERE  REEEEMNE
BIRKEEHEEER  URESEINDE
B -

rEEEEESFEE LSl  EEEBE
mEEFEAETHEERL LIRS REBESR - &
EMBax - BEEPRMEEREMIRER  ~N5E
BREBERENEENTERITENLB2016FH
2208 MEEE 2017 F FEAI2408 18 - LAFER T

BEE -

CREFA  SERTISHFRMBEHELRE - U
MBEAB L MEENRNE - NEBRERE
AR 4983.8% * B2016F #I180.0% I F+3.81AH
DR

KRR B

TRREEEEFTRTIATNERESDS  RE
2018 FFEEERFRFHFFRIER BETHERE
TRAFEZTE > REAKESKTTEN - K
SEHEXBASRSEREE - RESBEBLE
BNBREXFAAROERES  MREMRE
EmARREEES - BAERATEE - /4K
SERKREBNBEERERERY S -



STRATEGIES FOR THE FUTURE (Continued)

CAPITALISE ON INDUSTRY 4.0 BY MAKING ITS PRODUCTION

AUTOMATED AND INTELLIGENT

Over the years, the Group has strived to make its facilities more
computerised and to increase the level of computerisation of
its management. In the future, the Group will actively develop
intelligent factories, press on with the full automation of production
bases, and further improve the mechanical equipment and their
auxiliary facilities in existing production bases so as to raise the
level of automation, accelerate production, expand production
capacity, increase production efficiency and meet market demand.

IMPROVE PRODUCT QUALITY, ENHANCE PRODUCT
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, AND STRENGTHEN BRAND
China’s pipe and building materials industry is undergoing such
profound changes as restructuring and upgrading. Therefore, the
Group will vigorously enhance its competitiveness in research
and development of products and technologies, accelerate the
transformation and upgrading of its business, and develop market
networks. The Group has a first-rate team for research and
development, and will continue to step up innovation and increase
its investment in research and development. It will focus on the
research on the technologies in the pipe and building materials
industry, so as to maintain a technological leadership in the industry
and provide diverse, high-quality products.

ACTIVELY DEVELOP THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
BUSINESS AND ACHIEVE SYNERGY

The Chinese government will continue to implement a series
of environmental protection policies which present many
opportunities for the environmental protection industry. The Group
will actively grasp such opportunities by forming public-private
partnerships, and fostering new growth drivers so as to achieve
synergy between its environmental protection business and other
businesses, and diversify its source of income.
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STRATEGIES FOR THE FUTURE (Continued)

LEAD THE MARKET AND ADOPT BLUE-OCEAN STRATEGY
China’s steady progress in its plan for development has led to
robust demand for piping systems in the field of infrastructure
construction. As a result, the scope of the application of plastic
piping systems has been widened, meaning more business
opportunities for the pipe industry. As a market leader, the Group
will strive to expand the scope of application of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings, thereby maintaining its market leadership. Meanwhile,
the Group will develop the “Lesso Home" business, thereby adding
impetus to the Group’s business. In 2018, the Group plans to open
a Lesso Home in New York to serve target buyers and customers in
North America.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance,
fund utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject
to effective centralised management and supervision. The Group
keeps reasonable gearing level and adequate liquidity.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total debts (i.e. total
borrowings) of approximately RMB8,319 million, of which
62.7% was denominated in US dollar, 15.1% was denominated
in HK dollar, 13.3% was denominated in Renminbi, 6.5% was
denominated in Australian dollar and 2.4% was denominated in
Canadian dollar. The Group's borrowings are subject to effective
interest rates ranging from 1.6% to 6.0% per annum with maturity
periods ranging from within one year to more than five years.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately RMB12,148 million and RMB8,074
million respectively. The Group’s Current Ratio increased to 1.50
from 1.03 as at 31 December 2016, while the Quick Ratio increased
to 1.10 from 0.75 as at 31 December 2016. The Group’s total
equity increased to approximately RMB13,783 million. The Group's
Gearing Ratio stood at a healthy level of 37.6%.

With cash and bank deposits, including restricted cash, of
approximately RMB4,452 million as well as unutilised banking
facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient working
capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
and no hedging had been arranged during the year.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB34 million were pledged to a bank to secure the banking facility
granted, but this banking facility has not been utilised.

The secured bank loans are secured by: i) the concession rights of a
subsidiary and personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that
subsidiary; ii) certain commercial bills received by the Group during
its provision of factoring services; and iii) certain receivables from
supply-chain financing services.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held long-term financial
investments of approximately RMB1,582 million (31 December
2016: RMB823 million). The investment portfolio comprised
of 95.3% listed equity securities (issued by PRC-based home
improvement and furnishings shopping malls operating company
and PRC-based environmental companies), 0.5% listed debt
securities, 2.1% listed non-cumulative redeemable preference
shares, 0.6% listed perpetual capital securities and 1.5% private
equity and unlisted securities. Each of these investments has a
carrying amount accounting to less than 5% of the Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2017.

The portfolio movement in the current year is mainly attributable
to the purchase of approximately RMB800 million listed equity
securities of Red Star Macalline Group Corporation Ltd. (Stock
code: 1528.hk) (the “Acquisition”). Details of the Acquisition can
be found in the Company’'s announcement dated 22 March 2017.
The Group recognised a net unrealised mark-to-market valuation
gain of approximately RMB220 million for the current year, which
had no impact on the profit or loss and cash flows of the Group.
During the year, the Group's long-term financial investments were
reduced due to the redemption of certain of these investments by
their respective issuers and the Group's disposals, details of which
are set out in notes 19 and 20 to consolidated financial statements.

Income from the portfolio amounted to approximately RMB23
million for 2017, of which approximately RMB39 million
represented gain on early redemption of available-for-sale
investments, approximately RMB32 million represented loss on
fair value changes of derivative financial instrument, approximately
RMB8 million represented interest income, approximately
RMB4 million represented gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments and held-to-maturity investments, and the remainder
represented dividend income.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (Continued)

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Group will study the market and information of the prospective
investees cautiously before it makes its investment decisions. The
Group will also monitor the performance of its investee closely and
regularly after purchases and will adjust the investment strategy in
a cautious manner to minimise the impact of market volatility on the
Group as and when necessary.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's investment properties were
approximately RMB4,000 million. Gains arising from changes in the
fair values of investment properties were approximately RMB300
million during the Year.

Among these investment properties, the malls in Toronto, Canada
are existing properties, the malls in Long Island, USA and in Auburn
district of Sydney, Australia are under refurbishment and the land
in Thailand are under development. Other properties are at the
planning stage of development.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
investments as at 31 December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of
approximately 10,600 employees including directors. Total staff
costs were RMB876 million during the year. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined
based on their work performance, professional experience and the
prevailing industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus may be
paid to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits
to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme and
training programmes.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental protection is always a top priority of China Lesso.
The Group has applied the ideas of going green and environmental
protection throughout its product design, R&D, production and
practical operations, and has adopted a variety of eco-friendly
measures to minimise impact on the environment. On top of that,
the Group supports the development of environmental protection
industry and be committed to water treatment and the construction
of Sponge City. In addition, the Group establishes a complete
environment management system, continues to improve criteria
and measures concerning management of environmental protection
and adopt more simplified operating processes and energy-efficient
hardware to reduce consumption of energy and water resources,
increase benefits from resource consumption, reduce wastes
emissions and enhance recycling.

The Group complies with laws and regulations governing air
pollution, noise emission, solid waste discharge, and other
environmental protection issues in China. The environmental
management and compliance department works together with the
legal department to ensure the Group will keep abreast of the latest
development on environment-related laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

China Lesso takes an active part in community investment and
public welfare and provides care for underprivileged groups in the
society, aiming to apply its influence, bring positive changes to
the communities where it operates, and maintain sound relations
with the communities where it operates. Further, the Group
actively supports the development of education in poverty-stricken
areas and encourages its employees to serve the community as
volunteers.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYEE

China Lesso recognises employees as one of its most important
assets. In strict compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group protects the legitimate rights and interests
of its employees and fixes on its pay system based on the principles
of legality, equity, fairness and encouragement so as to ensure an
equal access to fair treatment and career opportunities. In addition,
the Group has formulated its own health and safety policies,
intensifies safety training for employees, carries out routine safety
patrols and actively pushes forward with relevant management
system building for the purpose of creating a safe working
environment for its employees, achieving a work-life balance for its
employees through diverse activities.

With great emphasis on career development of its employees,
the Group is committed to creating diversified and comprehensive
development channels for its employees by offering a series of
training programs and regular lectures on safety and health through
its own Lesso College.

CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER

China Lesso has strived to maintain uninterrupted communications
with its suppliers for win-win results based on the procurement
principles of fairness, openness and impartiality. The Group has
put in place a Supplier Management Code and conducts regular
performance evaluation of its suppliers. In addition, the Group has
formulated a management system, a reporting process and set up
a management team against malpractices in an effort to oversee
behaviors of all its employees and protect the interests and rights of
the Company and its shareholders. In respect of customer services
and management, the Group upholds the “market-oriented,
customer-centred” principle and with strict control over product
quality. The Group is committed to providing its customers with
safe, reliable and quality products.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Set out below are the report presented by the Board together with
the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 45, 17 and 18 respectively to
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of these activities, including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, the Group's environmental
policies can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
This discussion forms part of the Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 190.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK18 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
(the “"Proposed Final Dividend"”) to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 4 June 2018, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Friday, 25 May 2018 (the “2018 AGM"). It is expected that the
Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on Wednesday, 13 June 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE 2018 AGM
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 21 May 2018 to Friday, 25 May 2018, both
dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’'s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 May 2018.

AT REFSRENBEERAANEERE2017F
12A3VBILFENREZEAMBEHRE -

FEXBRREROE

RAFINMEFEEBAKREER -HZEWNBEA
A BEARIRAEEDENERFBTDRENE
AHMBHmERMELS - 17R18 - BRAMEZEKL
E—SiRkoNM(BEEHAESEEEREE
[EBe M TRHBER = 2 50im ~ ANEEFEB KRR
BRZIESINRAEBRRERE) AN [ EE®RE
E| [rEERREIL[EEEN®EIITIP
B - WHIwmERESEREZ B -

REARDE

KREBHZE2017F12A31 B IEFERE R LA
SEERNZAENMBARRENES2E190BMEE
BT IR TR A -

BEEEEZM2018F6 A48 (EH—)BHAR
AR AR FEIRSEZ=2017F12A318 1k
FEH R E TR 1878 (T K >R H5 A%
B ) HASBRERARF2018F5A25H (2
HR) G RITHREAFAS ([2018F R EE
FRE DHOEFAMEE - EHERRAHRELER
2018F6 A13B(BH=)Xft -

EERERDBFERFE

(A) BELFE2018ERRBEFEASIRE LR
ENERK
AAEBRREMENR2018F5821H(EH
—)&E2018F5A25H(EHA) (BEEEM
K)EFER  EHETEREARAQ ARG
BEELFE - BARBHFE2018FREE
FREVNEG EIREMNER - ANARPRDH
RELIFEABBRTER2018F5H18H
(28FR) TT4E300 AARRBRMDBEZE
ROE-BATREFELARAT (HuE
AEBETEFANEBRISIFASMALT7IE
1712-1716 %) —BEXFTBERMHBF RIKE
FAERAR 2 I BT o

Annual Report 2017 &%k b3



DIRECTORS' REPORT

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

(B) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED
FINAL DIVIDEND
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 31 May 2018 to Monday, 4 June 2018, both
dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
receive the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’'s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 May 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity
provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 13 to 35.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the
past five financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 3. The summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group’s major properties and property interests
are set out on pages 191 to 193.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 34 to consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,387 million (2016: RMB2,351
million). The amount of RMB1,906 million (2016: RMB1,906
million) represented the Company’s share premium which may be
distributable provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
4% of the Group's total turnover. The total purchase attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers was 41% of the Group's total
purchases and the purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 26 %.

At no time during the year did the directors, their close associates
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own
more than 5% of the Company’'s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interests in these suppliers or customers referred to
above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were
approximately RMB4.63 million (2016: RMB3.46 million).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Luo Jianfeng, Mr. Lin Dewei, Mr. Cheung Man Yu,
Ms. Lan Fang and Dr. Tao Zhigang are subject to retirement by
rotation at the 2018 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 7 to 11.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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Number and capacity of shares of the Company interested®

ARAREROBEREES

Percentage of
the issued share

Beneficial Interests of capital of
Name owner spouse Other interests Total the Company
EADRBET
®E BEREAA BEER HitpiE s e RANE D
Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L)  2,118,485,000 (L)®“ 2,120,793,000 (L) 68.36%
HE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)¢  2,118,485,000 (L)®  2,118,485,000 (L)@ 2,120,793,000 (L) 68.36%
EX%
Zuo Manlun 3,842,000 (L) S S 3,842,000 (L) 0.12%
Tt
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) - - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
BRE
Note: FisE -

(a)
(b)

(c)

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly-
owned by Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.)
Limited, as trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), the settlor of which
is Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“"Mr. Wong"). The discretionary beneficiaries of the
Trust included Mr. Wong and his family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping are taken to be interested in the said shares of the Company held by
the Trust under the SFO as directors of the Company.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr.
Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed
to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out in
note (b) above. Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is the spouse of Mr. Wong, and therefore Ms.
Zuo Xiaoping is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Wong is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Number of issued

BREZZRAERAEMBRRNVER R
02 )

MR2017F12A8318 » RAR B KD HABER G
PHRBEREZSFRIAEKOIFI6KEATFED
BT RENERIAENAL(RRARES
RITBABEBRIN DT

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares held® of the Company
BFENE &7 HARATEET
BEEE g1 LiEREA N =R e
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee® 2,118,485,000 (L) 68.28%
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited {Z5EA®
Xi Xi Development Interests of controlled 2,118,485,000 (L) 68.28%
corporation®
PR ERE PR EE R
New Fortune Beneficial owner® 2,118,485,000 (L) 68.28%
HEE EmEa AL
Note: FIEE -
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) T LIEZATRZEESNITE
(b) These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set  (b) ZERMER EX [EFRITRABENRRG - HERG

out in note (b) in the section headed "“Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on 14
May 2010 (the “Adoption Date"”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations and the summary of terms
of such Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 9 June 2010. No share options have been
granted, under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Eligible
Persons”) include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or
other employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or
similar position in any member of the Group, any full-time or part-
time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work
full-time or part-time for any member of the Group; (b) a director or
proposed director (including an independent non-executive director)
of any member of the Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of
any member of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of the
Group; and (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
300,000,000 Shares, representing 9.67% of the issued Shares as
at 31 December 2017. The maximum number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to any
on Eligible Persons (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period share not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
The subscription price in respect of the any particular option shall
be price as the Board may in its discretion determine at the time
of grant of the relevant option but the subscription price shall not
be less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the nominal value
of a Share; (b) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and (c) the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. An offer of the grant
of a share option shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible
Person concerned for a period of 28 days from the date of the
Board approving the grant of the share options (the “Offer Date")
provided that no such grant of an option may be accepted after
the expiry of the effective period of the Share Option Scheme. An
option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
the Company on or before the date upon which an offer of an option
must be accepted by the relevant Eligible Person, being a date not
later than 28 days after the Offer Date. Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company and any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group. New
Fortune (the “Controlling Shareholder”, being a company holding
approximately 68.28% of the issued share capital of the Company,
and is ultimately held by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong
Luen Hei, and the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and his family) has entered into a deed of non-competition in
favour of the Group with Mr. Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010
(the "Deed of Non-Competition").
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (Continued)

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted
by the Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of
Non-Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness
of the non-competition undertakings. The independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of
Non-Competition. Based on the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholder, the independent non-executive directors are of the
view that the Deed of Non-Competition has been complied with and
has been effectively enforced.

TRANSACTIONS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

LEASE AGREEMENTS

On 7 July 2017, Guangdong Lesso Home Corporate Planning Co.,
Ltd.* (the "Lessee”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, as lessee entered into the Block B lease agreement
with Foshan International Furniture Expo Mall Ltd.* (the “Lessor”),
pursuant to which the Lessor agreed to lease Floors 1-9, Block B,
Furniture Expo Mall, No. 189 Foshan Middle Avenue, Chancheng
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC (“Block B”) to
the Lessee for a term commencing from 7 July 2017 and ending on
31 December 2027.

On 7 July 2017, the Lessee as sub-lessee entered into the Block C
lease agreement with Guangdong Yuanhai Property Management
Services Ltd.* (the “Block C Sub-lessor”) and the Lessor, pursuant
to which the Block C Sub-lessor agreed to sublease Floors 1-9,
Block C, Furniture Expo Mall, No. 189 Foshan Middle Avenue,
Chancheng District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
(“Block C") to the Lessee for a term commencing from 7 July 2017
and ending on 31 December 2027.
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TRANSACTIONS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

LEASE AGREEMENTS (Continued)
Under the Block B and Block C lease agreements:

(i)

(iii)

during the renovation period from 7 July 2017 and ending
on 31 December 2017, rent shall be calculated on the basis
of RMB10 and RMB5 per sqg.m. per month respectively,
multiplied by the gross floor area of 166,587 sq.m. (but
deducting therefrom the gross floor area of the 9th floor until
its delivery) for the Block B and 129,138.26 sg.m. for the Block
C

the initial term from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31
December 2022, rent shall be calculated on the basis of
RMB50 and RMB25 per sg.m. per month respectively,
multiplied by the gross floor area of the Block B and Block C
(the “Basic Rent”) respectively; and

the second term from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31
December 2027, both Block B and Block C rents shall
comprise of: (a) the Basic Rent; and (b) the additional rent,
which means an amount per sg.m. per month (inclusive of tax)
not exceeding 60% of the amount calculated pursuant to the
formula listed on the Company’s announcement dated 7 July
2017, the Block B or Block C additional rent for the second
term shall not exceed RMB100 per sq.m. per month.

Details of this discloseable transaction can be found in the
Company’s announcement dated 7 July 2017.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

(A)

62

On 3 March 2014, the Company as borrower entered into
a facility agreement (the "Facility Agreement |"”) in relation
to a syndicated term loan facility in the amount of US$135
million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum
with, among others, Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
and CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. as mandated lead arrangers, and a
syndicate of nine lenders, for the purpose of refinancing the
Group's then existing financial indebtedness. The loan made
thereunder is repayable 36 months after the same has been
made.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

On 26 June 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a
facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement [I”) in relation
to a syndicated term loan facility in the amount of US$155
million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.20% per annum
with a syndicate of three lenders, independent licensed
banks in Hong Kong, for general corporate requirements
(including the refinancing of the Group's then existing financial
indebtedness). The loan made thereunder is repayable 42
months after the same has been made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement | and Facility Agreement
Il (collectively the “Facility Agreements”), save for additional
requirement that Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his family
(collectively, the “"Wong Family”) shall remain to have
effective management control over the Company set out
in the Facility Agreement |, the Facility Agreements require
that the Wong Family shall collectively maintain, directly or
indirectly, at least 55% of beneficial shareholding interest
in the issued share capital of the Company, carrying at least
55% of the voting rights, free from any security. Otherwise,
a lender shall not be obliged to fund the loans made under
the Facility Agreements, and the total commitments under
the Facility Agreements may be liable to be cancelled and
the outstanding loans with interest and all other amounts
accrued under the Facility Agreements or other related
financial documents may be due and payable to the lenders
immediately. The Facility Agreements were settled on 20
January 2017.

On 11 August 2016, the Company as guarantor and its
wholly-owned subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement Il1"”) in relation to
syndicated term loan facilities in the amount of US$600
million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.85% per annum
with syndicate lenders, independent financial institutions, for
general corporate requirements (including the refinancing of
the Group's then existing financial indebtedness). The loan
made thereunder is repayable 42 months after the same has
been made.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

64

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement Ill, Mr. Wong Luen Hei and
his family (collectively, the “Wong Family”) shall collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the
Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from
any security. Otherwise, a lender shall not be obliged to fund
the loan made under the Facility Agreement Ill, and the total
commitments under the Facility Agreement [ll may be liable
to be cancelled and the outstanding loan with interest and
all other amounts accrued under the Facility Agreement Ill or
other related financial documents may be due and payable to
the lenders immediately.

On 15 August 2017, the Company as guarantor (the
“Guarantor”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary as borrower
(the “Borrower”) entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement IV") in relation to syndicated term loan
facilities in the amount of HK$800 million at an interest rate
of HIBOR plus 1.55% per annum with syndicate lenders (the
“Facility”), for general corporate requirements (including
the refinancing of the Group's then existing financial
indebtedness). The loan made thereunder is repayable 36
months after the same has been made.

On 22 September 2017, the Guarantor and the Borrower
entered into a syndication and amendment agreement in
relation to the Facility Agreement IV (the “Amendment
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement, the
number of syndicate lenders have increased and the total
commitment under the Facility has increased to HK$1,350
million. Save for the aforesaid amendment and supplement,
all other major terms of the Facility Agreement remain in full
force and effect (including the Specific Covenants).
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement IV, Mr. Wong Luen Hei and
his family (collectively, the “Wong Family”) shall collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the
Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from
any security. Otherwise, a lender shall not be obliged to fund
the loan made under the Facility Agreement |V, and the total
commitments under the Facility Agreement |V may be liable
to be cancelled and the outstanding loan with interest and
all other amounts accrued under the Facility Agreement IV or
other related financial documents may be due and payable to
the lenders immediately (the “Specific Covenants”).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, certain of the related
party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to consolidated financial
statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and
satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of the non-
exempt connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
are summarised below:

(A) RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES

Background: On 30 December 2014, Guangdong
Liansu Technology (the “Lessee”) entered
into a lease agreement (the “Lease”)
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery (the
“Lessor”) whereby the Lessor leased its
certain plants erected on Lot G03-2-1, Daba
Industrial Estate of Longjiang Community
Residents’ Committee, Longjiang Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City, the PRC
(the "Property”) to the Group for use as
production facilities.

Under the Lease, the Lessee shall bear all
the third party costs, including electricity
and water charges. Since the related
utilities costs are charged by the relevant
government authorities on the Lessor,
the Lessee will reimburse the Lessor for
the same amount of utilities costs paid by
the Lessor (the "“Utilities Arrangement”).
For further details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on
30 December 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(A)

66

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES (Continued)

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

The land use right of the Property
owned by Guangdong Liansu Machinery
was later transferred to Foshan Star
Excel. Accordingly, Guangdong Lesso
Technology, Guangdong Liansu Machinery
and Foshan Star Excel entered into an
agreement in relation to transfer of rights
under the Lease on 5 June 2017 pursuant
to which Guangdong Liansu Machinery
agreed to transfer all its the rights and
obligations under the Lease to Foshan
Star Excel and Foshan Star Excel agreed
to assume all of the rights and obligations
in substitution for Guangdong Liansu
Machinery. No other terms of the Lease
has been amended. For further details,
please refer to the announcements made
by the Company on 5 June 2017 and 7 June
2017.

Particulars of the agreements are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Rental expenses paid to the Lessor.

Reimbursement of utilities costs charged
by the relevant government authorities on
the Lessor from the Lessee.

The Lease is for 36 months commencing
on 1 January 2015 and expiring on 31
December 2017. The related rents
payable by the Lessee to the Lessor was
RMB368,419 per month.

The reimbursable amount of utilities costs
was equal to the amount charged by the
relevant government authorities on the
Lessor.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(A)

(B)

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES (Continued)
Annual Cap
under the Lease: RMB4.4 million

Annual Cap
under Utilities
Arrangement: RMB18 million (for the year ended
31 December 2017)

Total consideration paid
for the year: RMB3.9 million (Lease)
RMB1.0 million (Utilities Arrangement)

PURCHASE OF MANUFACTURING EQUIPMENT

Background: On 30 December 2014, the Company
entered into a master equipment purchase
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”)
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery for 3
years commencing from 1 January 2015
and ending on 31 December 2017. For
details, please refer to the announcement
made by the Company on 30 December
2014.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
are disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:

Nature of transactions: Purchase of manufacturing equipment from
Guangdong Liansu Machinery.

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed any
quotation obtainable by the Group from
independent third parties.

Annual Cap: RMB140 million (for the year ended 31
December 2017)

Total consideration paid
for the year: RMB123 million
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

68

PURCHASE OF ELECTRONIC ACCESSORIES

Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration paid
for the year:

On 30 December 2014, the Company
entered into the original design
manufacturing (the “ODM") co-operation
agreement with Guangdong Liansu Electric
in relation to the ODM production co-
operation as regards manufacturing of
electronic accessories by Guangdong
Liansu Electric for the Group for 3 years
commencing from 1 January 2015 and
ending on 31 December 2017. For details,
please refer to the announcement made by
the Company on 30 December 2014.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Purchase of electronic accessories from
Guangdong Liansu Electric.

The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed any
quotation obtainable by the Group from
independent third parties.

RMB40 million (for the year ended 31
December 2017)

RMB28,000

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 R AR A T
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(D)

(E)

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 7 July 2017, Guangdong Lesso Mall, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
agreement with Lesso Hardware and Foshan Star Excel (the
latter being indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei
(the chairman of the Company, an executive Director and
the controlling Shareholder)), pursuant to which Guangdong
Lesso Mall has agreed to sell and Foshan Star Excel has
agreed to acquire (i) the Sale Interest, representing 75%
equity interest of Lesso Hardware; and (ii) the Sale Loan, at
the aggregate consideration of approximately RMB56 million,
out of which the consideration for the Sale Interest equaled
to RMB25 million and the consideration for the Sale Loan (as
of the calculation date on 30 June 2017) was approximately
RMB31 million which was further subject to adjustment. The
consideration of the Sale Loan was ultimately adjusted to
approximately RMB30 million. Lesso Hardware ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company at the end of reporting period. The
disposal of Lesso Hardware is a connected transaction and the
principle terms of this disposal have been set out in detail in
the Company’s announcement dated 7 July 2017.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Purchase of Machinery

Background: On 29 December 2017, the Company
entered into a framework machinery
purchase agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”) with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery for 3 years commencing from 1
January 2018 and ending on 31 December
2020. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on
29 December 2017.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
are disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(E) CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)
Purchase of Machinery (Continued)
Nature of transactions: Purchase of machinery from Guangdong
Liansu Machinery.

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed the
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB145 million (for the year ending 31

December 2018); RMB150 million (for
the year ending 31 December 2019); and
RMB150 million (for the year ending 31
December 2020)

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected transactions
during the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal commercial terms;
and (iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’'s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor issued an unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a
copy of the said letter to the Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 41 to
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the
Company and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
required under in the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company or any of its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company'’s
listed securities.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2018 AGM to re- appoint Ernst
& Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 19 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 AR E

EY::

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Lesso Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 82 to 190, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FHRFEZSEE@E)

Key audit matter

REEKER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

M EHERERSEE

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables

B 5N 5R R S1R 8 B (B

At 31 December 2017, the Group had trade and bills receivables
of RMB2,024,608,000, net of provision for impairment of
RMB145,061,000, which accounted for 7.2% of the total assets.
R20175F12A310 > EEEEZREURERERREEERARK
2,024,608,0007T * % EREERHK R EEEH AK%145,061,0007T
ZIEZEREE - (hBRBEREEENT.2% °

The determination as to whether trade and bills receivables are
impaired involves significant management judgement. Specific
factors which management would consider include the age of
the debts, existence of disputes, past collection history and
any other available information concerning the creditworthiness
of the counterparty. Management uses such information to
determine whether any objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for trade and bills receivables that are individually
significant, and individually or collectively for trade and bills
receivables that are not individually significant.
ETESHRNRIBRERERRESREXNEEREFIE - BE8HE
EXBEEBHEREK  SAFE4UH  BEERBEIAREMERE
FERBAZAIERZER - EREREA LMESREEREKR
NESRBRELRZEBRERSSFESERE - LEFHH KRG
FEBREANEFRBKEREBERESDFERTERE -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 26.
RERE SRR AR BB REH N HE2.4 - 3%26 -

Our audit procedures included among others:

BB ZRRFRE(ERRR)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Tested controls over the Group's
receivables collection processes;

B B 5= B 3 e ORI MR AR e B0 1
Evaluated the Group's assessment of the
provision for impairment at the end of
each reporting period by reviewing recent
transactions with those customers and
historical collection records;

FHEP RN S KBTERC ARG
S MERREEENRERETG
Discussed with management on the
significant estimation and subjectivity
involved in determining the impairment
provision and obtained evidence to
support the recoverability of the long
overdue receivables;
HERENRBEAERERENERST
fhEr R FENE - WIS HA FE WRkIa A] [l 4
MR R

Obtained direct external confirmations
for a sample of trade and bills receivable
balances; and

HE 5 RWHIA KRB A MEEIREE I
BB L &

Examined post year end cash receipts
for a sample of year-end trade and bills
receivable balances.

MRS FRESHRUKIEREBRRENRE
RIEHVERIBENR ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HRFEZEE@E)

Key audit matter

HRREEKER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

MEHERERSEE

Provision for impairment of inventories

FEBIERE R

At 31 December 2017, the Group had manufacturing and
trading inventories of RMB3,099,969,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB204,080,000, which represented 11.1% of
the total assets. The provision for impairment mainly related to
certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We focused on
this area because these inventories are material to the Group and
the provision for impairment of inventories involves a high level
of management’s judgement and estimate.

R2017F12A31H EXBEHERESFERABEAARK
3,099,969,0007T + #% AR EI{E /AR BLE R #5 A KR #204,080,0007T
B (MBREEREEMNI% - ZREREEZEENET
ARERFHEFEER - BMEREIZTEEERZEFTEHRE
SEEXEFERERBIREEERBHE AT -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 24.
RERE M REANRMABEREEH R WT2.4 - 3K%24 °

We evaluated, amongst others, the analyses
and assessments made by management
with respect to obsolete and slow-moving
inventories, including market values and
expected selling prices of the related
inventories and the Group’'s future plan of
usage or sale. We assessed the reliability of
the underlying data used by management
in calculating the manufacturing and trading
inventory provisions such as the inventory
ageing reports, by re-performing the ageing
calculation generated by the system. We also
tested the accuracy of the management’s
calculation by assessing the calculation
criteria and recalculating the provision. In
addition, we evaluated, based on a sample of
those inventories, the analyses performed by
management regarding the net realisable values
of those inventories.
BMZR(EGBE) BB AR LEHTE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HRFEZEE@E)

Key audit matter

REEKER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

M EHERERSEE

Valuation of investment properties

KREYFIEE

At 31 December 2017, the Group had investment properties
of RMB4,038,900,000, which represented 14.4% of the total
assets and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the
investment properties is important to our audit as it represents
a significant judgement area and is material to the total assets
of the Group. Management employed independent qualified
valuers to assess the fair value. The valuation of the investment
properties is highly dependent on a range of estimates made by
the management.

R2017F12A31H EEEREVEREERARE
4,038,900,0007C ' (h#EEEREEN14.4% W R AR BEFE -
HRREMERESRERHAGETHAREEEAEENEREK
o ZEEEERMEZFEER EEEEABLREERNMG
BRI AAEBE REVEMESERBREERBEL NS
o

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14.
RERE M EREANNEBREESHRWT2.4 - 3K%14 -

We considered the objectivity, independence
and expertise of the professional valuers. We
also compared property-related data used
as inputs for the valuations with underlying
documentation. In addition, we involved our
internal specialists to assist us in analysing
the valuations and reviewing the underlying
assumptions, such as the use of comparable
lands under the sales comparison approach.
We further focused on the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures relating to
the valuations of these investment properties.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B IZEE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kin Yu.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GLEEER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HfezmaE =R

HE2017F12A31HIEFE
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Wik AR®T R ARETT
REVENUE A 5 20,360,000 17,221,052
Cost of sales HEMK (15,043,217) (12,639,274)
Gross profit E7 5,316,783 4,581,778
Other revenue, income and gains A -~ g ks 5 568,650 138,021
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEREY (1,029,222) (821,557)
Administrative expenses THRX (938,241) (758,583)
Other expenses EiEx (732,914) (608,619)
Finance costs BEMK 6 (229,309) (107,061)
Share of results of associates DMEBE N EEE 17 (1,404)
Share of results of joint ventures DIHEENEEE 18 243 813
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR A 7 2,954,586 2,424,792
Income tax expense Fig RS 9 (688,779) (511,088)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 2,265,807 1,913,704
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)  Hft2EWE /(%)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to BT EnREEEaN
profit or loss: R :
Available-for-sale investments: AHRHERSE
Changes in fair value RNAEEE 219,589 24,236
Reclassification adjustments for gains BNGERE
included in consolidated statement of TABREANZ
profit or loss M
— gain on disposal - HEAZE (1,050) =
- gain on early redemption - REBRMEHE (39,071) =
179,468 24,236
Exchange differences on translation of foreign NEINERREER
operations BN ERE 197,143 (113,554)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) EREM2E
FOR THE YEAR Kz, (BAX) 376,611 (89,318)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR &R 2HEUGZ4EE 2,642,418 1,824,386
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2017 2016

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Wik ARETR AREFT
Profit attributable to; PAT (R F -
Owners of the Company ARBEBA 2,293,055 1,922,027
Non-controlling interests FEEl R (27,248) (8,323)
2,265,807 1,913,704
Total comprehensive income attributable to: PTG R ARG
Owners of the Company N/NCIE Z=DN 2,666,410 1,827,904
Non-controlling interests JEE R (23,992) (3,5618)
2,642,418 1,824,386
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO i ONSiE 2 =PN 3
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY SREF 1"
Basic and diluted BERREE RMB0.74 RMBO0.62
AR¥0.7470 AR#0.627T

Annual Report 2017 &%k 83



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B RR

As at 31 December 2017
20174128318

2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(i ARETR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRG 12 7,156,134 6,621,953
Prepaid land lease payments BN THAER 13 1,266,216 1,249,367
Investment properties REME 14 4,038,900 2,469,488
Deposits paid for the purchase of BE+i 9% BER
land, property, plant and equipment FEMEANES 1,024,497 549,919
Goodwill S 15 85,309 76,554
Other intangible assets HivmpEE 15 172,332 183,615
Interests in associates REFE R RIS 17 41,324 =
Interests in joint ventures REEPENES 18 9,024 7,988
Available-for-sale investments AfHERE 19 1,582,208 730,814
Held-to-maturity investments BEZIBRE 20 - 59,655
Loan receivables P &R 21 228,710 63,191
Other non-current assets HiIERBEE 22 150,591 37,623
Derivative financial instruments TEemI A 23 - 32,566
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 32 69,908 53,869
Total non-current assets ERBEERLE 15,825,153 12,136,602
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 24 3,227,742 2,747,065
Amounts due from customers for contract work — EWEFHA L TIRFUAE 25 269,239 163,279
Loan receivables P &R 21 561,206 325,764
Trade and bills receivables BHRBAERER 26 2,024,608 1,617,248
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BAT - Be REMEKZE 27 1,613,307 1,419,645
Cash and bank deposits e RRITER 28 4,452,370 3,885,683
Total current assets MENEEERE 12,148,472 10,058,684
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEENALTIERIE 25 101,555 40,049
Trade and bills payables B HRMNFERER 29 3,021,085 3,603,162
Other payables and accruals HibENFIEREFER 30 1,892,922 1,731,570
Tax payable PRI 180,973 94,957
Borrowings &= 31 2,877,256 4,252,154
Total current liabilities BB EER 8,073,791 9,721,892
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 4,074,681 336,792
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZEAERADAR 19,899,834 12,473,394
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2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE ARETR ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Borrowings B3 31 5,442,119 442,407
Other long-term payables Hib R HIER A 92,572 106,439
Deferred tax liabilities ELHBEAE 32 444,640 272,568
Deferred income Bt 33 137,012 114,308
Total non-current liabilities ERBAERE 6,116,343 935,722
Net assets BEFH 13,783,491 11,537,672
EQUITY Ex
Share capital [N 34 135,344 135,344
Reserves [ 35 13,354,571 11,096,165
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KABHE ARIGER 13,489,915 11,231,509
Non-controlling interests TS 293,576 306,163
Total equity e 13,783,491 11,537,672

Wong Luen Hei
=HEE
Director

EF

Luo Jianfeng

ged

Director

EBEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F12A31ALLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARBR AR
Available-
for-sale
investment  Exchange Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Capital ~ Merger revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve® reserve®™  reserve  reseve  reserve profits Total interests equity
itE
Ba  RERE el EAREY  SHER REELEE ENRBRE  RERY B FENER  BREE
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARETr ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2016 MOIGEIA18 135,080 1,922,887 1,156,712 5,250 5515 199 (30,726) 6673562 9,770,885 94,567 9,865,452
Profit for the year Eqh = > - - - - - 19007 192001 (8323 1913704
Other comprehensive expense Epit
for the year 2AAY - = o S - 223%  (118.359) - (N 4806 (89318
Total comprehensive income EnrEks
for the year b = = S = - 26 (118359 1,922,027 1827904 (3518 1,824,386
Capital contrbutons from FirlER
non-controling interests & - - - - - - - - - 10758 107528
Non-controlling interests arising from ~ EBAHETHEES
business combinations R - - - - - - - - - 107586 107586
Shares repurchased BERD (342 (17269 - - - - - (0s (2805) - (2808
Dividends recognised as distributions ~ EZERERANE
to owners note 10] s (HE0) - = = = - - - (339228 1339,228 - (339228
Appropriation to Statutory reserve ERTITRE - - 3313 e e e - (13313 e s s
At 31 December 2016 and R016512A31B R
1 January 2017 MMTEIA1E 135,344 1,905,618 1,389,801 5,250¢ HO1E 26,035 (149,085F 7912781F 11231509 306,163 11,537,672
Profit for the year Emah = = = S - - - 2093005 229305  (27.048) 2,265,807
Other comprehensive income Emit
for the year 20k - - - - - 179463 193887 - 373366 356 376611
Total comprehensive income EnrEks
for the year g = = S - - 179468 193887 229305 2,666,410 (23992) 2642418
Acquisition of non-controling inerests W FEERAliER - - -3 - - - O TN )]
Capital contrbutons from FnliER
non-controling interests L& - - - - - - - - - N 90
Non-controlling interests arising from ~~ EBAKECHEES
business combination (note 37) bR - - - - - - = = s 1,389 1,389
Disposal of subsidaries HERERA - - - - - - - - - 3
Dividends recognised as distributions ~ EZZERERANE
1o owners nots 10) REREH0) = = i = - - - 1288 (288 - nosg
Aopropriation to statutory reserve gRniTaR - - 288213 - - - - 88213 - - -
At 31 December 2017 R017E12A31H 135,344 1,905,618" 1,678,004 8534¢ 5515F 205,703 44,802 9506335F 13489915 293576 13,783,491

# These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB13,354,571,000 (2016: #
RMB11,096,165,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Note:

(a)

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC, each of the Company’s
subsidiaries registered in PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in PRC to the
statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration
and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the
acquisition of non-controlling interests.

s -

(b)

BEFEARE  ARFRPEEMSHMBRRR
B EREPEARE S RANETE N F ARG
(BB EMBEFEEREK) MO%BEERE B
EREEHERETEIMEARMNB0% ML  EEREEA
RAREHBEFEBRIIEE  EATRBOBRT AR
TRIREMEARR25% °

ARFREEREA B IERIE R R E R EER
BFEERAEIMNER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F12A31HIEFE
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BiE AR¥TR AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R TE
Profit before tax: BREASER - 2,954,586 2,424,792
Adjustments for: RUTERELHE -
Interest income M BUE 5 (90,785) (61,591)
Government grants released BB ARHT B (3,982) (1,905)
Gain on fair value changes of BEMENLEBEES 5
investment properties hl (327,313) (31,885)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEE 5
investments REMEHE (1,050) =
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity HERFEHH 5
investments REMGEMNR (3,315) =
Gain on early redemption of REBRAHIDE 5
available-for-sale investments REMGEHR (39,071) =
Gain on early redemption of REBOBEZHH 5
held-to-maturity investments KRB - (206)
Investment income BB 5 (2,694) (5,781)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Flm 5 (2,141) =
Interest expenses FEREY 6 229,309 107,061
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 7 646,822 593,366
Write-down of inventories to MREFEZAEREE 7
net realisable value, net i 61,843 50,445
Loss on disposal of items of other intangible assets ~ HEHMELEENDE - HiFE 7
and property, plant and equipment REHENER 15,144 7,309
Changes in fair value of TEEBTAARER 7
derivative financial instruments g 31,575 (1,942)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 0¥ - BEREERE 7 - 15,467
Impairment of trade receivables, net B SRR RE TS 7 25,268 30,227
Share of results of associates AEBE DR EE 17 1,404 5
Share of results of joint ventures NEEELEEE 18 (243) (813)
3,495,357 3,124,544
Increase in other non-current assets Hib3EmEEEL M (112,968) (6,718)
Increase in inventories EEEm (597,026) (584,597)
Increase in amounts due from EREFHAHIENE
customers for contract work Bl (105,960) (99,394)
Increase in loan receivables JE U AE FRIE AN (400,961) (305,955)
Increase in trade and bills receivables E) LG SES S (585,273) (69,434)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BT BEREMREK
other receivables RIBIEA (162,834) (595,385)
Increase in amounts due to EREFMAHIRNE
customers for contract work 0 61,506 14,661
(Decreaselfincrease in trade and bills payables BIEMTERZE(RD) /M (546,494) 1,847,009
Increase in other payables and accruals HA (I FIE R AT B R 205,350 8,573
Increase in other long-term payables HioREEAFURL N 12,164 10,000
Increase in deferred income EEUESIE 26,686 21,981
Cash generated from operations ReEANBRS 1,289,547 3,365,285
Bank interest received BUERTHI S 82,378 55,391
Corporate income tax paid ERNTEMER (444,885) (456,408)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETYHERLTREFE 927,040 2,964,268
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2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(i3 ARETR AREFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BEW% - BERBREEE (1,472,510) (1,066,984)
Proceeds from disposal of items of RELEEMELEEMN

other intangible assets and property, WE  BERREELN

plant and equipment PS8 3UR 15,169 8,767
Additions to prepaid land lease payments B LA EFEM (26,218) (115,112)
Additions to investment properties BEMELM (1,452,169) (1,810,124)
Additions to other intangible assets HE By EELN (5,692) (2,658)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B A Al 37 (10,103) (183,745)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries KEHEWBA 23,346 -
Additions to associates 1PN T&éi‘bﬂ (42,728) =
Additions to joint ventures AERERELN (6,787) =
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHLERE (854,550) (649,197)
Proceeds from disposal of HEHRHERE

available-for-sale investments FTIS R 30,225 -
Proceeds from early redemption of Tm?ﬁ‘“’@—mﬁﬁ%&ﬁ

available-for-sale investments FTB A 28,073 =
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BERERIHKRE (6,802) -
Proceeds from disposal of HERARIHRE

held-to-maturity investments PS8 3UR 34,550 -
Proceeds from early redemption of RPBEHATHSNE

held-to-maturity investments FTg3CA = 6,970
Purchases of derivative financial instruments BEMESMIA - (29,211)
Investment income received BUiE & W 2,694 5,781
Interest received from available-for-sale investment BRIt &R EHF & 3,291 =
Interest received from held-to-maturity investments 2 Uit5A E3IEH AT 2 3,294 6,286
Contingent consideration paid for ELGLEG

the acquisition of subsidiaries HANRE (32,000) =
Proceeds from assignment of rights of receivables i EN IR A5 518 29,937 =
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash RRHR SR (L) 40,614 (177.192)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REGHMAREREFHE (3,698,366) (4,006,419)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEITH
New bank borrowings raised HERITIER 9,771,894 2,802,008
Repayment of bank and other loans BEETREMER (5,790,147) (1,565,154)
Loans from non-controlling interests R ER - 12,000
Repayment of loans from non-controlling interests &8sl ER - (61,617)
Payment for repurchase of shares, including expenses EZH[EE%HXT%#AIE(@E%?Z) - (28,052)
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests  FFiEHI#Ez HE 39,073 107,528
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WeBE Il e o (2,700) >
Interest paid EAFE (211,453) (97,434)
Dividends paid Eﬁ%% (411,288) (339,228)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEZBMERENEEFR 3,401,379 830,051
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERFLESEMEM/ (HD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS B 630,053 (212,100)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ FHRRE MBS EHEN 3,070,458 3,255,511
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MK e 2 ‘@JE’J%; et (22,752) 27,047
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXRNBERES

END OF THE YEAR ZEY 3,677,759 3,070,458
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HERBEEEIN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERDW
Time deposits with original maturity of THER(REHRA=EA 28

three months or less when acquired FAT) 102,539 238,570
Cash and bank balances Re RiR1THEH 28 3,575,220 2,831,888

3,677,759 3,070,458
Annual Report 2017 &%k 89



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a M B RAR M E

2.1

90

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands. The addresses of its registered office
and principal places of business are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 45, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, certain available-for-sale investments and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iii)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.1 WMEEE )

REEE(H)
HARRERXERERELIRNREHRKS
B RNELERN - AAKERFEER
BHALREHROENE - @ E—U)H
REERIBN - B4

() BHEREHREOEEFAEANGOL

S
- /i

(i) HEMEHNTHMELENERN @ &
(i) ARENRZELBERTE

P /88 X B O B 5 SRk Tt B AN R B AR R ) 3R
SHERA BN EFHBORAER - HEBAR
MEERAEERSEGNEES BEESA
R WHEBGA NREEZIEHIEZILER
Bk -

BahEME2EKENS Y BBRARE
A ANFE IR o B SO G#a
MR B - IERRNEEREART
BEBNARREE A RIHEH#E -

WMEFRE WBRARNVBHRREIELH
B UEESHABRARKENGHRE—
B FIARAREKBRRIZANR ZHE
MEBARRHEEERAE « #at - e -
AxkReRECEFARERTHREHE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B SRR M

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

92

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for
the first time for the current year's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of the
Scope of HKFRS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 12 included in
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these consolidated financial
statements. Disclosure has been made in note 44 to the
financial statements upon the adoption of amendments to
HKAS 7, which require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

P woN =

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Leases?

Insurance Contracts?®

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15!

Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28’

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Mandatory effective date not yet determined
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94

(Continued)

Other than as further explained below, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of the new and revised HKFRSs
above will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the disclosure.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected
impacts relate to the classification and measurement and the
impairment requirements and are summarised as follows:

(A) CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification
and measurement of its financial assets. It expects
to continue measuring at fair value all financial assets
currently held at fair value. Equity investments
currently held as available-for-sale will be measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
as the investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to apply
the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in
other comprehensive income for the equity investments
cannot be recycled to profit or loss when the
investments are derecognised.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs
(Continued)

(B)

IMPAIRMENT

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or
a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses that
are estimated based on the present values of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply the
general approach and record twelve-month expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the possible
default events on its other receivables within the next
twelve months. Upon the initial adoption of the standard,
no material impact is expected on the provision for
impairment of its trade and other receivables.
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(Continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of
the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard.

The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements only to contracts that are not completed
before 1 January 2018. The Group expects that the transitional
adjustment to be made on 1 January 2018 upon initial
adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material. During 2017, the
Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
the adoption of HKFRS 15.

The Group’s principal activities consist of manufacture and
sale of building materials and interior decoration products; the
provision of renovation and installation works, environmental
engineering and other related services, financial services
and property rental and other related services. Based on the
assessment performed, the adoption of HKFRS 15 will have
no significant financial impact on the Group, but volume of
disclosures required in the Group's financial statements will
increase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associates
or joint ventures, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint ventures.

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION (Continued)
The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint

operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group will perform its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract asset, deferred tax assets
and financial assets), the asset’'s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(ili)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements

Not depreciated
2.3% to 5%
9% to 19%
9.5% t0 32.3%

9.5% t0 32.3%
Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other
assets under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Patents and proprietary technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL) (Continued)
Brand name and operating concession rights

Brand name and operating concession rights with indefinite
useful lives acquired are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are not amortised. The useful life of such an asset
should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite should be accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount with its carrying amount (a) annually, and
(b) whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired.

LEASES

Finance leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and
initial direct costs is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as loan receivables. Any unguaranteed
residual value is also recognised at the inception of the lease.
The difference between the sum of the minimum lease
payment receivables, initial direct costs, the unguaranteed
residual value and their present value is recognised as
unearned finance income. Unearned finance income is
recognised over the period of the lease using the effective
interest rate method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The subsequent measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities depends on their
classification.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument
or financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income or expense is recognised on an effective
interest method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss when the financial assets are either held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity

investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as (a) financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) loans and
receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

24 TESHHEME @)

@I A(H)

%Eﬂﬁé(ﬁ)

B R

Bk s IEF%%IE‘JZTEEEH*“
1B 72 7% BB Th 35 3t & R (E Zilimiimﬁé
E o BN EYGRIBIA B IR RO R 8 85K
RBAEFRER R E -

H B aE E A B A ROR MR - MR IR
IR - AEERZMBELTEK -

ARG ET A E

AhESREEREERTHEERRE
DER/EQERABEFABSZEHEE
() FAEEFNHIRE ¢ ) ERKLERKIEA
ZIHVTEECREE -

REEFMBECHIBATIHEECMEE
ERERM S LR B REFEFNS
WEBKREARBEE - At u”l'%f”r‘%g
REERAERMNREH;E 2 Bl
HEEREREZRE %?ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁz
HREBEmTER - JHEES ﬁﬂé{?ﬁﬁ@fﬁ
ZEMBE IR EMEEREFRER LR
TR EREEHFEEET - EREW
HE SR T LR ER - LRI R A H
HEREEHBERT 2 RFTRERERNE

bR Y =Eal

A ERER B 2 B AR B ELE
B I HESZ RS A 4B 25 P BERR ©

Annual Report 2017 &%k 111



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B SRR M

24

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains
and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortised cost of the monetary assets. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income continues
to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of
the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through profit or loss if the subsequent increase
in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss when the financial liabilities are
either held for trading or they are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’'s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Manufacturing and trading

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Property development

Cost comprises land costs, construction costs, borrowing
costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable to
such properties incurred during the development period.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of cash management.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b) contract revenue from the renovation and installation
work on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy “Construction
contracts” below;

(c) income from financial service includes handling fee
income from factoring services and supply-chain
financing services, finance lease income and related
interest income:

(i) handling fee income from factoring services and
supply-chain financing services, when the relevant
services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income, over the period of lease, as
further explained in the accounting policy “Leases”

above;

(iii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method as explained in note (f).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(d) income from environmental engineering and related
services includes environmental construction work,
sewage treatment and related services:

(i)  contract revenue from environmental construction
on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy “Construction
contracts” below;

(i) income from sewage, hazardous wastes treatment
and related environmental protection services,
when the relevant services have been rendered.

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(f)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and
incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct
materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue from a fixed price
construction contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative
to the estimated total cost of the relevant contract, except
where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be
measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that is probably recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as amounts due from customers for contract work.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is treated as amounts due to customers for contract
work.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group's employees participate in various defined contribution
plans and state-management retirement benefit plans in
the countries in which the Group operates. Payments to
these plans, where the Group's obligations under them are
equivalent to a defined contribution plan, are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Share option scheme

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of options is recognised as an expense and
credited to share option reserve under equity. For grant of
share options, the total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options at the date on which they are granted by using a
binomial model, excluding the impact of any service condition
and non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become vested.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the Group's profit or loss
and makes a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period. When the options are exercised, the
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (at nominal value) and share
premium.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS
Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted
from equity when they are declared and approved by the
Company's shareholders in general meetings. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are
declared and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the
Company.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company’s functional currency is HK dollar while the
Company's presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements is Renminbi. In preparing the financial
statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into Renminbi using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of the operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 R AR A T

24 TESHHEME @)

ShEE (D
ERER CENEZRIRESAHEANES
R - AT RIEGISN :

s ERAMAREECERZIEREEZI
KREEELAZBARE/INEREZN
BRARZ HEE - [EXEZEFAZRS
BEZKA

. HAETHMERIHELEE:
R

s RUSEN-EBIEKZERIAR
[EXZH BEASEE  BERE
ZAIBEME TR AR - R RBINEBIRE
FRZ — D LHRRE MR E K
SmERRNEEERAERAELSS

Mo BREEE -

IEREAVBRERME - ARBIEINES
ZEENAE BEBRSHREAEXRBE
BARY - WA RPN THERKRE o
PEAELZR(E) IRt 2E R

R WREFFIIAR L 2 ELREREEET
(REE BRI b)) -

M EGINETREE - 3D A AJE(LEZ
EBMRERANRT 2 MEESZEETH

BEBHE -

BB R EIN RIS MIER 2 ] @R & & Kk
BErARZBHERAABEAR  SRER
BN EBZEERARE  WREREHAR
ZEREXRGBE  ELXVEREZRNHEME
U s FERR



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

JUDGEMENT

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on
certain profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated
and distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider
that the timing of the reversal of the related temporary
differences can be controlled and such temporary differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the
PRC are considered to be repatriated and distributed by way
of dividends, the deferred income tax charge and deferred
income tax liability would have increased by the same amount
of approximately RMB275,791,000 (2016: RMB263,925,000).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill, brand name and operating
concession rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives
are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which the goodwill, brand name and operating concession
rights are allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimation of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. At the end of the reporting
period, the carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and
operating concession rights were RMB85,309,000 (2016:
RMB76,554,000), RMB110,520,000 (2016: RMB110,520,000)
and RMB24,550,000 (2016: RMB24,550,000), respectively.
Further details are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's provision policy for doubtful debts is based on the
ongoing evaluation of the collectability and aging analysis of
the outstanding receivables and on management’'s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of the Group’s customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional impairment may be required. At
the end of the reporting period, an accumulated impairment
loss of RMB145,061,000 (2016: RMB121,030,000) has been
recognised for trade receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Group reviews the aging analysis of its inventories at
the end of each reporting period, and makes provision for
obsolete and slow moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use/sale. Management estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. At
the end of the reporting period, an accumulated provision for
obsolescence of RMB204,080,000 (2016: RMB142,237,000)
has been recognised for inventories.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, management determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making
its judgement, management considers information from a
variety of sources, including (i) independent valuations; (ii)
current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition and location (or subject to different leases
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (iii)
recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the dates of transactions that occurred at those prices;
(iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) from
external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

Details of the judgement and assumptions involved in
determining the fair value of the Group's investment
properties have been disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of building materials and interior decoration products; the
provision of renovation and installation works, environmental
engineering and other related services, financial services and
property rental and other related services. For management
purposes, the Group's businesses are organised by
geographical areas based on the location of the customers
and assets are attributable to the geographical unit based on

the

location of the assets. The Group has eight reportable

operating segments as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province
and Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu
Province and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(viii) Outside China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
changes in fair value of investment properties, changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments, gain on disposal
of available-for-sale investments, gain on disposal of held-to-
maturity investments, gain on early redemption of available-
for-sale investments, gain on early redemption of held-to-
maturity investments, investment income, gain on disposal
of subsidiaries, exchange differences, finance costs, share of
results of associates and joint ventures and other unallocated
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interests in
joint ventures, available-for-sale investments, held-to-maturity
investments, derivative financial instruments, deferred tax
assets, cash and bank deposits and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived
from its operations in mainland China, special administrative
regions of PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDIWER )
(Continued)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BZE2017F12A3MBLEENKRE DI
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 '8
Southern ~ Southwestern Central Eastern Northern  Northwestern  Northeastern Outside
China China China China China China China China  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
] EELE £t ER £ ELHE RIHE REEN it &a
RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ING A ABETR AEBTR ARBTR AEETR ABETR AEBTR AEETR AEETR AEETR
Segment revenue: APRA
Sale of goods HEER 11,104,426 2,104,769 2,209,365 1,216,465 1,335,757 738,822 459,715 691,447 - 19,860,766
Contract revenue from renovation and - £ RZETE
installation works AA 206,688 - - - 4979 - - - - 211,667
Income from environmental engineering B35 T2 Rt
and other related services EBRELE 142,614 10,465 16,531 1,041 - 7,258 147 - - 184,062
Financial senvice income 2R RBLE 41,219 24 5,010 1m - 7 - - - 46,722
Property rental and other related NERER
senvices AfpEERE 25,692 - - - - - - 31,091 - 56,783
Revenue from external customers SFRPIA 11,520,639 2,115,528 2,230,906 1,223,684 1,340,736 746,107 459,862 722,538 - 20,360,000
Intersegment revenue AHERA 3,204,044 401,203 458,408 251,179 277,039 131,722 85,656 769,045 (5,668,296) -
Total At 14,814,683 2,516,731 2,689,314 1,474,863 1,617,775 871,829 545,518 1,491,583 (5,668,296) 20,360,000
Segment results 3,824,375 650,157 730,184 253,243 397,662 186,325 126,660 156,614 (1,008,437) 5,316,783
Reconciliations:
Interest income 90,785
(Gain on fair value changes of
investment properties 321,313
Loss on fair value changes of
derivative financial instruments (31,575)
Gain on disposal of availableforsale  HETHAERE
investments itz 1,050
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity  t EHEZE|HHE
investments FiEfE 3315
(Gain on early redemption of available-  REEETHLE
for-sale investments 39,01
Investment income 2,694
(Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 2141
Exchange gain 23483
Finance costs (229,309)
Share of results of associates (1,404)
Share of results of joint ventures %3
Unallocated income and expenses (2590,004)
Profit before tax 2,954,586
Segment assets 11,826,279 1,308,387 1,292,621 1,003,422 752,991 597,638 421,162 4,609,691 - 21,818,791
Reconciliations:
Interests in associates 41,34
Interests in joint ventures REERENER 9,04
Avalable-for-sale investments L ERE 1,582,208
Deferred tax assets 69,908
Cash and bank deposits 4,452,370
Total assets 21,973,625
Other segment information: EtAHER
Write-down of inventories to HaGEZUEE
net realisable value, net ] 57,066 (132) (575) 2191 185 4 (46) 3,150 - 61,843
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE 365,901 62,936 62,202 46,395 40,186 34,230 19,092 15,880 - 646,822
Impairment of trade receivables, net  2HEUFERETE 12,128 - (5,551) 148 509 (923) 1286 11,611 = 25,268
Capital expenditure® BRER 762,280 140,004 66,433 118,244 34,182 24,969 13017 1,373,463 (15,487) 2,517,165
L/ Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # BRI BIEAEYE  BENLERE BN LM

equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties and

other intangible assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESTJTER )
(Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR HZE2016F12A83MHLEEENRE DI
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 =%
Southem  Southwestern Central Eastern Northemn  Northwestern  Northeastem QOutside
China China China China China China China China ~ Eliminations  Consolidated
- FELE b 25 54 EliE TR REEH i G4

RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RAMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOD  RMB'00D
ABETn  ARETm \RETn ARETR ARETm  ARETm ARETm ARETm ARETR  ARETR

Segment revenue: HUA
Sale of goods HEER 10,082,151 1,561,330 1,712,343 1,064,953 1,062,288 562,002 371,154 535,436 - 16,941,657
Contract revenue from renovation  £ERZETE

and installation works AHBA 118,180 - 881 - - - 382 - - 119,443
Income from environmental engineering F3E T12 R E 1R

and other related services Rk 81,161 10,779 7,941 1,728 21,991 8922 532 - - 133,054
Financial service income SBRENE 26,898 = = = = = = = = 26,898
Revenue from external customers  SMEFZFIA 10308390 1,572,109 1721165 1,086,681 1,074,219 570,924 372,068 535,436 - 17,001,082
Intersegment revenue PEERA 2,397 464 360,909 441,075 133,941 167,401 109,249 94,902 591,967 (4,296,908 S
Total At 12,705,854 1,933,018 2,162,240 1,200,622 1,241,680 680,173 466,970 1,127,403 (4,296,908) 17,221,052
Segment results paE 3,349,344 534,107 626,430 239,738 325,786 143,524 99,768 86,290 (823,229) 4,581,778
Reconciliations: i
Interest income e 61,591
(Gain on fair value changes of REMENLEE

investment properties 29l 31,885
(Gain on fair value changes of fTESBIANAER

derivative financial instruments &7 1,942
(Gain on early redemption of REEOBAZEE

held-to-maturity investments REREHR 206
Investment income petie 5,781
Exchange loss EXFE (17,614)
Finance costs BERK (107,061)
Share of result of ajoint venture ~ HE-HALNEEE 813
Unallocated income and expenses A ABMERER 2,134,529)
Profit before tax BHAER 2,424,792
Segment assets AHEE 9,850,734 1,140,737 1,048,774 867,512 726,365 581,190 420,668 2,788,731 - 17,4241
Reconciliations: 8%
Interest in a joint venture R-HABLENER 7,988
Avallable-for-sale investments THEERE 730814
Held-to-maturity investments BETIMNE 59,655
Derivative financial instruments 448 TA 32,566
Deferred tax assets BRENEEE 53,869
Cash and bank deposits BERENER 3,885,683
Total assets EEaE 22,195,286
Other segment information: B2 HER:
Write-down of inventories to WEFEENERAE

net realisable value, net e 21,693 365 431 4,361 8 (121) 10,730 12,908 - 50,445
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 321,449 57,461 64,224 40,383 36,858 37,202 22,249 13,540 - 593,366
Impairment of trade receivables, net 2 W UE R EFHE 30,087 S 274 = 1,086 - (1,675) 455 - 30,227
Impairment of property, VER 6

plant and equipment i - - - 15,467 - - - - - 15,467
Capital expenditure* ARER 1,658,042 121,701 42,506 76,731 45,807 23,588 24,642 1,597,381 (20,900) 3,569,498

E Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and  * BEARTBREAEME  BEKRH BEHLwHEE
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties and R REMEREMELEE -
other intangible assets.
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REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - HBWA - Wzm kA=
GAINS
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR¥ET T
Revenue A
Sale of goods HEEM 19,860,766 16,941,657
Contract revenue from renovation and RENLTRTZ
installation works B XA 211,667 119,443
Income from environmental engineering IRIE TR R E iR RS
and other related services PR 7% W 2= 184,062 133,054
Financial services income % Bh AR 5 Wi e 46,722 26,898
Property rental and other related services YA E & E A AR AR5 56,783 -
20,360,000 17,221,052
Other revenue, income and gains Halg A - SR Fi=
Bank interest income RITH Bl = 82,378 55,391
Interest income from available-for-sale A ERENFE
investments W= 6,822 -
Interest income from held-to-maturity BFEZEHIEENFE
investments g 1,585 6,200
Total interest income T B R 5E 90,785 61,591
Government grants and subsidies BR AT # Bh M /i B 30,173 16,118
Gain on fair value changes of investment HEYERAEE
properties BEA 5 327,313 31,885
Gain on fair value changes of derivative TESRMTIAAREE
financial instruments FEHm - 1,942
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale PERHLERERSF
investments Tz 1,050 -
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity HeERAE R HIRERS
investments Fllzs 3,315 -
Gain on early redemption of available-for-sale R2ZE R Al HEKE
investments Fris M & 39,071 =
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity 31EFEEIEEEFHIHE
investments Fris Mz - 206
Investment income 2B RS 2,694 5,781
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR FZE 2,141 -
Exchange gain P& 5, T %% 23,483 =
Others HAith 48,625 20,498
568,650 138,021

Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding
received from government authorities to support certain of
the Group’s research and development activities. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants
and subsidies.
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BERAX
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Interest expenses on bank and other loans  #R7T R Hith EZH N B 231,920 108,781
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI A (2,611) (1,720)
229,309 107,061
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBEADZEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBRIBR T AR &8 (Gt A) T3
(crediting): RIB{BEDN ©
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B &E AR¥TR AREF T
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAR 14,653,632 12,413,090
Direct cost of renovation and installation works #{& & %28 T2 B A 190,030 105,569
Direct cost of environmental engineering and &35 T18 M b HRAARIE
other related services BEKAK 108,249 70,170
Direct cost of financial services BRI E AN 2,351 -
Direct cost of property rental and other MEHE R EMBERS
related services BERA 27,112 -
Write-down of inventories to net realisable  #iBFSZE A&7
value, net FEEFE 61,843 50,445
Depreciation e 12 603,560 553,375
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B{< + 3t i & ol i 13 26,867 25,227
Amortisation of other intangible assets HinEF EEEE 15 16,395 14,764
Total depreciation and amortisation FEREHEERE 646,822 593,366
Minimum lease payments under operating T RIEFLLHER
leases in respect of land and buildings ®EEE 58,861 40,794
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR 2 B 7,131 5,665
Employee benefit expense (including EERNRAX(BEES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): HE (Fi3E8)) -
Wages and salaries I&RF® 740,048 574,465
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFHEIf R 74,611 59,449
Staff welfare and other expenses BIRAFEMAS 61,445 53,973
876,104 687,887
Research and development costs R A 641,354 514,024
Loss on disposal of items of HEHMELEE
other intangible assets and ME - BEKREERE
property, plant and equipment R EE 15,144 7,309
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1% - BE R 2 ERE 12 - 15,467
Changes in fair value of investment properties % &% A n EEEH 14 (327,313) (31,885)
Changes in fair value of derivative financial ~ {T4 4@ T ERAR(EBE
instruments o 31,575 (1,942)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARFMR (2,141) -
Impairment of trade receivables, net B o RWIEREFE 26 25,268 30,227
Net rental income He W8 (1,407) (1,170)
Foreign exchange differences, net BN S (23,483) 17,614
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8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMRIBRSHFMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (A) EEHH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed RIEERA TR EEB R TIEME
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong BZFRNESEHWESZWOT -

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETIT

Fees we 3,095 3,089
Other emoluments: i 3 B

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #F & ~ B R EDEF 5,004 4,756

Performance related bonuses RIBEMNTEAT 4,990 5,040

Pension scheme contributions BIREET IR 323 313

10,317 10,109

13,412 13,198
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8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMRIOEBESHFMESm)
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEHM(E)
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out LREEMHNEY T ¢
below:
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
¢ EZHR RAHH Bk S8
ne BER A & st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2017 ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Wong Luen Hei EBELE - 624 576 16 1,216
Mr. Zuo Manlun EmREE - 614 536 38 1,238
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EXERT - 624 576 16 1,216
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEREE - 600 600 4 1,241
Mr. Kong Zhaocong KB E - 600 600 M 1,241
Mr. Chen Guonan BBl L& 624 = 576 27 1,227
Dr. Lin Shaoquan HL2ET - 1,306 300 17 1,623
Mr. Huang Guirong HEERE - 600 600 m 1,31
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRELE 624 - 576 16 1,216
1,248 4,968 4,990 323 11,529
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Lin Dewei WEELE 437 36 - - 473
Independent BIEHT
non-executive directors: EE .
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEERE 282 - - - 282
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan ~ FEIZ %4 282 = = = 282
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RXFEAE 282 - - - 282
Ms. Lan Fang Bruat 282 - - - 282
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEREL 282 - - - 282
1,410 - - - 1,410
3,095 5,004 4,990 323 13,412
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A)

138

8. EE¥FMRIBERSHFMES @)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) ESHM(E)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e BHR RO RAREsE
e ENER fE4 R @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2016 ARBTTL ARBFTT ARETT ARBTTT ARETT
Executive directors: HITES .
Mr. Wong Luen Hei HEEERE - 616 584 15 1,215
Mr. Zuo Manlun TWREE - 596 604 32 1,232
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EXSRT - 616 584 15 1,215
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEHLE - 600 600 41 1,241
Mr. Kong Zhaocong kLA - 600 600 4 1,241
Mr. Chen Guonan IREIR 5 A 616 - 584 26 1,226
Dr. Lin Shaoguan HH2EL - 1,128 300 17 1,445
Mr. Huang Guirong HEALE - 600 600 111 1,311
Mr. Luo Jianfeng i3t 616 - 584 15 1,216
1,232 4,756 5,040 313 11,341
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Lin Dewei WEEEE 467 - - - 467
Independent BuFEHT
non-executive directors: BE:
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEERAE 278 - - - 278
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan ~ FEZ %4 278 - - - 278
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RXFhE 278 - - - 278
Ms. Lan Fang Bruat 278 - - - 278
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEREL 278 - - - 278
1,390 - - - 1,390
3,089 4,756 5,040 313 13,198
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8.

9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8.

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2016: Nil).

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The Group's five highest paid employees during the year
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.

EEFMREERSHFMES @)

(A) ESHM(E)
BMEEENEXRAIRETAML -
AN S5 8 IR 48 /S w B hn B AR SR B s A
MBAREEE R ERRERMEMRE
EXfEABE -

FAMBECNREN THEILFENTE
EHEMEMBE (20165 : &)

(B) ZLEREFMESR
FR-AKEIEESFMNEEAR
B -REAZFEFOHESFBEH
P EXXHEEES(A) ©

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEHiRAX
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARETTT
Current tax BVEARR 18

PRC B 559,945 471,713
Other jurisdictions E bRl ARE R 5 421
559,950 472,134

Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE
PRC # (27,709) (26,641)
Deferred tax RERIA 156,538 65,595
Total tax charge for the year FAMIBBEE 688,779 511,088

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

The statutory rate of Hong Kong profits tax was 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2016: Nil).

REEARREERE A TR G ERAE G
FE M) A AR P A A R A R
ARG o

BHEANE
EAENEBHIRBETEELENMGE
AR A AR TER % 16.6% (20164 -
16.56% )7 8 - ERNAEERAFRAL H/AE
BREEEMAERTOGERN - B ERAFE
REBNSHERE (20165 « &) -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group’s income tax provision in respect of its operations
in mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rates on the taxable profits for both years, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Certain of the Group’'s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as
High and New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a
preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% during both
years.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has
been calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with
the prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B SRR M

Fri8 B8 X (@)

R EAREH
AEBEDREMEFENERTIEHN - AHE
MORAAE  RBRESAEE  ER
MERAERE AU E NSRS

AEEETFANBATHNAEAEES TS
MM A TR 5% ERLE
LR

S F A2 B BE
A EBRE M AR 2 BB B R DR A
£ BT R 2 AARERTE Pl
ARELE -

RAANRBIKED KB R R PTE RDAE R A
FE B &R S E RO A RO BR B BT A B9 B TR B 52
HRERR R EOR ARSI HENT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Profit before tax B 35 AT A 2,954,586 2,424,792
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax rate BRBEPEMSHE25%
of 25% FTEHNIA 738,647 606,198
Effect of tax concessions for certain ETHBATRIBEEEN
subsidiaries ga (260,497) (232,631)
Share of results of associates DG E DB ELE 351 -
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEEDEES (61) (203)
Income not subject to tax BAR WS (1,654) (2,179)
Expenses not deductible for tax NATHOF A 2 3,906 11,623
Tax losses utilised from prior years et AR BEFERIEEE (6,468) (6,930)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIAEE 109,641 61,168
Adjustments in respect of current tax of RBEFEFERBIED
prior years FE (27,709) (26,641)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the RN TR BB R A
distributable profits of the Company's A] 53R i AR5 % Uk
subsidiaries in the PRC TERATISHAS 132,623 100,683
Tax charge at the Group's BAEBEBRHRETEN
effective rate MmELH 688,779 511,088
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10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE

2017 2016
HK$ HK$’000 HK$ HK$'000
BT FET BT TFAT
per share per share
B &
2016 final dividend paid BEF2016F KRR B
(2016: 2015 final dividend (20164 : 242015
paid) FARAARE) 0.15 465,363 0.13 403,314
Equivalent to HER RMB411,288,000 RMB339,228,000
AR#411,288,0007T AR #339,228,0007T
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend RMEHRE  EFEZTEZE2017F12
of HK18 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December A3 LEFERNREAR S SR LB 18
2017 (2016: final dividend of HK15 cents in respect of the BII(2016%F « i E2016F 12 A31H L4
year ended 31 December 2016) per ordinary share has been BRI REIR BT @M 58) - A
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the BREREERERFAES AR - FEIK
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. fF o
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. XAREEAELEREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculations of the basic and the diluted earnings per BEATEEFEERERAREBSEF -
share are based on:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Earnings 2%
Profit attributable to owners of the Company st E &% B 7K 28 5% & FIRE
used in the basic and diluted earnings per BRIBNARARER A
share calculation FE(R R T 2,293,055 1,922,027
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

M. AR HEEAELERERN @)

Number of Shares

RBEHE
2017 2016

Shares BB

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &+& & & E AN & 855 2 F) i
of the Company in issue used in the basic RREMARFEETERR

and diluted earnings per share calculation INtEF 198

3,102,418,400 3,104,256,632

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 includes 3,102,418,400 ordinary shares in issue as at
31 December 2016 (2016: 3,110,255,400 ordinary shares in
issue as at 31 December 2015). The calculation for the year
ended 31 December 2016 has excluded 5,998,768 shares
derived from the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 7,837,000 ordinary shares which were repurchased during
that year.

The Group has no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in

issue during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
respectively.
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BAUETEEE2017F12A31BEFER
ERERABNHBROMNEFSE 2R
2016412 A 31 HE 8 47#93,102,418,400
i & i@ A% (20164 : 2015412 431 H
£ %% 17 #93,110,255,400 f% & 3@ A% ) o &
E2016F 12 A31 AL FEMZTE T
$ 5,998,768l X 7 + IR B 7% & A B fE #Y
7,837,0000% & i@ A% Ay INAE 19 &L o
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BENRRKRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Plantand  and office Motor  Leasehold Construction
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements  in progress Total
8 RER
THERF  BERKE  HAERE RE RENEEE EEIR gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1A1A 2,991,514 3147179 159,938 144,667 4,005 1,421,742 7,869,045
Additions RE 27,200 191,575 27,808 23,472 13,703 817,147 1,100,905
Interest capitalised EXfHE - - 5 5 5 1,720 1,720
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEEhE LA 68,767 57,843 1,756 5,844 - 7,837 142,047
Transfers A 463,180 124,896 2,601 - 32,976 623,653) -
Disposals HE (223) (73,694) (3,113) (3,141) (709) (29,708) (110,588)
Exchange realignment i AE 1,162 2,847 534 260 402 514 5,709
At 31 December 2016 and R2016E12A318 R
1 January 2017 0171718 3,551,590 3,450,646 189,524 171,102 50,377 1,695,599 9,008,838
Additions ME 49,229 327,369 59,362 28,250 23,588 681,609 1,169,407
Interest capitalised ERLFIE = = S - - 2,611 2,611
Acquisitions of subsidliaries WEHEAR
(note 37) (PH+37) - 985 115 54 - - 1,154
Transfers Eiga 635,987 238,164 805 344 9,986 (885,286) =
Disposals i (9,114) (71,359) (3,600) (6,424) (60) (770) (91,327)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLE - (102) - (1,292) (206) = 1,600
Exchange realignment AR (1,164) (1,452) (1,935) (543) (204) - (5,298)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 4,226,528 3,944,251 244,211 191,491 83,481 1,393,763 10,083,785
Accumulated depreciation and  Z:HHTER
impairment; HE:
At 1 January 2016 201651818 (496,308 (1,180,046) (86,101) (93,111) (1,667) - (1,857,233
Provided for the year TEFR (165,675 (322,650) (29,487) (20,111) (15,452) - (563,375
Disposals e 17 36,309 2,356 2,403 49 - 41,134
Impairment HE - - - - - (15,467) 15,467)
Exchange realignment 5 AE (262) (586) (395) (548) (163) = (1,944)
At 31 December 2016 and R2016E128318 R
1 January 2017 0171718 (662,228 (1,466,973) (113,627) (111,367) (17,223) (15,467) (2,386,885
Provided for the year TEEHR (182,8000 (347,766 (35,196) (21,703) (16,095) - (603,560)
Disposals HE 377 52,762 3,083 5,067 - - 61,289
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF - - 2 82 5 = 84
Exchange realignment &A% 329 323 103 538 128 - 140
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12R31H (844,322)  (1,761,654) (145,635) (127,383) (33,190) (15467)  (2,927,651)
Net carrying amount: FEFE:
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 3,382,206 2,182,597 98,636 64,108 50,291 1,378,296 7,156,134
At 31 December 2016 72016128318 2,889,362 1,983,673 75,897 59,735 33,154 1,680,132 6,621,953

AALREENYE - BEMEREZ KAERE
T BREFEA ARK719,0007T(2016
F: ARMT63,0007T) ° Zok A ZEHELTIH
IR B BRI o

Included in the Group's property, plant and equipment is a
freehold land which had a net carrying amount of RMB719,000
(2016: RMB763,000). The freehold land is situated outside
Hong Kong.
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13. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 13. AL HER
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR¥ET T ARETTT
At 1 January »1HA1H 1,275,459 1,181,770
Additions NE 47,627 96,265
Acquisitions of subsidiaries U BE B B A 7] - 19,684
Provided for the year KEZEHRE 7 (26,867) (25,227)
Exchange realignment bE 5 FH B (2,850) 3,067
At 31 December ®W12A31H 1,293,369 1,275,459
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MMEENDWA :
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,266,216 1,249,367
Current assets included in FTARBEER
prepayments, deposits and SEANE &9
other receivables Hth fE U Fh I8 27 27,153 26,092
1,293,369 1,275,459
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BREWE
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B & AR¥ET T ARETTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 2,469,488 318,431
Additions NE 1,290,874 2,045,883
Changes in fair value AR EEED 7 327,313 31,885
Exchange realignment PEE 3 3 B (48,775) 73,289
At 31 December M®12A831H 4,038,900 2,469,488
Further summary details of the Group's investment properties RNEEFGEYERE N HE— S HFEHN AR
are set out in the section headed “Summary of Investment S IBEERE | —6) -
Properties” of this report.
VALUATION PROCESSES HERF
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment REEHR  REBREMEIRALEAE
properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by 2% WHIEL - EELRESEROGEME
independent professionally qualified valuers detailed below: iEE - FARSHT
American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd.:  For properties in Thailand American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd.: AREMEME
Sydney Metropolitan Valuations: For properties in Australia Sydney Metropolitan Valuations: mRNIEmS
Metropolitan Valuation Services Inc. For properties in United Metropolitan Valuation Services Inc. ~ FiXEWEME
& CBRE Inc.: States & CBRE Inc.:
Colliers International Realty For properties in Canada Colliers International Realty RMERMEMS
Advisors Inc.: Advisors Inc.:
BRRAEEHE T EBRAR :  For properties in PRC ERFERMELHIHERAF : SRENENS
The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting EREEAEERGEMMITS2®E OTE
purposes were reviewed by management. Management HE - - EEENSEGEMTHREERRF X
also discussed the valuation processes and results with the HR - BEEFHEEZAABERRIETA
valuers. The fair value gains on revaluation are included in BRI AU A~ W EFIER] -
“other revenue, income and gains” in profit or loss.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REWF (@)

VALUATION PROCESSES (Continued) fhERF ()
Management reviewed the valuation results by verifying EEECEEREMEIEGAZBERRR
all major inputs and assumptions and assessing the W AEBHZEEER  WrHEZEHEZ
reasonableness of such valuations. BHEM% -
VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY HEFERDIABEERS
The following table shows the valuation techniques used by TRIVREEMEE Q2 BERANMGE
the valuers in the determination of fair values. There were FE e FRMELTEMEREENERE
no significant changes to the valuation techniques during the -
year.
Fair value Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs
AREE RERE AT B AE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Vacant lands and 2,740,844 1,965,880 Direct/sales comparison Premium (discount)
buildings under approach in quality of land
refurbishment
TEETHR B HELEE Hit 113 §-=piEl
3L YES wiE (H1:8)
Vacant lands 422,683 503,608 Residual method Gross development
value and estimated
construction cost
ZEE T FehE BmEREEBER
(ERp=E 1%\
Buildings under 875,373 — Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate
refurbishment approach and market rent
HERYEE W & RbE BRI ER
Dk Zicka
4,038,900 2,469,488
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment REREHAR - %g%%%?ij:?"jgﬁ%?ﬁ
properties were within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy B KREBZREMEEBETEALBEZLE
as their valuations were arrived at by reference to certain BRE=H c FAMEEE =L A iE
significant unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into (20164 : %) o

or out of Level 3 during the year (2016: Nil).
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15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(A)

(B)

146

15. BEREMEREE

GOODWILL (A) BHE
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE ARET T ARBTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 76,554 -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries Wi BE B B A &) 37 8,755 76,554
At 31 December M®12A31H 85,309 76,554
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (B) HttEEEE
Operating  Patent and Computer
Brand  concession proprietary software
name rights  technologies  and others Total
st gk EEBHER
[k feg LG A @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost; B
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1A18 - - 1,746 62,387 64,133
Additions RE - - h37 2121 2,658
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KN B AR 110,520 24,550 25,193 173 160,436
Disposals & S - - (621) (621)
At 31 December 2016 and 20165128318 )

1 January 2017 1751718 110,520 24,550 27476 64,060 226,606
Additions AE - - - 5,492 5,492
Disposals e - = S (918) (918)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF - - - (33) (33)
Exchange realignment EHAE = - - (74) (74)
At 31 December 2017 20175128318 110,520 24,550 21,476 68,527 231,073

Accumulated amortisation: 2itEg.
At 1 January 2016 R201651A18 - - (886) (27,457) (28,343
Provided for the year RERSR - - 2,178) (12,586) (14,764)
Disposals it - - - 116 116
At 31 December 2016 and R2016E12A318 R

1 January 2017 0171718 - - (3,064) (39,927) (42,991
Provided for the year TEEHR - - (3,367) (13,028) (16,395
Disposals e - - - 643 643
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - 1 1
Exchange realignment fE A% - - = 1 1
At 31 December 2017 R20175128318 = = (6,431) (52,310) (58,741)

Net carrying amount: REFE
At 31 December 2017 20175128318 110,520 24,550 21,045 16,217 172,332
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A318 110,520 24,550 2,412 24133 183,615
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16.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand name
and operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives
set out in note 15 have been allocated to four individual
cash generating units (“CGUs"), comprising one subsidiary
in the provision of environmental engineering services, one
subsidiary in the provision of sewage treatment services,
one subsidiary in the provision of hazardous waste treatment
services and one subsidiary in the provision of product quality
inspection and measuring instruments’ calibration services.
The carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and operating
concession rights at the end of the reporting period allocated
to these units are as follows:

16.

AEREMAERRAIEAFH 2E
FaERERR

SRERH S - W 15MEcEmE - A
BRAEAFHIERLFFEERE DB
EMEFEMNNREELEM(HREELE
fiz])  ZEBEMBE-FRHEREIERSE
ZHBRTE  —RERMEITKEIRE R M
NE > —RAREEREREERE HEA
BN — R E mE R BB 2 ESRE
RISz MEAGE > MRRERARDEEZT
BZEE  BREEFEERNRRER
T

Operating
concession
Goodwill Brand name rights
(GRS B BRERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2017 ARBTRT AR%®TRT AR¥T:R
Guangzhou EP Environmental BEMNTIRBRETIRRETET
Engineering Ltd. and ER AT REKEAF
its subsidiary” ("GZEP") ([GzZEP)) 29,100 110,520 23,230
Foshan Shunde Huifengyuan FEILTEEEELRIRETRE
Environmental Management EEARA T
Co., Ltd.” ("Huifengyuan") ([FELR]) 7,457 - 1,320
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading #EEBXRILEERAFIKL
Co., Ltd.” and its subsidiary HiB AR
(“Baolai"”) (T&*x1) 39,997 - -
Jianghuai Inspection Corporation T TS S 7R
Services Co., Ltd" ARI% B PR A A
(*Jianghuai Inspection”) (TR ) 8,755 - -
85,309 110,520 24,550
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

16. P8 & H b B AR 7168 ) SF S 2 A%

FEEBENR @)

Operating
concession
Goodwill Brand name rights
EES EE AT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2016 ARBTT ARBTE ARETRT
Guangzhou EP Environmental BEMNMRIBRE LIEEE -Hf?‘u
Engineering Ltd. and BRABRENBA
its subsidiary” ("GZEP") (ITGZEP)) 29,100 110,520 23,230
Foshan Shunde Huifengyuan 81U T B/ R P R IR R T2
Environmental Management EEAR AT
Co., Ltd." ("Huifengyuan”) ([FEELRE]) 7,457 - 1,320
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading #REAEBKITEAR QTN
Co., Ltd.” and its subsidiary HEMB AR
(“Baolai") (r&®:l) 39,997 - -
76,554 110,520 24,550
Management regarded brand name and operating concession BEERRBBEGE O EE 2% KT

rights acquired through business combinations having
indefinite useful lives because they are expected to generate
net cash inflows indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, management determines
that there are no impairments of any of its CGUs containing
goodwill, brand name and operating concession rights with
indefinite useful lives.

The recoverable amounts of GZEP, Huifengyuan, Baolai and
Jianghuai Inspection have been determined based on value
in use calculation using cash flow projections which based
on financial budgets approved by the management covering
a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rates applied to the
cash flow projections are 18.5%, 19.0%, 15.9% and 21.2%,
respectively. The cash flows beyond the five years period are
extrapolated using 2.0% growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculation relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the units’ past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the carrying amounts of GZEP, Huifengyuan, Baolai and
Jianghuai Inspection to exceed their recoverable amounts
respectively.
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KEEAGERAFERATE - AR EE
B EAERMNIE SR AERE -

RBER - BEEEREEMHEEHE A
ERAERFMOERRFFEERENRS
ELEUBERE -

GZEP - BEER « 2R RT/ER B M o] i =
SRR ERSRETEAARFEREBEAK
ﬁ c B e RETEARUNEEBILENT
FHIR GG AEM - BE nETBB TS
RBRFRRIBRIR R 5 5 A£18.5% * 19.0% -
15.9% &21.2% - AFEHENRESTREY
HA20%EEXREYE - stE A FHEEN
EMEEREEAIEEEHEERRTMNER
BeRA/ RENGTER - BlGEE
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%EME%%W& EEBERS  EAZ
EHREARHENTNAEEH I SER
GZEP - EEF TR ETERAES B MR
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REEE ARINER

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARMEF T
Share of net assets DIEEEFRE 41,324 =
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BN TR EBNT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ iR st
Registered  registration and Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital business interest power sharing activity
AR/
R ifEA  ERREERY fragEs RER s A ITER
Shanghei Banxin loT Tech Co, Ltd* RMB12,027,000 PRC 14 20 57 Provision ofloT
solution services
LABIREmREER A AEE12,027,0007T HE 14 2 5 REmBEER
FERHE
Guangdong Zlgj Information Technology RMB11,236,000 PRC 8 11 8 Provision of
Co., Ltd™(note) household
decoration and
design services
EREREREEHRARAR (i) ARH11,236,0007 HE 8 11 8 REREEHR
RatRis
Artaic, LLC* USD2,500,000 USA 17 20 15 Manufacture and
sale of mosaic tile
Artaic, LLC’ 2,500,000%7T 8 17 2 15 HERHE
SERAE
# These associates were newly set up/acquired during the year. # REBE RN RRNAETRL, R -
Note: It is considered that the Group has significant influence over this MieE : AEBRZARESSHA — %§$ WAL E
company because the Group has a director in the board of this company. REAEBEHZAREEEATLEN
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TREVNAEEREE ARIERER
interests in associates:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Share of associates: D= A A
Loss from continuing operations %it%«A%i}’%)EﬂE (1,404) -
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 E W - =
Total comprehensive expense ZHMAX 25 (1,404) =
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELENER
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARETTT
Share of net assets DB EFE 9,024 7,988
Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: BEDENFBOT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Friem At
Registered  registration and Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital business interest power sharing activity
AL/
£ AfRE  ERREREE frEgRL RER FEfbiE| IERE
Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50 Provision of
Equipment Design Services Co., Ltd." household
decoration
design work
and maintenance
services
ERBE BN R E R AR LA ABH10,000,0007C i 50 50 50 REFERMR
R ERH%
Lesso Home Syn Tai Hung Sdn. Bhd * Malaysian Ringgit Malaysia 51 50 b1 Sale of building
1,000,000 materials and
household products
ERRRFEAAMABRAR 1,000,000 SRED 51 50 51 HERMERFEER
ERBOHER
# The joint venture was newly set up during the year. # ZEEEERNFIRELL o
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TREVNAREENRASDEERNER -
interests in joint ventures:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMEF T ARETTT
Share of joint ventures: DMEEERE
Profit from continuing operations S E TS B T 243 813
Other comprehensive income Hib 2w - -
Total comprehensive income FEWEETE 243 813
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

19. m[{#t

HERE

2017 2016
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
Btz ARETR ARETT
Listed investments: THRE:
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong NEB L TERES (i) 7,935 =
Equity securities listed in PRC RE FTRARES 412,318 515,777
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong RES ETRAESR 1,095,840 =
Non-cumulative redeemable preference RER MR AER
shares listed in Hong Kong B 33,635 44,991
Perpetual capital securities listed in Hong Kong W& ik A B R &S 8,403 30,597
1,558,131 591,365
Unlisted investments: FEMEE
Equity securities BAE S (ii) 24,077 15,625
Convertible notes RRER (i) - 123,824
24,077 139,449
1,582,208 730,814

Note: Mz -

(i) The debt securities carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 6.35% to (i) BERBAEONEIRETEEFNE6.35%27.00%:t
7.00% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears and will mature from g BEFELIMEER202061 AE2020634
January 2020 to March 2020. ZIER o

(ii) The unlisted equity securities are issued by private entities established in (ii) FELETRAZTARERTRE L LT EEATE
PRC. They are measured at cost less any impairment losses at the end of T - BARAENARBEMTHEAKR  EFR
the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates BEAABEELNSEE  ZERETINHRE
is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values HARIRA AR EE BT & -
cannot be measured reliably.

(iii) The convertible notes are issued by a private company incorporated in US (iii) AR ER IR —BRERK AL E QB TR
with an interest rate of not less than 5.00% per annum and will mature in 17 o HENERRNENE.00% @ WHEREITHER
three years from the date of the issuance. FF=F 58 -
The convertible notes are separated into two components: the debt AR EE D AMEAKID - BRI LA E
element and the conversion option element. The Group has classified HRIEER D o REB D BIEEIE S N ] s 2f
the debt element and the conversion option element as available-for- DEEANHEERENRITESM T A - AfEk
sale investments and derivative financial instruments, respectively. - HIEC B ERERAMEHRRWMEE23 -
Details of the conversion option element were included in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
On 22 December 2017, all outstanding convertible notes were early MR20175E12 8228 » FIAEMARITHE Z A[RKE
redeemed by the issuer at a cash consideration of RMB149,876,000. B HBITANESREARK149,876,0007T
The redemption has resulted in a net gain of RMB®6,196,000 which was IREER - ZEER AR ARKESE,196,0007TH)
recognised in profit or loss for the year. Flas - ERF NIRRT ER o

(iv) At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's available-for- (iv) REBEEHR AEEEAEMEAARK

sale investments with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB33,635,000
(2016: RMB36,489,000) were pledged to a bank to secure the banking
facility granted. The Group has not utilised this banking facility as at 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

33,635,000 (20164 : AR % 36,489,0007T)
BE T ol S04 B mRTIR R E AR RTT
REMER - N2017F12A318 - AEE B E
BAZRITRE (20165 « &) -
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20. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 20. FEZIHKRE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Debt securities, at amortised cost: BB R ETSE 5
Listed in Hong Kong BBL™M - 59,655
The Group reclassified debt securities with amortised cost HRAEELEE TEBZFNEIHERTE
of RMB33,650,000 from held-to-maturity investments to € KEERFAH ARKSI3,650,0007T
available-for-sale investments during the year as certain debt R ER AT IR EIS B S HIEA 2B K
securities were disposed by the Group before their maturity BEHRBEHEERE -
dates.
21. LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. EWER
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Non-current FRE
Finance lease receivables BB & RIS R GRIR 228,710 63,191
Current TE
Finance lease receivables BB & RIS R GRIR 109,677 31,886
Factoring receivables IRIE AR B UL SR IE 321,929 173,640
Receivables from supply-chain i 5 B A AR A R Uk
financing services IR 129,600 120,238
561,206 325,764
789,916 388,955
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21. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(A)

21. BEWER @)

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (A) mERERYEEKRRIE
Present value of
minimum lease
Minimum lease receivables receivables
RIEFE & RIS W E REHERKEKFERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETRT AR¥Tr ARETR
Not more than 1 year 2k 117,912 36,457 109,677 31,886
Over 1 year but within 19 LA EBEF
5 years LA 272,151 66,819 228,710 63,191
390,063 103,276 338,387 95,077
Less: Unearned finance income i : REHREE
g (51,676) (8,199)
Present value of minimum lease X & RIEFEU
receivables TR E 338,387 95,077

The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated
in Renminbi. The effective interest rates of the
receivables range from 5.89% to 12.70% (2016: 5.89%)
per annum. There are no unguaranteed residual value of
assets leased under finance leases and no contingent
rent arrangement that need to be recognised in both
years.

AEERRERERSERFTIBEIAA
REHE - ZEWRFTEBNERFF
KA F5.89%ZE12.70% (2016 F -
5.89%) - RMEFEERN - & E (R
EHEEENAERFSBEER HE
EfRATHERIABELTHE -

Annual Report 2017 &%k 1 53



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
ArEf

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

154

(A)

R e

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) (A)
The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance
lease receivables:

21. BEWER@)

B E M B AR PR WO E (D
AT RBEHEREEYGRIENEE
BEOM:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETIT

Neither past due nor impaired R EA TR AR E 338,387 95,077

The receivables are secured by assets leased under
finance leases and cash deposits (where applicable).

Cash deposits from finance lease customers are
collected upfront based on certain percentage of the
entire value of the lease contracts. When the lease
contract expires and all related liabilities and obligations
are fulfilled by the customer, the cash deposit will be
returned in full. The balance of the cash deposit can also
be used to settle any outstanding lease receivables for
the corresponding lease contract. The collected cash
deposit of RMB22,164,000 (2016: RMB10,000,000)
has been included in “other long-term payables” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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T (ER)ERER -

MEHRERZFES K HNEREEAS
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RZEREAHNERARBFEBITH
EHBEEIRERE  ZREEH
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21. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(B)

FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The Group’'s factoring receivables arise from the
provision of factoring services to companies located
in PRC. The credit period granted to each customer is
generally within 365 days.

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/
or commercial bills originally owned by the customers.
These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from
4.50% to 6.00% (2016: 4.50% to 6.00%) per annum.

The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

(B)

21. BEWER @)

R I B 75 FE WK R OR

7R £5 [ 6 (R 72 AR 75 FE W SR IR 2K B [ R
BARRERERY - RTEEFPH
ERHIR — MR B365KRA °

REREEWFBARKEELES
MW GRIE R SR R EZIF - %
Z R IBIR N F4.50% £6.00% B
FEFE (20164 : 4.50% E6.00% )5t
H o

RI|BEHR - RERBEUKHKAZ 2
HERMT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T

With a residual maturity of: m EREARR
Not more than 3 months T %318 A 44,700 37,640
Over 3 months to 6 months 3{E A LA == 61E A 125,000 36,000
Over 6 months to 12 months 61E A LA =121 A 152,229 100,000
321,929 173,640

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's
factoring receivables was either past due or impaired
(2016: Nil).

RIREEIR - ANE B AR R EW
FIEEES AR E (20164 « £) -
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21.

156

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21.

(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING
SERVICES
The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services arise from the provision of supply-chain
financing services to companies located in PRC. The
credit period for each customer is generally within 30 to
180 days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from
5.40% to 7.20% per annum (2016: 5.40% to 7.20%).

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services,
amounting to RMB50,000,000 (2016: RMB49,938,000)
are secured by certain interests of companies and
personal guarantees.

The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain
financing services at the end of the reporting period is as

FE WA 3R ()
(C) fHFEaEml & iR 7% FE W R

7 £ 3] O L E 52 b O AR 7 B UK FRTE 2R
AR BARREHEERE RS -
BTEEPHNEAHR—MNTFI0E
180K/ ©

ZERWFIBEN T5.40%27.20%
HFFZE(2016%F : 5.40%£7.20%)
B e

ETHEERERGERZKIES EA
R #50,000,0007C (20164 : AR
49,938,0007T) * AE T A MR
R ABAEARVEIR IR o

R¥REHIR - 78 58 B8 AR5 e Wk
R BEERMT

follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT

With a residual maturity of: w82 BAPR -
Not more than 3 months EQINCIEPE 95,600 83,238
Over 3 months to 6 months 3ME AN E=6fE A 34,000 37,000
129,600 120,238

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's
receivables from supply-chain financing services was
either past due or impaired (2016: Nil).

The directors believe that no provision for impairment is
necessary for loan receivables (2016: Nil) as there has not
been any significant change in the credit quality of these
customers and these balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2. HithERBEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARBT T
Other long-term receivables HAth = HAFE WK IR 52,591 37,623
Long-term rental prepayments REASBMNFE 98,000 =
150,591 37,623
23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. fTEE€®MTIA
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Non-current assets: IRBEE :
Conversion option ] 5 A - 32,566

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are managed
and the performances are evaluated on fair value basis. Any
changes in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of the conversion option has been estimated
using valuation technique with unobservable inputs.
Management has reviewed the valuation result by verifying
all major inputs and assumptions as well as assessing the
reasonableness of such valuation.

Details of the conversion option were included in note 19(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

The conversion option lapsed upon the early redemption of
the convertible notes by the issuer during the year. A loss on
fair value change of RMB31,575,000 (2016: gain on fair value
change of RMB1,942,000) was recognised in profit or loss for
the year.

AEBZITESMTARERRIRAAE
BERAEEEE LG - ERAABEZESN
RIS A HER ©

AEREN QA EBEDRBBETERTH
BRENBABEBMG - BEECEBREM
BXEBABBEBROABRHZEES
R UrHEZGEZEEN -

AEBRENFARNDE B SR EA M EHRE
B EE19(iii) o

AREITERFNIRFED iR ERE 5%
Al EE AR A o ARM31,5675,00070(2016
F:RARBEZIHMEARE1,942,000
TLIZ AR BEEESBEERNFNER -
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- + 23
AR BTSRRI EE
24. INVENTORIES 24. FE

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBT T

Manufacturing and trading HERE S 3,099,969 2,747,065

Property development MR 127,773 -

3,227,742 2,747,065

(A) MANUFACTURING AND TRADING (A) RERES

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Raw materials R 1,445,320 1,170,591

Work in progress TEM 297,190 355,142

Finished goods ERK &h 1,357,459 1,221,332

3,099,969 2,747,065

(B) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (B) WIHXERE

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARETTT

Property under development BREPYE 127,773 =

The property under development is expected to be ZERPYERTFRBEHELZR
completed and available for sale in more than twelve T A A KA A HHE -

months after the end of the reporting period.
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 25. Bl NEEFNAEHNIREFE

CONTRACT WORK

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Contracts in progress at the end of the REEHR2EE
reporting period =5
Contract costs incurred plus recognised ESEEERUNANBRER ST
profits less recognised losses to date REREREE 1,292,781 744,649
Less: Progress billings W OEEE (1,125,097) (621,419)
167,684 123,230
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AREBNLWAE
Amounts due from customers for contract work ~ FEIRE P HIA H TI2IE 269,239 163,279
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEPRAKHTIIEZE (101,555) (40,049)
167,684 123,230
26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26. ESBBRREARRER
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTIT
Trade receivables B S EWZIE 1,981,994 1,254,357
Bills receivable e S 187,675 383,921
Less: Provision for impairment B R ERE (145,061) (121,030)
2,024,608 1,517,248
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26.

160

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group's major customers are independent distributors,
civil contractors, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in mainland China. Depending on the market
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the
customers, the Group's trading terms with its independent
distributors may change from settlement on an advance
receipt basis to giving a credit period of generally one
month or more, if appropriate. The Group does not have a
standardised and universal credit period granted to the non-
distributor customers. The credit period of an individual non-
distributor customer is considered on a case-by-case basis and
is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate. Sales to small,
new, or short-term customers are normally expected to be
settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly after the goods
delivery. No credit term period is set by the Group for small,
new and short-term customers.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
An aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at

the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

26. EZRUFEARREE @

AEENEIZEFP/TEAMEE LD H
B EARTRRARE  FHEREE 48
EXRRT NN - AEEBFHR - W
BRI M EAE P ORIER AT ERE Y D
BOEZGRRBRAN T AEEERSRT
—R—EAXZEANERHR(WEE)
AEESEF—FIFEDHBELE TREN
ERHR - @RI HEEPHERBRR
FEBERME - S HER KT 58 (0
BE) HRE  HREHEPNEE—
RIBBATRN T AN R EREARNEE -
AEBWES/NRR - HREMEPRILE
FHIR -

BRWFANZERY REERLRRE -

RBER - ARENE 5 REGERREER
RERZ AU MG RBROREDTOT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARETTT

Not more than 3 months T %R 3ME A 1,063,621 786,926
Over 3 months to 6 months 3ME A A E=61E A 438,828 309,326
Over 6 months to 12 months 618 A LA E=E1218 A 248,608 153,734
Over 1 year to 2 years 1F A EZ2F 173,230 218,297
Over 2 years to 3 years 2F A FE3F 90,318 42,585
Over 3 years 3FLAE 10,003 6,380
2,024,608 1,517,248
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26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26.

The movements in the provision for impairment of the Group’s

trade receivables are as follows:

EZRWRERRERE @)

AEEESEKREBENRERENZ SN
T~

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

At 1 January ®1A1H 121,030 81,077
Impairment losses recognised BEERBEEE 25,268 30,227
Acquisitions of subsidiaries i1 DN - 10,805
Amounts written off as uncollectible s AT W E A4 58 (1,237) (1,079)
At 31 December ®12AH31H 145,061 121,030

The above provision of RMB145,061,000 (2016:
RMB121,030,000) is for individually impaired trade receivables
with their aggregate carrying amount before provision of
RMB226,233,000 (2016: RMB185,596,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that are in

default or delinquency in payments.

The aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired is as follows:

i B A R#145,061,0007C (20164 -
AR #121,030,0007T ) Ft # & < B BR [ 48
BB ARM226,233,0007T(20164F : AR
#185,596,0007T ) B9 & 515 B & 5 fE B3R
HIEH o ERIREE 5 EUGRIEEE L
IR EFEEA -

AEBEHNRARAEOTRREREER S
FEWR A MR BRREDITANT -

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTIT

Neither past due nor impaired ABEAIN A E 1,340,594 929,097
Past due but not impaired: B HAE R RVE ¢

Not more than 3 months NER3E A 226,904 149,266

Over 3 months to 6 months 31E A E=61E A 89,021 96,488

Over 6 months to 12 months 6E AN E=12/@A 143,032 172,369

Over 1 year to 2 years 1A =24 84,746 79,448

Over 2 years to 3 years 2 A EE3F 52,994 23,405

Over 3 years 3FEM L 6,145 2,609

1,943,436 1,452,682
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26.

27.

162

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there is no
recent history of default.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors believe that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

26. EZEWRERRERE @)

REARTRBENEURRERZ TREP
B EUERPOMBIERRGCE

EEMERERENEBUKRES TELIEP
B WEAARKENR LR - RIB
BELER  EERAR ARNKEEFEEEZ
EWEBERC - BERDE R BBRK
B - BB L % A R E R E S

27. AR RERAEMERRE

2017 2016

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B & AR¥T ARETT

Prepayments SCENE 1,020,050 1,023,150

Current portion of prepaid land A T ERA

lease payments meE 13 27,153 26,092

Value-added tax recoverable FEIIRER 259,512 186,063

Corporate income tax recoverable FENDETER 182 2,026

Deposits biodra 78,380 96,718
Receivable from early redemption of R EIRFE R Al ZE

convertible notes FEUFRIE 145,508 =

Other receivables e W IR 82,522 85,596

1,613,307 1,419,645

The financial assets included in the above balances are
unsecured, interest-free and receivable on demand.
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28. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

28. RERBRITEX

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Restricted cash: ZRHIFE
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities EARITRENERIZS 774,611 815,225
Cash and cash equivalents: RekBEeEEY
Time deposits with original maturity of FEHEZ(BREHRA
three months or less when acquired =EAHAT) 102,539 238,570
Cash and bank balances Be MIBTES 3,575,220 2,831,888
3,677,759 3,070,458
Cash and bank deposits B4 MRTER 4,452,370 3,885,683

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods between one day and twelve months and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates.
The bank balances and restricted cash are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

FHRIRITHR SRS B RITERNERNF
BRI RGNS o T MTE SRR T
TRE1218 AN EF R K5 HIE B 5OR =
RERAS - RITAEBRZR RS FHNE
I E X RS B B RIFROIRTT -

29. EZEARMERE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFIT
Trade payables B S EN IR 918,375 784,645
Bills payable e EE 2,102,710 2,818,517
3,021,085 3,603,162
The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled EORNFORTDRE - #EHRBE A30
on terms of 30 to 90 days. HZE90H -
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wINE

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 29.

An aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

BEZRNREREE @)

RBEHR - ARENE HERNFTEARRER

REZEHMNRESTOT -

follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
Not more than 3 months T HR31E A 1,914,118 828,384
Over 3 months to 6 months 3B A A E=61EA 357,082 230,293
Over 6 months to 12 months 618 ALA EZE1218 A 702,632 2,495,188
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FAEZE2F 20,587 6,614
Over 2 years to 3 years 2F A EE3F 5,465 14,962
Over 3 years 3FLA 21,201 27,721
3,021,085 3,603,162

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HitEEN R EREFTEA
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Advances from customers BRI 1,120,169 1,108,297
Accruals EErER 63,933 43,541
Salaries and welfare payables B T& M EF 125,988 96,759
Other payables H Ath fE T 5RI8 582,832 482,973
1,892,922 1,731,570

The financial liabilities included in the above balances are

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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31. BORROWINGS

31. B

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFT
Current piokl)
Unsecured bank loans EEIRRITER 2,698,795 2,109,925
Current portion of long-term unsecured RESERBITESRD
bank loans mENE D 70,624 131,479
Current portion of long-term unsecured syndicated = HIfE K #4R B & 58
loans mENE D = 2,010,750
Secured bank loans BEBETER 105,500 =
Secured other loans BEBEMER 2,337 -
2,877,256 4,252,154
Non-current FRE
Unsecured bank loans EEMIRITER 422,168 422,907
Unsecured syndicated loans EEIRREER 4,988,151 =
Secured bank loans BEBRTER 19,800 7,500
Loans from non-controlling interests FiEIERER 12,000 12,000
5,442,119 442,407
8,319,375 4,694,561
Analysed into borrowings repayable: BIEEBER
Within one year or on demand —FRHIRERE 2,877,256 4,252,154
In the second year E-FR 338,236 422,907
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FEZERAFRA
(REEREME) 5,092,722 14,476
More than five years ZRRF 11,161 5,024
8,319,375 4,694,561

Note: Bt &

(a) The effective interest rates of the Group's borrowings range from 1.60% (a) AEBERZEBFEFENT1.60%£6.00% T
10 6.00% (2016: 1.06% to 4.90%) per annum. (20164 : 1.06%%4.90%) °

(b) The secured bank loans are secured by: (i) the concession rights of a (b) BEFIBITERIIA - () B AT & i
subsidiary and personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that RE—ZRERAOMEAER (i) NEBRIRHEIRIE
subsidiary; (ii) certain commercial bills received by the Group during RGN ETFHEEE: RIVETFtrs
its provision of factoring services; and (iii) certain receivables from B PR 7% FE W R T (R IR 4 o
supply-chain financing service.

(c) The loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free and (c) JEPRHI S 2 B AT - 2 B RIER20194F
will mature in September 2019 (2016: unsecured, interest-free and will 9AEIHA(20164F « MK - £ B RiFH20199F9
mature in September 2019). RE|HE) -

(d) At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s borrowings are (d) RBEHR AEEUET B AR

denominated in US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar
and Canadian dollar are equivalent to RMB5,213,421,000 (2016:
RMB3,478,442,000), RMB1,254,263,000 (2016: RMB876,620,000),
RMB1,108,835,000 (2016: RMB339,499,000), RMB537,423,000 (2016:
Nil) and RMB205,433,000 (2016: Nil), respectively.

BT EMTAENERSNEERA
R % 5,213,421,000 7t (2016 F : A R #
3,478,442,000 7T ) + A K ¥ 1,254,263,000
gL (2016 F : A K # 876,620,000 7T ) * A
R % 1,108,835,000 7T ( 2016 F : A R ¥
339,499,0007T) + AR¥537,423,0007T (2016

F:m) &k AR ¥ 2054330007 (2016 5 :
) o
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. EEBE
The major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and their LWTAERAFERE—FECERNEZE
movements during the current and prior years are as follows: EHIBEE,/ (BB REE
Withholding
Fair value Fair value tax on
adjustments adjustments ~ distributable
arising from  Provisionfor  Accelerated arising from profits of
investment  impairment tax acquisitions  subsidiaries Deferred
properties of assets  depreciation of subsidiaries in the PRC income Total
it HEHRAR  HENRAR

FEEN RER  NERE KRN WANGRAN
MBEER  WERS fE AABERR  ERARE  ERG it
RVBODO  RMBOOO  RVBOD  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMBOD  RMBOWD
ARRTR  ARRTT  ARETR  ARRTR ABRTR ARETR ARRTR

At 1 January 2016 R016E1R1A - 27858 4% (2,630) (134,018) 1441 (106,929)
Aequisition of subsiciares KEHELA - - - (46,175 - s (46,175]
Credited){charged) to profitor loss for the year A/ (NE)ERER (8,540) 19,352 18 iy (81441 4,745 (65,598]
At 31 December 2016 and 10165124318 R
1 January 2017 NTE1R1H (8,540) 47210 473 (48,569) (215,459) 6,186 (218,699)
Crediteafcharge to profit o loss for the year it\/(M8)5RER (73,656) 14701 (162 i 199,162y 1500 [1565%)
Exchange realignment EiEE 505 - - - _ R 505
At 31 December 2017 AN7EI2A3A (81,691) 61911 M (4328 (314621) 7686 (374732)
# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB132,623,000 # ZEBAARRA R A BB A R A 9K iR F E
(2016: RMB100,683,000) on the distributable profits of the Company's HE Y 3B RE T TE 8 48 A R #5132,623,0007T (2016
subsidiaries in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities & AR¥100,683,00070) WKL SHIB A
of RMB33,461,000 (2016: RMB19,242,000) arising from dividends AIRFRREIMEEESRREMEEANEER
declared by these subsidiaries to their foreign investors during the year. FEEFRIBE EARK33,461,00070(20164F + A

R#19,242,0007T) °
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

32. EEFIE (&)

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFT
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE IR R RN TER A
consolidated statement of financial position EBEBIBEELRE 69,908 53,869
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the R4RE B AR R ARERE
consolidated statement of financial position R IE B ER%E (444,640) (272,568)
(374,732) (218,699)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdictions of the
foreign investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland
China in respect of their earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax liabilities of RMB275,791,000 (2016:
RMB263,925,000) in respect of temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries, amounting to
RMB5,515,812,000 (2016: RMB5,278,506,000), that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it is probable that these profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

RIEP BB EMSEE - R B AR K
INEREMINHIEEE T IRA R E AN
10% M FRIRFTIS AL o %R E B 200841 A1
BiE%k BRARBE2007F12A31HEE
BREF o 4B A ZINR IR E & FTE
AIVEREAFFTBBIEL - AR BIER
KEWTERMEH - REENERHE A
5% Eit - $he% 5 R B A b A 37 B BT 8
NEIFL2008F 1 A1HRAESATMDIKE
fREME @ ANEBEASMNTEIRTEH -

RBMEHER  ARARBZEHZEN B
RAIHMBERE  BZERFRATEB
R R HY A] BE IR K - B & B A R
ﬁuuxﬁ»ﬁ% jﬂi /ﬁ/ﬁnf‘]gﬁvﬁﬁﬁj
A R #5515,812,000 7t ( 2016 F : A
R # 5,278,506,000 JT ) W iE & & H &
ERB(ARDRZEREBEEFEZMN) A
R ¥ 275,791,000 7t (2016 ©F : A R #&
263,925,0007T) °
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33. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by
the Group as financial subsidies for the construction of new
factory premises in Changchun, Daging, Hubei and Hunan and
rental income received in advance from certain of the Group's
employees for leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over
the expected useful lives of the relevant premises by equal
annual instalments, while rental income received in advance is
recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective lease

33. EEZEW S

LW s e A SR B R BT /B - {E/RE
ERE - AE - it AR EER TR E
MBTERAR - URBAKERE TEEEE
WHHHEETEEHSUWA °

BTN B RE ERIRERFRAESE
NEREBABR AR - MELKRNES
WARZE BB SOEMER °

terms.

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, BAR
Shares K 2017 2016
Authorised: EE

20,000,000,000 (2016: 20,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each

20,000,000,000(2016% : 20,000,000,000)
BB EE0.05/8 LAY & B

HK$1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000% 7T

HK$1,000,000,000
1,000,000,0007% 7

Issued and fully paid: EEGEE Vi

3,102,418,400 (2016: 3,102,418,400) 3,102,418,400(20164F : 3,102,418,400) HK$155,120,920 HK$155,120,920
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BB mEEO. 058 TH L@ 155,120,9205% 7t 155,120,920 7T
Equivalent to EER RMB135,344,000 RMB 135,344,000
AR#135,344,000T A R¥135,344,0007C

The following changes in the Company's issued share capital

RABEEEN  AAFREBTRAZH

71 77

took place during both years: ™
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each
BREE Nominal value of
0.05:8 TH ordinary shares
EERYE ZEREE
HK$'000 RMB'000
THL AREFT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER
At 1 January 2016 ®2016F1 818 3,110,255,400 155,512 135,686
Shares repurchased B (7,837,000 (391) (342)
At 31 December 2016, ®2016F12A318
1 January 2017 and 2017F1R1A R
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H 3,102,418,400 155,121 135,344
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34.

35.

36.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

During the year of 2016, the Company bought back and cancelled a total
of 7,837,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at a
total consideration (including expenses) of HK$32,917,000 (approximately
RMB28,052,000).

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the
Group's subsidiaries which are established in PRC has been
transferred to reserve funds which are restricted for use.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 14
May 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

34.

35.

36.

MRS ()
GEE
RoB—REE - ARAER B REHA K

7,837,000 A AR E BB - BRE(BERAX)A
32,917,000 7T (#) A R #28,052,0007T ) ©

e

AEERFEEBEFENRESRERELZ
HERGARREBHRANZS

REBEANRFINGELENBERERRE
B NREBEER BRI NE QR D 8
NEEBR=ARTRIOFEEES -

B ESTE
R2010F5 148 @ BEE M ERY AEE

MR ZFHERMMNAERZEA AR
B —IRAE AR &) ([ BR8] -

AR QRIS BIUASE - MR IR
SHEIS B E -
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37.

170

BUSINESS COMBINATION

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 51% equity interest in Jianghuai
Inspection at a cash consideration of RMB10,200,000.

Jianghuai Inspection is principally engaged in product quality
inspection and calibration of measuring instruments. The
acquisition allow the Group to further diversify its businesses.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Jianghuai Inspection at the date of acquisition assumed by the
Group are as follows:

37. ¥%&66t

FR O AEBITVESEHE  UARE
10,200,000 JT K 38 & X B U B8 7T % %08
51% MR AREZS ©

TDERAEERFERE TR M EES
RE - HEKBSAEELE - SIHREE
% o

RER - DERANABINEENRARZ
DREEWAT

RMB'000

ARBT T

Property, plant and equipment ME - HWE REB 1,154
Inventories FE 22
Trade and bills receivables B S RUBHRIEREE 2,008
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FBf3X - & & H b E W KB 483
Cash and bank deposits He MRTTHER 97
Other payables and accruals HEMERIENEASER (930)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value ARANEEFEEE(RAAEE) 2,834
Non-controlling interests FEVE R (1,389)
Goodwill arising on acquisition U B E A 8,755
Total consideration satisfied by cash NIREFT AR ERTE 10,200

Acquisition-related costs incurred in relation to the above
acquisition is insignificant and have been excluded from the
cost of acquisition and have been recognised directly as
expenses for the year and are included in “other expenses” in
profit or loss.

The fair values of the trade and bills receivables and
other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted
to RMB2,008,000 and RMB392,000 respectively, which
approximate to the gross contractual amounts of the
corresponding balances acquired by the Group. At the date of
acquisition, management considered that the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected were insignificant.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

38.

39.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as

follows:

37.

¥Be6t@m

ERZWENRSRESTWNT

RMB'000

ARMEFIT

Cash consideration paid BERBEENRE 10,200

Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BlEER e MR EEY (97)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KEEZHBRENRERREEEY

included in investing activities ikl 10,103

The operating result of the above subsidiary had no significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or profit for the

year ended 31 December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(A) AS LESSOR

The Group leases certain office premises under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to thirteen years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

38.

39.

HRMBAR 2 REFEHAEEEE—F
—tF+-A=T—RLEFEZHFEWEL
AW EERTZE o

FREE

RBEBR - AEREYBEAEAXABE
(20164 : &) o

REHERY
(A) fERHBAA

AEERBELEHELHHEE TH
RE HEBES—ET=F1TF-

RBEKR - RIBEBRF IR
B gAY AEE T HEKROR

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: REEESRBOT -

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARMEFTT

Not more than 1 year DE2NES 31,491 6,751
Over 1 year to 5 years 1F A EZ55F 57,839 2,101
Over b5 years BEFL 50,344 =
139,674 8,852
Annual Report 2017 &%k 171



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire WS HRaR TR

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(B) AS LESSEE
The Group leases certain of its office premises,
production plants, warehouses and equipment under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to sixteen years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

39. KEHELTH @)

(B) ERFEMEA
AEERBEEHELH  AAET
WMAE  LERE REREE-H
HEER—ETRERE -

RBEHR  RESATHELEH
# o AKREDHEMORRKERS

operating leases falling due as follows: mEmT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Not more than 1 year e 183,362 35,073
Over 1 year to 5 years 1A EEBF 754,465 92,501
Over 5 years BELA 583,922 24,239
1,521,749 151,813

40. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

40. EiE

RIMERR - NEBEHEEATEREE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T
Contracted, but not provided for: ERTAVE R B

Land, property, plant and equipment and T WE - R RREM
investment properties "EYE 636,381 875,036
Investment in a joint venture R—HeEatENEE 23,520 =
659,901 875,036
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41. BABALRZ REH
BALANCES

(A) THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH (A) FALEEHEBABALIZEARS
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR

2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR¥TR ARBFT
Connected transactions BEXS
Transactions with companies under the REZELRT —fIEE
common control of a director: THINARINR S
Sale of goods HEEm (i) 2,626 380
Financial service income T RRE U A (ii) - 2,374
Consumption of utilities A UNEES (iii) 1,033 1,673
Rental expenses HemMx (iv) 3,907 4,129
Purchase of materials REEME (v)* 5,195 5,675
Purchase of machinery and/or REEHE &S
equipment B (vi) 122,993 96,357
Purchase of electronic accessories REBETRH (vi) 28 13
Licensing trademarks BT g (vii)* 404 407
Acquisition of Guangdong Lesso W B B R E RIFT R
Lighting Co., Ltd" BRERAT
("GD Lighting”) (TRIFTYIR]) (viii)* = 5,000
Disposal of Lesso Hardware HEBNTS (ix) 25,000 -
Assignment of rights of receivables 22 R ISR EF (x) 29,937 -
Agency services from companies under W& —fIESFHHZE A
the control of a director Bl FTRR IR AR TS (xi)* 4,468 3,247
Rental expenses paid to directors BEESANEokiEAERT (xii)* 1,613 1,592
Non-connected transactions FHREXS
Advisory services from a company under REEEEAZZE HK)
the significant influence —RARAMREDN
of directors AR (xi) 1,859 7,358
Design and maintenance services from a & &M EREMNRT KL
joint venture HERS (xiii) 3,600 3,600
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

174

(A)

THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xii)

(xiii)

Sale of goods to related companies were made with reference
to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to third-party
customers.

Provision of financial service was made in accordance with the
respective contractual terms offered by the Group to third-party
customers.

Utilities were provided by related companies at cost.
Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of materials from related companies were made based
on mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of machinery, equipment and electronic accessories
from related companies were made with reference to the prices
and conditions offered by the related companies to their third-
party customers.

Licensing trademarks to related companies were conducted
based on mutually agreed terms.

The consideration was agreed after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to the fair value of net assets of GD Lighting of
approximately RMB5,000,000 as at 31 August 2016.

The consideration was agreed after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to the fair value of net assets of Lesso Hardware of
approximately RMB25,000,000 as at 7 July 2017.

The consideration was equivalent to the amount due from Lesso
Hardware of the Group as at 7 July 2017.

Agency services and advisory services were provided by related
companies based on mutually agreed terms.

Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops,
warehouses and yacht were leased to the Group based on
mutually agreed terms.

Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually
agreed terms.

These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempted from
complying with the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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41. BBALIXRIRESR@E)

(A)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

FREEEEABA L ZEARS (H)

REBAREEERIAAERRAFE=)
EFRLMER &G R2RET -

RESBBRBDIREAKRERAS=TEP
REZEEEOBRETE -

RAEETRRAH AR R RIREM -
TR TR E R IRRETE

LT 12 88 75 165 TE B0 165K (7] B Bt 1 B AR
B REBEREFRADELERH AT
B5E =71 &% PR A E R KRR R BA R
NEEE -

5 T B 2 A0 AR T B S B AR
17 -

RETHZRBAIFHER2016F8A31HZ
FEEAABELNARES000,0007T

RETILBESEER2017F7A782
FEERBELHAR25,000,0007T
BAFHEEERE

RETFIBEN2017F7A7EREBEK
EMALKIE °

BAEE A B TR 07 1 E O IR BRIR IR AR
5 Kt ARG o

MEBERAE  RE  EH - AERE
BE - TR HEMGRRETASHE -

BEDRTIRET 1 E RO RFIR MR

ZEBBALRZSTEK ETRAIE14A
EMATNEERZHFERERS
HedT EMRANZEERE



41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(B)

(C)

41. EAEE

AR B RER )

BALANCES WITH RELATED PARITIES (B) EHEEEEA LT z&tk
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B & ARMET T ARETTT
Balances with companies under REBHART—UES
the common control of a director THIE A BB AR
arising from: xE :
Deposits paid for the purchases RE BB &, Sk aR
of machinery and/or equipment I /iR & (i) 92,660 72,744
Purchase of machinery and/or PREEVEI N SR
equipment (ii) 31,454 22,191
Note: B 5E -
(i) The balances are included in the Group's deposits paid for the (i) ERFTARKEBE L UE  BER
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment. RBIZAHIRS o
(i) The balances are included in the Group's other payables and (i) ERRGT ARS B R E R R IE R IER B
accruals. A -
COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) EHERFEANTHIAFEEIE

Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into
lease agreements with a director and a company under
the common control of a director to lease properties
for operations, and sale and purchase agreements with
a company under the common control of a director to
purchase machinery and/or equipment for production.
The operating lease commitments of RMB13,263,000
(2016: RMB4,528,000) with lease terms of three years
and the capital commitments of RMB23,727,000 (2016:
RMB40,072,000) have been included in notes 39(B) and
40 to the consolidated financial statements.

NREBETHB AT ATHEEMEER
EHRHE—ZEER—HERSZ
BEEEHOARYEERS I
ERERWME SREBEEERE
H-EHRAT - UEEZEHHA A
FIVE S W o AR 13,263,000
TL(20164F + AR #4,528,0007T) 1
wEAERERHA=F  HBA
R#23,727,0007L (2016 4F + AR
40,072,000 MEAREED BB E
Rira B R R MIFE39(B) )40 ©
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41. BBALIXRIRESR@E)
BALANCES (Continued)

(D) COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY (D)
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Company’s directors and the
senior management was as follows:

FEBTEEEASHH

ARBEZERSRAEEENFHFMMOT -

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR®ET T
Short-term employee benefits EHEIE B R 14,102 13,870
Post-employment benefits RIRIEE T 399 385
14,501 14,255
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42, €T H
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) &R EER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RREHRR SESRHIANEEE
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period NN
are as follows:
2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E AR¥T ARETIT
Financial assets SREE
Investments KE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 1,582,208 730,814
Held-to-maturity investments EEHEEDHIRE 20 = 59,655
Derivative financial instruments TEEMmT A 23 = 32,566
1,582,208 823,035
Loans and receivables B R EKTIE
Loan receivables FEUE R 21 789,916 388,955
Other long-term receivables E b K ERFE I GRIE 22 52,591 37,623
Trade and bills receivables B REWRENREZE 26 2,024,608 1,517,248
Other receivables Hfh fEU R IE 228,030 85,596
Cash and bank deposits RE RIBITFK 28 4,452,370 3,885,683
7,547,515 5,915,105
9,129,723 6,738,140
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 42. €T A @)

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) 2T EEA(E)
(Continued)

2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B & ARMET T ARETTT
Financial liabilities kAR
Financial liabilities at FEHESE K RS BR Y
amortised cost THEE
Trade and bills payables B 5N A R 29 3,021,085 3,603,162
Financial liabilities included in s ACE fth FE ST RVIE K
other payables and accruals EtERENSHAas 646,765 482,973
Borrowings &K 31 8,319,375 4,694,561
Other long-term payables E b RERFESFRIB 92,572 106,439
12,079,797 8,887,135
(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) BRAABENENEMIANAIAER
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
2017
Fair value hierarchy
DNRBERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& -t} E=R st

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARBTR ARETRT AR®TR

Available-for-sale investments ~ AJfEHERE
Listed investments FTRE 1,508,158 49,973 - 1,558,131
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 42. €T A @)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) BRAAEENENESHMIAENANREE
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued) (&)
2016
Fair value hierarchy
DR EEEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—% B FE=H BEr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT ARETT ARBTI
Available-for-sale investments AL HERE
Listed investments FHRE 515,777 75,588 - 591,365
Unlisted investments FELEMIRE - - 123,824 123,824
Derivative financial instruments 74 4@ T E - - 32,566 32,566
515,777 75,588 156,390 747,755

During the year, there was no transfer from level 1 FA -BeERITEAALBEITEM
to level 2 (2016: RMB43,238,000) and there were TR —AREE 2 M A e
no transfers into or out of Level 3 for the financial #(2016F : AR¥43,238,0007T) -

instruments of the fair value measurements (2016: Nil). BtE@#E AkEBHE=M/(20164F :
) o

ERE=H/INDABEGEEDE

The movements in fair value measurements within Level

178

3 during the year are as follows: N
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
At 1 January ®1A18 156,390 =
Additions NE - 146,158
Unrealised (loss)/gain recognised in RIEZEAERH
profit or loss RER(EE), W (31,575) 1,942
Unrealised gain recognised in FE 2 T U 2 A TERR Y
other comprehensive income KREIRAZ 29,819 7,846
Early redemption REEL (149,876) =
Exchange realignment b H (4,758) 444
At 31 December M12H318 - 156,390
Total gain reclassified from A e P HE B M E A
other comprehensive income 2HIREENHED
upon early redemption B EE (37,665) =
Total gain included in profit or loss AR R ERIMmNIEEN
upon early redemption R B = 37,771 -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C)

FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (C)
THAT ARE NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

Except as disclosed in the following table, the carrying

amounts of the Group's financial instruments recognised

in the consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values:

42, £ T B (#)

YHRBRAABEFEZEMIAZ
DREE

BRI RABEEI  AEEESREY
BHRAERAZRITAZERERE
NABEREE

2017 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
fREE DAEE REE RRBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARETT AR%TR
Financial asset TREE
Held-to-maturity investments #78 & 5| H& & - 59,655 64,880

The fair values were based on the quoted market
price provided by a leading global financial market data
provider.

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
borrowings and cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

ARABEDBBEZRELVETHE
BHtEmRERA TS RERTE -

3. TREREEREREE

AEBENTIESMIABRESUNREZR
HEFER - ZZemIANTIZREIAR
SENLEERES - ARETNBEMHE
BHEELENTREREERAE  fIInE
2 MWK IR N B b e WO IB A & 55 8 A5 5RIA
KE MM FRIA

AEEEMTRAELANTIERRAMNEE
o SRR - EERRMTBE SRR
F A7 5 B P AR 1O 5% 55 L B A 15 TR S 1B K
¥ AEEYEERETATETAREMT
BEUAMESH 2B - AEBEYERFHETIT
EERMTANMEEEZR - EFSEEML
RAEZFRAREENERE - ZBAEWT -
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43.

180

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. cRREKREEBEEREE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
INTEREST RATE RISK FI == 2 B
In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group FHRARTEBERAEB@EBER S REF
is subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed ZEK  MEEMNRILAEEERAEE@ER
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value NRBEERNERER -
interest rate risk.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a T%z@ﬂ’\ﬁ”“ﬁ\ﬁiﬁﬂfﬁﬂi@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁbﬂ
reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other REZNEENAREE - BTG EMEER
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax by #—rTﬁ REB B BTSEME S B A fEHyF|
assuming the floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end R 7 GURE o
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in basis in profit
points before tax
HAED BREE AR
#in CRd) i GRd)
RMB’000
AR®T T
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F 12831 B ILFE 50 (37,377)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE2017F12A31BILFE (50) 37,377
Year ended 31 December 2016 #HE2016F12A31BIEFE 50 (22,913)
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12A3181LFE (50) 22,913
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s main businesses are located in mainland China
and most of the transactions are conducted in Renminbi.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, except for certain cash and bank deposits, trade
and bills receivables and borrowings denominated in HK dollar
and US dollar. The Group has not hedged its foreign exchange
rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the Renminbi against the relevant currencies, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and loans).

43.

tREMRESERERBE®

S0 B

REBH T EXBHLN T EAM - fAEs
DR ANREETT - REBAHOEE
NBBEAARKHE  EETRELRITHF
R BRI R FIEAMEFTAE TR
ETCEHE o ZNER B 3 4 75 L 0 R fa s 17 B
il

TENERT  AEERS DS ARE
REMEREREXNSERREH (AR
EMUEEEMERNAABEEIMB)Z

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
HK$/US$ in profit
rate before tax
BT, RTER BR % AT A
EHACTE)  #i/ ORd)
RMB'000
% AR¥T T
2017
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARE S ETTEE 5 8,375
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ W AR S EITHAE (5) (8,375)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ AR S BETRE 5 (28,377)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ i AR W BT AHE (5) 28,377
2016
If the RMB weakens against the US$ M AR ETTRE 5 15,567
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ WA RS EITHAE (5) (15,567)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ AR H BT E 5 (1,529)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ i N R¥E 5B T AHE (5) 1,629
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43.

182

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank deposits and other receivables, arises
from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

In relation to the Group's financial services business,
the Group has a credit team which is responsible for the
evaluation of customers’ credit ratings, financial background
and repayment abilities. The Group only provides credit to
customers with creditworthiness and collateral is normally
required. The risk of default in payment by these customers is
considered not significant.
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tREMRESERZERBE®

FERgE
AEEERENRREEA NS =TT
X5 MRAEENEEK - IARREES
ETRZHNEP  LALBBEERER
FFo MOl - AERBRBEERBRAERNIER
RAKERZERARLTERK

rEENEMEREE(BRRERRITE
REEMERRB)MEERRIRERZYH
THETEEYN SARBREESERZETA
MAREE °

HAAEEEREARMEENENE=T
EIRS  MAFERM®D -

BERASENESRREER  AEEHEE
EEBAENEEPZERENE  MBES
REERES - AEEEREERINEPER
HEER—RARKERR - XFFPHON
RIERARILTEK o



43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. €RiEMEERERKE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK REBE SRR
The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash REEBRNBEZFTONESRESEEY
equivalents and available funding through various sources of WiE @ IRREAEREESES -

finances to meet its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the NBETHORITENRAEE - REBNRE R
end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual SHIRMS B EREBERET :

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2017
Within 1to 2 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
15K/ 1224 2L E e

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®TRT AR®TR

Trade and bills payables B RNFEREE 3,021,085 - - 3,021,085
Financial liabilities included &t A H fib f&E < 5018 &
in other payables and FEETE R
accruals cREE 646,765 = = 646,765
Borrowings R 3,057,639 485,020 5,138,454 8,681,113
Other long-term payables  E{h & HfE R 78 - 67,800 24,772 92,572
6,725,489 552,820 5,163,226 12,441,535
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43.

184

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. ¢ REKREEBERBEE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) REBESER(E)
2016
Within 1to02 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
1R 1524 2 F 4Rt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT
Trade and bills payables BEHRNREARRE 3,603,162 - - 3,603,162
Financial liabilities included 5T A EAth & (- 3008 &
in other payables and E:TERN
accruals TRAE 482,973 = = 482,973
Borrowings = 4,315,968 84,891 374,677 4,775,536
Other long-term payables — Efh K BifE {708 = 88,000 18,439 106,439
8,402,103 172,891 393,116 8,968,110
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT EXRER

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
In order to optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or new debts or the
redemption of existing debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes
borrowings less cash and bank deposits. Capital represents
the total equity.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity
ratio at a healthy level in order to support its businesses. The
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, without
limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of
capital to support its business. The net debt to equity ratios, at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

tREMRESERERBE®

EXEE(H)

AREBUBHFRU AL RETERN - Z
R BEEFERABR - B FRBEE
BRI E RIRTTIFK o BTy iaHEan R o

A RS e R PR R L R
BEAT  ASTHHER - AEERRME
EEROIEETRABHARE S RER X
RENEISMES 0L  RESTABITRE
EABKT RAEREH S RAEHE (1
BE) LREALEREGSBATHER
TR R - RIS RN E SR
HEMT :

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBT T

Borrowings B 8,319,375 4,694,561
Less: Cash and bank deposits B R RBITER (4,452,370) (3,885,683)
Net debt B FER 3,867,005 808,878
Total equity EmiaTa 13,783,491 11,537,672
Net debt to equity ratio B FREE L & 28% 7%
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44. RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING 44. MEETHEEZEEBYHK
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRHFNAEFBRE THIESABHE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- (BRRRIFREEY) mMEITBMESE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BENRESRECKHBeRNRNEBGESR
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, ERERANDERBMEETHRENE -

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Non-cash changes

FREEH
Amortisation Foreign
1 January of financing exchange Other 31 December
2017 Cash flow fee movement changes 2017
#2017% BBER H2017%
1518 ReneE B HELB At 25 12A318

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  AR%TR

Borrowings Eb 4,694,561 3,987,747 20,467 (383,400) - 8,319,375
Interest payable ERFIS 2,780 (211,453) - - 214,822 6,149
Dividends payable RS - (411,288) - = 411,288 -
Total liabilities from BEEDH)

financing activities BEEE 4,697,341 3,365,006 20,467 (383,400) 626,110 8,325,524
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. FENBATNFE

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as ARARZ TEBMNBRARRFIBNOT ¢
follows:

Percentage of

Place of Issued equity attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration and registered AQFEMAERLE
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ER, ERTEERRE,
=2 Gl d-E3:L R A =83 ME FEXE
Starcorp Investment Holdings Ltd. BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERREERERARA HEERARES Ev 100% - REERK
Great China International BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Ltd.
ENERERER QA EERBRHE (E 100% - REBR
China Liansu Investment Limited ~ BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
REIMERERRAR REERARS E 100% - REERK
Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
sale of building
materials and interior
decoration products
BEEEERAA £ 13,000,000/ 7T - 100% REZEBRRHEERN
RREEM
Guangdong Liansu Technology PRC HK$2,800,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale
Industrial Co., Ltd."® of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings
BRBZHNRERERLAA e 2,800,000,00075 7T - 100% BERHEZHEBRENH
Heshan Lesso Industrial PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale
Development Co., Ltd."® of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings
BILBEERERARAR h 269,930,000/ 7T - 100% HERHEENEEREN
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd."® of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings
BERBER(E)BRRA H 111,000,000/ 7T - 100% BUERHEEHEBREN
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration and registered
Name business
AR ERTEBERRE
=L MR KR

ordinary share/

share capital

45. FEMB LTINS @)

Percentage of

equity attributable

to the Company
AR ELRERL R

Direct Indirect Principal activities

HE BE IEXK

Lesso Technology Development PRC
(Guiyang) Co., Ltd."®

BEMRER(ER)AERRF I

Nanjing Lesso Technology PRC
Industrial Co., Ltd."®

ERBBMREEERAR® B

Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebei) Co., PRC
Ltdlﬂb)

BMEMHEBCTIL)BRAR th

Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd."® PRC

B EEERAR H AR#200,000,0007T
(a) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of PRC.
(b) Registered as equity joint ventures under the laws of PRC.
(c) Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of PRC.

HK$115,000,000

115,000,000/ 7T

US$26,750,000

26,750,000% 7T

US$32,790,000

32,790,000 7T

RMB200,000,000

The above table lists the Company's subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the Group’s net assets.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 R AR A T

- 100%  Manufacture and sale
of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings

= 100% BUERHEENEBREN

- 100%  Manufacture and sale
of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings

- 100% BUERHEEHEBREN

- 100%  Manufacture and sale
of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings

= 100% BERHEEHEBREMH

- 100%  Manufacture and sale
of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings

100% HERHEENEBEREN

(a) RIBEPBEEZEMAR—FHEIEBEERLE -

(b)  REFEEEIMRAELE-

(0 RBEFEEEIMA—MAERAIF -

BEERR - ERABRIINARBME QY
RERNFEAEAFENIBRAREE
EFENERID o EFR A M E M
BRANER  #E@EAREMBRITE -



46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. 2R #&EMRRE
COMPANY

RBEHR - BEARRMBERRKRHE R

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period as follows: o
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B ARHIRE 7,819,079 5,016,480
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 87,551 75,588
Total non-current assets ERBEEELRE 7,906,630 5,092,068
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables Hip el zA 468,298 -
Cash and bank deposits BH& RIBITER 98,908 147,714
Total current assets MEEEBR 567,206 147,714
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HiEMZEREEA 2,676 2,501
Amounts due to subsidiaries JFETBY B A Rk IE 5,323,579 =
Borrowings B 708,374 2,674,984
Total current liabilities MEBEER 6,034,629 2,677,485
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFH (5,467,423) (2,529,771)
Net assets BERE 2,439,207 2,562,297
EQUITY R
Share capital A% 135,344 135,344
Reserves (note) T (P E) 2,303,863 2,426,953
Total equity eyt 2,439,207 2,562,297
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

46. R AEIBBEMRRE @E)

Note:
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AR ZFEEREOT
Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange
Share valuation fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
AHHE
REME ERKE
B RE 3] 1] REEF st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
At 1 January 2016 M2016F1 818 1,922,887 1,999 (79,768) 467,563 2,312,681
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEER=EE - 613 155,768 324,829 481,210
Shares repurchased ElfER G5 (17,269) - - (10,441) (27,710)
Dividends recognised as distributions RARERA
to owners DIEARE = = - (339,228) (339,228)
At 31 December 2016 and M2016F12A31B K
1 January 2017 201714818 1,905,618 2,612 76,000 442,723 2,426,953
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEWFER - (17,595) (158,947) 464,740 288,198
Dividends recognised as distributions BRARERA
to owners DIEARE - - - (411,288) (411,288)
At 31 December 2017 20176128318 1,905,618 (14,983) (82,947) 496,175 2,303,863
47. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 47. #HESZEMBERE

190

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 19 March 2018.
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REVEME

As at 31 December 2017
20175128318

Details of the Group's investment properties at the end of the RIHEHER AEFBREMEZFIFTNOT
reporting period are as follows:

Site area/
gross floor Group's Stage of
Location Type area Lease term interest  completion
i3 £l HwEEE HAE AKBEzER TRRER
BEEER
Sq. ft.
FAR
119-120, 202, 204, 1413-1421, 1423 Thailand CX 3,469,303 Freehold 75% Under
Tambol Bang Sao Thong, development

Amphoe Bang Sao Thong,

Samut Prakan Province

119-120, 202, 204, 1413-1421, 1423 R CX 3,469,303 KAKRE 75% gL
Tambol Bang Sao Thong,

Amphoe Bang Sao Thong,

Samut Prakan Province

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, United AL 3,347,290 Freehold 100% Planning
South side of Highway 380 States stage
West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, xE AL 3,347,290 KAFRE 100% SRR
South side of Highway 380

West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

12071 Bellegrave Avenue, United CL 4,755,880 Freehold 100% Planning
Jurupa Valley, California States stage
12071 Bellegrave Avenue, ESE CL 4,755,880 KAFRE 100% Z2IRER

Jurupa Valley, California

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, United CB 723,302*% Freehold 100% Under
Westbury, Nassau County, States refurbishment
Long Island, New York, USA

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, xH CB 723,302* KAKHE 100% B3 TI2iEf7eh

Westbury, Nassau County,
Long Island, New York, USA
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
LEMEHRE

As at 31 December 2017
R2017%F12A318

Site area/
gross floor Group's Stage of
Location Type area Lease term interest  completion
i3 £l wEEE HAY FEEzER TR R
BREEE
Sq. ft.
AR
Part of lots 23 & 24, Canada IL 1,994,351 Freehold 100% Planning
Markham, Concession 3, stage
Part 1 on Plan 65R-30576
Part of lots 23 & 24, nex IL 1,994,351 KAKRE 100% E2IRER
Markham, Concession 3,
Part 1 on Plan 65R-30576
5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951 Canada CL 1,750,241 Freehold 100% Planning
Steeles Avenue East, stage
Toronto, Ontario
5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951 mnex CL 1,750,241 KAERE 100% R
Steeles Avenue East,
Toronto, Ontario
5631 - 5671 Steeles Avenue East, Canada CB 139,300# Freehold 100% Existing
Toronto, Ontario, Canada
5631 -5671 Steeles Avenue East, mex CB 139,300 KAERE 100% HA
Toronto, Ontario, Canada
Lots 50, 51 & 52 in Deposited Plan 1144623, Australia IL 2,320,699 Freehold 100% Planning
Lots 6-10 in Deposited Plan 801210, stage

Lots 163, 168-182 & 216 DP8716,

Lots 4, 5 & 6 in Deposited Plan 226294,
Lots 2 in Deposited Plan 516449,

Lots 218 & 219 in Deposited Plan 457024,
Lot 2151 in Deposited Plan 135859,

Lot 1 in Deposited Plan 119616 and

Lot 7 in Deposited Plan 803359,

Augusta Street, Huntingwood East,

New South Wales

Lots 50, 51 & 52 in Deposited Plan 1144623, Nl IL 2,320,699 KAKKE 100% E R,
Lots 6-10 in Deposited Plan 801210,

Lots 163, 168-182 & 216 DP8716,

Lots 4, 5 & 6 in Deposited Plan 226294,
Lots 2 in Deposited Plan 516449,

Lots 218 & 219 in Deposited Plan 457024,
Lot 2151 in Deposited Plan 135859,

Lot 1in Deposited Plan 119616 and

Lot 7 in Deposited Plan 803359,

Augusta Street, Huntingwood East,

New South Wales
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Site area/

gross floor Group's Stage of
Location Type area Lease term interest  completion
i B £l wEEE HAS FEEzER TR R
BREEE
Sq. ft.
AR
79-99 St Hilliers Road, Australia IB 298,191# Freehold 100% Under
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney, refurbishtment
New South Wales, Australia
79-99 St Hilliers Road, 2N IB 298,191 KARIE 100% @ TRETT
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,
New South Wales, Australia
West of Foshan-Kaiping highway, China CL 1,392,982 Leasehold 100% Planning
North of Longgao Road, stage
Longjiang town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong
EREHLTIRERETHE h CL 1,392,982 MEXE 100% BB
HFRERAR - EREMIL
South of Longzhou West Road, China CL 221,825 Leasehold 100% Planning
East of Dengdong Road, stage
Longjiang town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong
EREHLUTIEERETH H CL 221,825 MExE 100% BRI
ENmEE RIS RERARZXA
Note: AL Agricultural land EXRi
st CL Commercial land EESEU
CX Complex land AR
IL Industrial land TR
CB Commercial building EEETF
B Industrial building TEEETF
# Represents gross floor area IEZYELEEHMHEAE
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GLOSSARY
I

"Board”
3

“BVI"
[REERARES]

“China” or "PRC"
[ E
“Code”
[<F81

“Company” or “China Lesso”

[ARRATE 5k [ B2

"Current Ratio”

[RE = ]

"EBITDA"
[ BR 87 o S A 2 7))

"Foshan Star Excel”

"Gearing Ratio”

[BEEREX]

“Group”
[AR&EE ]

“Guangdong Lesso Mall”
[BRE2ENE ]

“Guangdong Liansu Electric”

the board of directors of the Company

ARTEFY

the British Virgin Islands
EEERRES

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
REARKAE  RABEHES - WAREES  RPIREE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

ETRAIER 1 AFTE M R ERST A

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
B R BT R B R A A

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

MBEERARBBER L X

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

HRRAE ~ BiR - EREER AT

Foshan Star Excel Property Development Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules
HILUTEAEXZERARAR  EMELEMEZEREANRGF  WAKA
AEEAT(ERRE LTHRA

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
RGBSR ABS AR LS AN AN

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZN/NI DS @ L) = NE]

Guangdong Lesso Mall Co., Ltd.*, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company
ERBEASERENEWERAR  ARBZEZEE2ENBAR

Guangdong Liansu Electric Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the Company as defined
under the Listing Rules
BREEERERAR  EMELEMEZEREANRGE - WAKRA R
BAL(EER MR
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“Guangdong Liansu Machinery”

[E R 2B 25

“Guangdong Liansu Technology”

[E R R

“HK$”
[T

“Hong Kong” or

[&E ]

“loT”
[ 48 |

"Lesso Hardware”

[BHAE]

“Listing Rules”
[ E#R Al

“Macau”

[P ]
“Model Code”

[EEsral)

"New Fortune”

(#= £ ]

pE”
[PE]

“PP-R"
[PP-R]

“PVC”
[PVC]

“Quick Ratio”
[RENEL ]

"RMB”
[AR®]

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules
BREEMENEBRAR  ERELARELEREBNRA - WRARF]
WEEAL(EER LMK

Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.*, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

ERBEHMEEZEARAR - RARABNEZEZENE QR

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEEEE AT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R EEBRSRTHE

Internet of things

ki

Guangdong Lesso Hardware & Building Materials Co., Ltd.*, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

BEREFNAEZEMBRAR - ARRZEEIF2ENBRA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B3 prag s LR A

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
DR P RR R TR

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LR BIM S0 A LM AR EFHETESF X ZHHIRLESPA

New Fortune Star Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
New Fortune Star Limited * —fARRBHER RS TMAT 2 AR

polyethylene
BN

polypropylene random
EIRHBRBRAG

polyvinyl chloride
BEWE

the ratio of current assets less inventories to current liabilities

RBEERTEBRARBBEMNL X

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TREZEEEE - ARK
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GLOSSARY

A

"SFO”"
&7 M B D)

“Share(s)”
[ ]

"Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 2R

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”

[NEfER B B X

“sq.m."

EEY

“sq.ft.”
[FHR]

“Stock Exchange”
[B5E 22 Py J

“"Taiwan”

ES

"

“tonne(s)

[ 148 |

“Us”
EE0

"Uss”
=

“Xi Xi Development”

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
BEREDIEST1 BEF LB %D

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company

RRBEAP ZREEO0.05E TTHI D

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
PA/NSIISTESTE DN

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*

BIUmIEEREEEXER AR

square metres
Fh5k

square feet

FHER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBERHABR AT

the Republic of China
HREE R

a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms
EEBENEMN - BEM,0002T

the United States of America
EFBETH

US dollar, the lawful currency of US
ERZEEE® —FTT

Xi Xi Development Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI

[FEERE] AEERBRAR  —HREBHERRBESEMK I AR
%" per cent.

[% ] Bkt

* The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

* RS Yl OB RE (NG R ) B Al o
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

N ER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Lin Dewei

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Ms. Lan Fang

Exg

BITES
mMESEE(L/E)
Iomte S (TTE AR 2L )
EXMRL
FEESR L L
FLIKBR R £
FREIR T &
NS T
mERSLE

BRI E

FHTES
MiBERE

BYFBITES
ISR
ITExLEE
RXFRE
[P pcs
Fe Mg £

BREEY
BB (L)
IEFEL
PR SEE
RXFHE

B =R -
R E(EE)
ERER L
it E
FEFRE
RXFHE

REZEE
EMIERE(EE)
Emth e
it
FEFEE
e
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA
Liansu Industrial Estate

Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2

South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION
Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code:
2128

SHARE INFORMATION
Board lot size:
1,000 shares

Share issued as at 31 December 2017:
3,102,418,400 shares

Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2017:

HK$15,698 million
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REAWE
BASERE

BEERE
RS
Rt S

TSR

PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

TRARREIEE R

H

E®RE (E4 : 528318)
#EIl T

JIEREAE

BET3A

68 T ¥

BERETBREXME

BB
e IA B P
B T55%
AL

¥ E12183%

Eh&EHR
L E -
BEBARIABRAR

AR AR -
2128

Rp&E#
STEEEL :
1,0008%

M2017F12 A31MBEZEITRMEE -
3,102,418,400%

2017912 A31HMAE :
156.98E/8 7T



DIVIDEND

Final dividend per share for the year ended 31 December 2017:
HK18 cents per ordinary share

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
19 March 2018

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

- for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual
general meeting from 21 to 25 May 2018 (both dates
inclusive)

- for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend
from 31 May to 4 June 2018 (both dates inclusive)

2018 annual general meeting:
25 May 2018

Payment of 2017 proposed final dividend+:
on or around 13 June 2018

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093

Queensgate House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

i Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2018 annual general meeting to
be held on 25 May 2018.

BRE
HE2017F 1283 B I FEFRARPKE :
TR EER 181l

B B
FEEENE
20183 H19H

EERERMOBEETFE
rHERERAFASITNE FRENE
HHE2018F5 8212258 (BHEEEMKX)

= e TE URER R R HAR B B A R 20184F
5A31E6 4B (BIEEEMKX)

2018 F R BF KRG -
2018458258

RS20 7 F#R REIRL B~
20186 A13HskHT H T

RODBFEELERE
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

B BEERIESE
BEREPRBHFELERDT
BE

T2 fF REBR 1835
AR
17181712-1716 %

MBI 201845 25 B BITH2018F IR B F
Re LHER - TAMEE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

23rd Floor, The Centre

99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
K&L Gates

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.lesso.com
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BREEBRR
iPREEENF
BRBERAREHRI9S

IR 2318

&EiE 1 (852) 2136 6185
{55 : (852) 3170 6606
FEH : ir@lesso.com

A
LKE RN ETS AR
ENEEE R ]

(e3:0]
EE RS 0

FEERRIT
hERERTROEGRAR
hERT (BB HR AT
RERITRIAERAE)

FREEEBRRRITROARAREENTT
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BERTAR AT
PETERTT(EEM)BRATE
PETERITROEGRAF
=HERIRTT
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
include, without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words
“believe”, “intend”, “expect”, "anticipate”, “forecast”, “estimate”, “predict”, "is
confident”, “has confidence” and similar expressions are also intended to represent
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts.
Rather, the forward-looking statements are based on the current beliefs, assumptions,
expectations, estimates and projections of the directors and management of China
Lesso about the businesses, industries and markets in which China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the
Company's control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could
differ materially from those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking
statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only
the views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report
only. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this report.

ATHE R HA

ABEHAAEER - WEHNEBRARFETRRABERAR
BN - M [48E] - (58] [F85H] -~ [FaE] - [F8081] -
[Maat) -~ TH#ER ] DRIE] - [8EEL I RRLEREITERRRA
BEH - fERRARUNTEBMBEERETRERERE - 7%
R BB PREENmISmAGRELOBRES  BR - H
P EERIBRRELE  MUFELFE -

SR EPWIFRRROEBRBELRE  HESERE
@ THRAREZREMEAEMEZE  EhEEREXEFAR
FIFTREFEG] - B DATER o Bt - BN AR B B AT IE 2 AR
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